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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings
Company Limited, | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 to all the Shareholders.

In 2022, the economic situation of many countries will remain
complex and difficult, consumers’ confidence will be dampened,
the markets will be sluggish, and the business operations will
face severe challenges. Although the domestic real estate control
policies have been relaxed, it is still impossible to change the
downward trend of the property market, and the Company’s
property investment business continues to be affected. In the
face of difficulties, the Group continued to follow the spirit of
seeking progress while maintaining stability and forged ahead,
striving to keep calm and rational in adversity and pursue steady
development.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Infrastructure Construction Business

For the 2022 Financial Year, the Group completed the acceptance
and delivery of Xinxing Road of the Zhongfang Chaozhou lJing
Nan Industrial Park Project and the transfer of the remaining
communication pipelines in the park, and recognized revenue
of RMB27,959,000, representing a decrease of approximately
39% as compared to the revenue of RMB46,075,000 for the
corresponding period of 2021. As the parties have different
opinions on the pricing method of labor and materials, the
settlement work of the main project has not been completed.
Zhongfang Chaozhou will procure the parties involved to resolve
the dispute as soon as possible and strive to complete the
settlement work within 2023.

Property Investment Business

In the 2022 Financial Year, the Group continued to focus on the
construction of the Shennongjia Hotel project. As of the date of
this report, apart from completing the construction of the main
building, Shennongjia Hotel has completed the construction of
four courtyard houses, and the remaining six courtyard houses are
scheduled to be completed in 2023. In addition, the Company
continued to enhance the rental income of the leasable properties
and achieved a rental income of RMB1,468,000 for the 2022
Financial Year (2021 Corresponding Period: RMB947,000). The
Group will continue to focus on operating its existing property
projects, explore the possibilities and conduct innovation, and
strive to explore the profit-making points of the projects for higher
yields.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

BUSINESS ANALYSIS

Currently, the infrastructure construction business remains the
principal business of the Group. The Group has always been
committed to maintaining high-quality development, selecting
suitable projects, and striving to promote the completion of the
acceptance, delivery and settlement of the Zhongfang Chaozhou
Jing Nan Industrial Park Project. While maintaining its core
business, the Group gradually strengthened the development of
property investment business and rationally allocated the property
investment segment. These properties are currently located in
Beijing, Guangzhou, Shennongjia, Sanhe, etc., and the rental
income is on the rise.

INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT

In 2022, the external environment and internal conditions faced
by China’s economic development have not been improved, and
the domestic economic development is facing deep structural
problems and cyclical problems. Although the economy has
gradually recovered due to the active policies of the State, under
the influence of external factors, it is still not overly optimistic
and needs to be prepared at all times. In the face of challenges
in all aspects, the Group will adhere to the development
direction of seeking progress while maintaining stability and
overcome difficulties, so as to bring stable and good returns to
shareholders. During the Year, in response to the changes in the
economic situation and the overall development strategy, the
Company further developed the existing business of the Group,
strengthened the construction of Shennongjia Hotel, and resolved
the property ownership issues of the Fangshan Project in batches.
At the same time, according to market conditions and policy
factors, the Group actively inspected projects but carefully selected
investments, and made no new property acquisitions in 2022.

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group engaged CT
Consultants Limited to understand the implementation of
internal procedures through discussion with the management
and review the relevant policies and procedures. The Group will
take appropriate steps according to the Internal Control Review
Report. If any material deficiency or weakness in the internal
control procedures is found, the weak points will be improved,
and the internal risk management of the Company will be further
improved and implemented in all departments and subsidiaries to
enhance the risk management awareness of each employee.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Economic activities are expected to recover gradually in 2023
after the pandemic control is fully lifted. The Group will continue
to adhere to the development goal of seeking progress while
maintaining stability. While promoting the existing infrastructure
construction projects, the Group will actively respond to the
national policies and explore other potential projects. At the same
time, the Group will integrate various resources and promote
the construction and operation of various property projects to
achieve profitability as soon as possible. In addition, the Board will
continue to explore different investment opportunities, assess the
prospects of potential projects based on market conditions and
industry development trends, analyze their feasibility, and make
investment decisions based on it, with a view to bringing better
returns to the Group and enhancing the overall strength of the
Group.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my sincere gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and
staff for their support and hard work. In the face of adversity, |
believe that we will be able to overcome difficulties and achieve
success together!

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

30 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEA®EDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the 2022 Financial Year
amounted to RMB29,427,000 (the comparative figures for
2021 Corresponding Period: RMB47,022,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 37.42% as compared with the 2021
Corresponding Period. The decrease in revenue is mainly due to
a decrease in the revenue generated from the construction of
infrastructure and the development of properties in the PRC.

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group completed the
acceptance and delivery of Xinxing Road of the Zhongfang
Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project and the transfer of the
remaining communication tubes in the park (2021 Corresponding
Period: the Chaoshang Road, Xinwang Road, Huoju Road and LS
temporary drainage works and the transfer procedures of certain
communication tubes in the park), and recorded a revenue of
RMB27,959,000 for the 2022 Financial Year (2021 Corresponding
Period: RMB46,075,000). The Group recognised revenue from
property leasing business of RMB 1,468,000 for the 2022 Financial
Year (2021 Corresponding Period: RMB947,000), representing
an increase of approximately 55.02% as compared to the 2021
Corresponding Period.

Loss before tax of the Group for the 2022 Financial Year
amounted to RMB75,824,000 comparing with loss of
RMB27,621,000 for the 2021 Corresponding Period.

For the 2022 Financial Year, the Group recorded impairment
losses under expected credit loss model of approximately
RMB36,900,000, mainly comprises (i) the impairment loss of
approximately RMB38,298,000, on the consideration receivable
in relation to the disposal of 66.67% of the equity interest in
SHHH Development and the shareholder’s loan (the “Disposal”),
which was completed on 15 November 2020. Affected by the
poor operation and the Covid-19 pandemic, the purchaser
of the Disposal, Shenzhen Hongxun Investment Development
Company Limited* CRIITIBAKREZEE AR AR), failed to
make payment as scheduled in the notice for deferred payment
during 2022 and hence a further impairment is made; and (ii)
a reversal of impairment loss of approximately RMB1,725,000,
representing the repayment of loan from Guangzhou Leyou
Internet Technology Co. Ltd* (&N 24 B AR BRAR).

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEA®E DN

Due to the uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve, and the construction progress of the Beijing
Property (as defined below) is slower than planned schedule, the
Directors estimated that the construction of the Beijing Property
will be completed on or before 31 December 2023 and the
acquisition will be completed on or before 30 June 2024. The
management of the Company assessed that the recoverable
amount of deposit paid for the acquisition of the Beijing Property
is lower than its carrying amount, an impairment loss on deposit
paid of approximately RMB11,046,000 was recognised for the
2022 Financial Year.

Income Tax Expenses

No income tax expenses is recognised of the Group for the 2022
Financial Year, representing a decrease of approximately 100% as
compared with RMB6,000 for the 2021 Corresponding Period.
The decrease in income tax expenses was mainly attributable to
the utilisation of tax loss of Beijing Yufeng Chengyou and the
receipt of the preferential treatment on corporate income tax for
small-scale enterprises with low profitability.

Loss Per Share

The basic loss per Share attributable to owners of the Company
during the 2022 Financial Year from continuing operations and
discontinued operations was approximately RMB5.00 cents,
representing an increase of approximately 212.50% as compared
with the loss per Share for the 2021 Corresponding Period of
RMB1.60 cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Construction of Infrastructure and Development of
Properties

(i) Infrastructure Construction Business

The infrastructure construction business is one of the
principal businesses of the Group. Zhongfang Chaozhou,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, principally
engages in infrastructure construction in the PRC.
Conventionally, the Group, being a contractor, will be
responsible for (i) raising and financing the development
cost of the construction projects; (ii) launching
construction; and (iii) supervising the construction
procedures and quality control. Upon completion of the
construction project, the infrastructure will be repurchased
by the government department or private company such
that revenue can be recognised in this regard.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEA®EDN

The settlement of the main portion of Zhongfang
Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project (the “Project”)
has not been completed during the 2022 Financial Year
due to the parties have not reached an agreement on the
review data. During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group
completed the acceptance and delivery of Xinxing Road
and the transfer of the remaining communication tubes in
the park, and a revenue of RMB27,959,000 was recorded
by the Group from the infrastructure construction business.

Since there was a change of the management in Chaozhou
Jinshan in February 2021, the new management of
Chaozhou Jinshan needed to take additional time to take
over the settlement proceeding of the Project. In terms
of the project volumes and amounts, there are some
discrepancies of opinion between the third-party review
agency and Zhongfang Chaozhou. As such, Zhongfang
Chaozhou has been providing supplemental information
to demonstrate the progress and work done for further
discussion to minimise such discrepancies. Zhongfang
Chaozhou has conducted several discussions and data
verification with the third-party review agency and other
relevant parties in relation to the settlement of the main
portion of the Project, but the parties have not reached
an agreement on the review data successively issued by
the third-party review agency. In the 2022 Financial Year,
after three communication and coordination meetings
and several rounds of data supplement, all parties
basically reached a consensus on other evaluation data
except for disputes over fixed labor and material pricing.
On 9 December 2022, Zhongfang Chaozhou issued a
consultation letter to Guangdong Provincial Construction
Engineering Standard Quota Station* (BEREEHXT
F2IZZE FF BB L) regarding the labor and material pricing
dispute caused by different locations of the Project. On 9
March 2023, Zhongfang Chaozhou received the reply from
Guangdong Provincial Construction Engineering Standard
Quota Station which suggested that Zhongfang Chaozhou
and Chaozhou lJinshan sign a supplementary agreement
to clarify how to determine labor and material prices.
As of the date of this report, Chaozhou Jinshan has not
responded to the signing of the supplementary agreement.
The Company will continue to actively communicate with
Chaozhou Jinshan and strive to complete the settlement of
the main portion of the Project in 2023.

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEA®E DN

(ii) Development of Properties

Shennongjia Hotel, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, principally engages in the development of
properties, tourism and hotel services.

Shennongjia Hotel holds the land use rights of two parcels
of adjoining land, with a total site area of approximately
35,506 sg.m. located in Ping Qian Ancient Town, Da lJiu
Hu, Shennongjia Forestry District, Hubei Province, the PRC*
G 16 & 8 B 2R M & K NMIF M 5 $8) for commercial

hotel service use.

As at 31 December 2022, the properties are under
construction.

The business model in the development of properties is
acquisition and construction, which after acquiring the
land, the Company takes part in the construction project
and builds residential or commercial buildings for selling.

The Group is from time to time searching for opportunities
to reinforce its financial strength. It will explore suitable
investment and construction projects through strong
connections of the management and public and private
tenders.

Property Investment Business

The Group's property investment business is mainly distributed in
the cities such as Guangzhou, Beijing and Sanhe. The Company
identifies potential properties for investment purposes from time
to time to receive rental income and may enjoy potential property
appreciation income in the future. The Group currently owns 125
offices located in the Zhiying Commercial Center in Liangxiang
Higher Education Park, Fangshan, Beijing (the “Fangshan
Project”), 11 shop units and 60 car parking spaces located in
Sanhe, a shop unit in Guangzhou and a commercial property in
Shunyi, Beijing which is under construction.

During the 2022 Financial Year, certain properties of the Group

have generated rental income and recorded rental income of
RMB1,468,000 (2021 Corresponding Period: RMB947,000).

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEA®EDN

The business model in the property investment business is
acquisition for selling and/or leasing, which the Company acquires
suitable and potential properties which are ready for selling and
leasing. As such, revenue can be recognised through earning the
price difference between the buying and selling price. The Group
can also record rental incomes from the leasing of the properties.
The Group will continue to identify potential property investment
projects.

The Group has equipped a professional team in property leasing
and property management for the Fangshan Project during the
2022 Financial Year. According to the current market conditions,
the Group plans to lease out part of the properties of the
Fangshan Project for operations, and the remaining properties will
be put on the market at an opportunity according to the operation
situation.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and geopolitical tension in
2022, the global economy stuck in a prolonged slump. The Group
will continue to firmly pursue its goal of steady development and
promote existing infrastructure projects while actively responding
to national policies and exploring other infrastructure projects with
potential; at the same time, it will integrate the Group's resources
to promote the construction and operation of various property
projects to achieve profitability as soon as possible. Moreover,
the Board will continue its effort to explore diversified investment
opportunities and upgrade the Group’s market competitiveness.

The Work of Old Area Renovation has been a hot topic recently
in the PRC, which focuses on improving support facilities for
housing estates and government services, and beefing up
services for elderly residents, medical services and others. In
order to renovate the old urban residential areas, reconstruction
of infrastructures and properties must be involved. As such, the
Directors are of the view that there will be more tenders offered by
county government of the PRC, or more contractors searching for
investments or sub-contractors for the construction of properties.
Other than renovating old urban residential areas, some projects
may involve rural area development. Opportunities for acquiring
land for construction will also be increased. Also, with the strong
connection of the management of the Company, the Directors
believe that there will be more opportunities for investment or
construction in the future. In addition, the Board will continue to
devote efforts to exploring various investment opportunities and
enhancing the Group's market competitiveness.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total assets amounted
to RMB748,981,000 (2021: RMB883,277,000), representing
a decrease of 15.20%. Non-current assets and current
assets as at 31 December 2022 were RMB395,292,000
(2021: RMB428,740,000) and RMB353,689,000 (2021:
RMB454,537,000) respectively.

With a prudent financial management policy and a solid financial
position, the working capital of the Group is usually financed by
its internally generated resources. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had net current assets of approximately RMB178,344,000
(31 December 2021: RMB224,576,000), including cash and
cash equivalents of RMB6,557,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB7,083,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no bank borrowings, but
had other borrowings. The Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) and gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was
2.02 times (31 December 2021: 1.98 times) and 0.23 times (31
December 2021: 0.26 times), respectively.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES

Pre-acquisition of property in Beijing PRC

On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang, the subscriber,
entered into a pre-acquisition agreement with Beijing Zhong Tou,
pursuant to which Beijing Zhong Tou agreed to sell and Beijing
Shen Shang agreed to acquire a property at a total consideration
of RMB152,800,000. The property is a commercial premise with
the construction area of 2,800 sq.m., with the right to use its car
parks of 5,000 sgq.m. at the basement level two, being part of
Phase 3 of the ancillary facility project of Beijing International Zone
Convention Center* bR & REIFEAEELE) to be constructed in
Beijing Shunyi District Tianzhu Airport Commercial Zone* (At 2/
B & K== ZE B 75 &) (the “Beijing Property”). Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 15 November 2016 for
details.

* For identification purpose only
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On 26 March 2018, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong
Tou entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the
pre-acquisition agreement to postpone the date of the acceptance
and transfer of the Beijing Property to 31 December 2019. The pre-
sale permit for the project has been obtained on 17 August 2018.

However, due to multiple factors, including the 70th anniversary
of the National Day, important meetings and the haze days, the
construction was suspended at the request of the government,
resulting in the postponement of the completion. Coupling with
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in 2020, the progress
of subsequent construction has been affected, resulting in the
completion of construction and delivery of the Beijing Property has
not yet been completed.

On 20 May 2020, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong Tou
entered into a supplemental agreement to further postpone the
date of the completion of construction and delivery of the Beijing
Property to 30 June 2021 due to the outbreak of the Covid-19
pandemic, and Beijing Shen Shang agreed to waive the penalty of
Beijing Zhong Tou for the delay of the completion of construction.
On 20 March 2022, Beijing Shen Shang received a further notice
of extension of completion from Beijing Zhong Tou, stating
that due to the impact of an important event and the Covid-19
pandemic, the completion date of the Beijing Property is expected
to be extended to 31 December 2022. On 6 March 2023, Beijing
Shen Shang received a third notice of completion delay from
Beijing Zhong Tou. In 2022, due to the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic and the major meetings of the 20th National Congress,
the construction progress of the Beijing Property was slowed
down, and the completion date is expected to be delayed to 31
December 2023. Currently, Beijing Zhong Tou is expediting the
process of construction, and the Company is also strengthening
the supervision of the construction projects of Beijing Zhong Tou.

As at the date hereof, the transaction is still in progress.
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the 2022 Financial Year, save as disclosed above, the
Company did not have any significant investments.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, EMOLUMENTS, TRAINING
SCHEMES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 49
employees (31 December 2021: 50). The Group has entered
into employment contracts with all employees, and offered
employment packages according to their positions, qualifications,
experience and abilities. During the 2022 Financial Year, the
aggregate salaries and emoluments amounted to RMB6,845,000
(2021 Corresponding Period: RMB6,649,000). The Group
also provides benefits to employees, such as contributions to
endowment insurance, basic medical insurance and housing
reserve in accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC. The
Group has not adopted any share option scheme for any of its
senior management or employees.

ASSETS SECURED/PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2022, no asset of the Group was secured or
pledged (31 December 2021: Nil).

CURRENCY RISKS

Other than a subsidiary established in Hong Kong, the revenue
and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions
denominated in currencies other than the functional and
reporting currency of the Group, which is RMB. The changes in
the exchange rate of Hong Kong Dollar against RMB will affect
the results of the Group. An exchange gain of RMB17,000 (2021
Corresponding Period: gain of RMB1,193,000) was recorded in
the results for the 2022 Financial Year. The Group currently does
not have a hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management of the Company will consider hedging significant
currency exposure in the future should the need arise.

B8 A2 FrEH ~ 13 51 81 B A B g st &1

$22022F 128310 AEBEHER49%EE
(20214 12H31H : 508) - AEHE L2
RBREHVEEZEERSR REEEMEIRE
WA~ BE SRR DIREARRE Z N
B0 MEE  FiakMlSREES
AR 16,845,0007T (202 14E[EH | ARIK
6,649,0007T) ° B> iRIEPE AR ERER
T AEEAEEREEHNNZMEERE
S EABBRRRESREEA AR AER
BRFMNETASHREEAENE TERES

2o

BEERR G

120225128310 AEE T EETAEER
S E R (2021F128318 @ ) ©

4 EEE L B

BREARIIN—BRBATN ZEEZ
WARBSTFEUARESHE AEEAS
MAREBEERRREE (AR WIINNE
B ENRZIINERR B TR AREN
EXREEFGE EREBNES 11202258
HEENEETREBER NG ARR17,000
7t (20214 [RFHA © Wz A #1,193,0007T) ©
Z~EE (8 B A 6 SN R B B9 R IBUR o AR A
DEEEBREELOENEZSEREFEARE
S LB o

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEA®EDN

LITIGATION

On 19 August 2021, Shennongjia Jinghe Hotel Management Co.,
Ltd.* (FERRBERAEEEEERAT) ("Jinghe Hotel”), an
Independent Third Party, filed an indictment against Shennongjia
Hotel to the People’s Court of Shennongjia Forestry District,
regarding the occurrence of a dangerous landslide on the north
side of Shennongjia Hotel project. Pursuant to which, Jinghe
Hotel claims Shennongjia Hotel for losses caused by the landslide,
including i) compensation of approximately RMB4,349,000 for
the inability to operate due to the landslide from 9 June 2021
till the resumption of operation (temporarily calculated on the
basis of 40 days, RMB108,730 per day); i) repairment of the
bridge which was damaged by the landslide and undertaking of
the responsibility for the quality and safety after the repairment;
i) compensation for the landslide damage to the pools, bridge
guardrails, river guardrails, flower beds, power supply and water
supply pipelines, plant foundation roads and site occupation fees
within the hotel site; and iv) the litigation fee, preservation fee and
appraisal fee of this lawsuit.

Jinghe Hotel and Shennongjia Hotel reached an agreement on
the repair of the bridge, and the repair was completed before 31
December 2021. As Jinghe Hotel and Shennongjia Hotel did not
reach an agreement on compensation for the operation losses,
Jinghe Hotel applied to the court for an appraisal of its operating
losses from 9 June 2021 to 19 July 2021 (the “Financial
Estimation”). The court agreed the Financial Estimation to be
performed by an appraisal agent. Due to the incomplete appraisal
materials, the appraisal agent requested Jinghe Hotel to provide
additional information.

On 22 April 2022, the People’s Court of Shennongjia Forestry
District issued a civil judgment on the lawsuit, ruling that
Shennongjia Hotel should compensate Jinghe Hotel for the
operating losses of approximately RMB15,000, and replant the
green plants in the flower bed in the center of the bridge. The
People’s Court of Shennongjia Forestry District dismissed Jinghe
Hotel’s other lawsuit claims (collectively known as the “Original
Judgment”). On 12 May 2022, Jinghe Hotel filed an appeal to
the Intermediate People’s Court of Yichang City for approval of
the original lawsuit claims because it was not satisfied with the
judgment of the People’s Court of Shennongjia Forestry District.

On 5 December 2022, Intermediate People’s Court of Yichang City
issued a civil judgment and upheld the Original Judgment.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the 2022 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group made a donation of
RMB29,000 to Red Cross Society of Shennongjia Forestry District*
(HREMEAI+F®)to provide courtyard hardening and
environmental improvement of a marginal household in Ping Qian
Village (2021 Corresponding Period: RMB1,000,000 to Chaoan
District Charity Federation in Chaozhou City for the construction
of a kindergarten).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the total capital commitments of
the Group amounted to RMB45,522,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB59,721,000).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events from the end of the 2022 Financial
Year to the date hereof.

*  For identification purpose only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 65, is the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director since 4 June 2015. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Shantou Business School. Since 1986, Mr. Zhang has
successively worked as the deputy manager of Guangdong
Haining Paper Packing Company Limited* (e /BEAR R EIE
BIE/AT]), the vice president of Hong Kong Hai Yuan Industry
Group Limited and chairman of Beijing Zhongjin Chuangzhan Real
Estate Development Company Limited* bR LB ERE HZE
B2 A E/AT]). Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in business
management, corporate culture and project and operational
planning.

Mr. Huang Chunfeng, aged 46, is an executive Director since 5
November 2021. Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor's degree from
the School of Finance of Zhengzhou University in 2002, a master’s
degree in business administration from the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 2013 and a master’s degree
in EMBA from China Europe International Business School (CEIBS)
in 2017. From 1998 to 2010, he successively worked in the sub-
branch directly under Henan Branch of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited (stock code: 601398) and the Zhengzhou
Branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 600000). From 2010 to 2013, he successively served as vice
president of the Xueyuan South Road Sub-branch under Beijing
Branch of Bank of Shanghai Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601229) and
Beijing Dongzhimen Sub-branch of Bank of Jiangsu. From 2014
to 2016, he was the general manager of Beijing Guo Tai Zhong
Tou Investment Funds Management Co., Ltd.* (EZ=®# (Jt
R IBEESEEARATD. From 2016 to 2019, he has been
the chairman of Gong Chuang Xing Yuan Asset Management
Co., Ltd.x HAIEREEEEAMRAE). Since March 2019,
Mr. Huang has been serving as a chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Huang has extensive experience in the areas of
finance, investment and corporate management.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Leng Xiao Rong, aged 56, is an executive Director since
28 June 2018. Mr. Leng graduated from the Department of
Economics of Jiangxi University in 1989 majoring in accounting.
He qualified as an accountant through the national uniform
examination in 1998. He was the financial manager of Xiushui
County Forestry Industrial Company in Jiangxi Province* GLFg
BIEKBRMETHEASE) from 1989 to 1999, audit officer of
Shenzhen Petrochemical (Holding) Co., Ltd.* CRIGI{CERERHD
BHR/AE]) from 1999 to 2004, financial director of China South
City Nanning (FGZZE® ) and China South City Harbin* (P57
JBEERGIN) which are the branches of China South City Holdings
Limited (EERIHIZAZ B BEA ) (stock code: 1668) from 2004 to
2014 and investment director of Guangdong Yueshang High—Tech
Holdings Co., Ltd.* (BEEREESHIERERAR) from 2014
to 2018. Mr. Leng has extensive experience in various aspects
including corporate finance, audit and investment.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chau Ting Yan, aged 64, is a non-executive Director
since 5 November 2021. Mr. Chau graduated from Nanjing
Communication Engineering Institute* (F RiB1E T2
in 1982. After his graduation, he had successively served as an
assistant engineer and the engineer of the 54th Research Institute*
(R +MEAZEP) from 1983 to 1993; from 1993 to 2005, he
successively served as a general manager of Fine Lee Industries,
Limited* (RAEBEAHPRAF) and chairman of the board of
directors of China Hani Group* (FRE1EF]EE ) ; he has served as
chairman of Zhongjin Fuhua (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (Fs&
S (bR BB AERAE]) from 2005 to 2017; and he has been
serving as a director of Zhong Rong Jin Kong Capital Management
Co., Ltd.* (PREZEEAEEAFRAB) from 2018 to March
2019. Mr. Chau has extensive experience in finance, investment
and corporate management.
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Mr. Yin Zong Chen, aged 59, is a non-executive Director
since 3 March 2014. Mr. Yin graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology with a master's degree in architecture and civil
engineering professional. He is a member of the Shenzhen
Luohu District Committee of the CPPCC for the sixth session.
He obtained the qualifications of national first class registered
constructor, registered supervision engineer, real estate economist
and national first registered cost engineer. He successively served
as the general manager, party branch deputy secretary and senior
engineer of Shenzhen Shenan Enterprise Co., Ltd. from 1997 to
2003, and the director, general manager and senior engineer of
Shenzhen Pan-China Engineering Group Co., Ltd. from 2003 to
2007. Mr. Yin served as the general manager of the contracting
division and group vice president in Shenzhen Construction
(Group) Company Limited* (YIRS (EE) BRAE]) from
2009 to 2012, and currently serves as secretary of the Party
Committee of Guangdong No. 16 Metallurgical Construction Co.,
Ltd.* (BER+7VAERBRAT) and chairman of Guangdong
No. 16 Metallurgical Shenshan Construction Co., Ltd.* (B&
+7UBFERARAT) . He has over 30 years' experience
in architecture design, civil engineering and infrastructure
construction.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang, aged 43, is an independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2020. Mr. Luo is a certified public
accountant in the PRC. He graduated from Wuhan Finance
College* (BU2®REEHEREM) majoring in accounting
in 2001, and from 2017 to 2019, he completed a law degree
programme at University of South China; from 2003 to June
2019, Mr. Luo successively served as an audit manager of Baker
Tilly China Certified Public Accountants* (RE%EIPS & 5teHisE
F5FA) (Shenzhen Branch), an executive director of Shenzhen
Guanghua Yongzhuo Financial Consultancy Co., Ltd.* CRIITT
KB FFEERIBEAT), a department head of Asia Pacific
CPA (Group) (Shenzhen Branch); from July 2019 to present,
Mr. Luo has been an executive director of Guangdong Tianjian
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (BERXEEMBRAE). Mr. Luo has
been in charge of the audit of a number of listed companies in
the PRC and the listing and financing consultancy services for a
number of domestic private enterprises in the PRC, proving his
extensive experience in audit, financing and the operation of listed
companies.

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Gao Hong Hong, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director since 11 February 2018. Ms. Gao graduated from the
department of monetary banking under the faculty of finance of
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics with a master’s
degree in economics in 1998. Since 1998, she has worked
in the business division and dealt with credit business in the
international finance division of Bank of China Shenzhen Branch.
She successively served as chairman of Bank of China Shenzhen
Meili Sub-branch, Bank of China Shenzhen Meilin Sub-branch and
Bank of China Shenzhen Shahe Sub-branch. Ms. Gao was the
assistant to general manager of the asset management centre of
Shenzhen Galaxy Holdings Group Limited* GFIII £ AR ERE
FR/A7]) from 2017 to 2021. Ms. Gao has extensive experience in
investment, financing and asset management.

Mr. Guo Lu Jin, aged 67, is an independent non-executive
Director since 28 June 2018. Mr. Guo graduated from Renmin
University of China in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree. During his
university years, he took a professional course in sociology at
Nankai University. Mr. Guo served at the General Communication
Station of the Lanzhou Military Region* (BN EE (& 3@ 7148 k)
as a soldier. Upon completion of studies, he held the position of
principal staff member of the Department of Higher Education
of the Ministry of Education* (AEHSEHEE) from 1982
to 1988. He was the director of the National Development
and Reform Commission from 1988 to 1993 and successively
became the person-in-charge of the investment and development
department, general office and asset preservation department
of China Everbright Bank Company Limited from 1993 to 2015.
He has extensive experience in various aspects including finance,
investment, macroeconomic adjustment and social development
strategies.

*  For identification purpose only
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EX ESREREEENE

SUPERVISORS:

Mr. Wang Xing Ye, aged 45, holds a master postgraduate
degree. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director of Beijing
Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd., director
of Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Hebei Beida Jade
Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 002960.
SZ), director of Enraytek Optoelectronics Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., director of Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Interest
Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (BEXSBETRIERSE
BEIEHRAT), director of Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital
Investment Co., Ltd., executive director/general manager of
Ningbo Liyuantai Venture Capital Investment Management
Co., Ltd., executive director/ vice president/ compliance officer/
secretary to the board of director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird
Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited and the chairman of the
board of supervisors of the Company. He has profound experience
in investment and financing, asset and business reorganisation.

Mr. Chen Jun Fung, aged 40, graduated from Southwest
University of Political Science & Law with a bachelor of
laws. Mr. Chen served as the assistant to the president
of Guangdong Xutongda Auction Company Limited*
(BERBEZEHEFRAT) from November 2008 to January
2010, assistant to the president and legal manager of Guangzhou
Shengtang Properties Limited* (BN EIEEZEHFRRF) from
February 2010 to February 2012, the director and deputy general
manager of Guangdong Gong He Equity Fund Limited* (B8R L&
RS AEAT) from March 2013 to October 2015, and the
director of Zhuhai Kingma Holdings Co., Ltd.* (/8% BT
ABEBRAE) (formerly known as Shining Metals Groups, Inc.* (Ek
BENEERKBARAF)) (stock code: 400028). Since 2017,
he has been the operation director of Kevin Talent Consulting
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* FIX AA ZEE (FYI) BFRAS) Mr. Chen
has extensive experience in risk control and company operation.

Mr. Zheng Ze Jian, aged 35, graduated from Beijing
Institute of Technology, Zhuhai with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. Mr. Zheng successively served as an account
manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited,
an approval manager of Ping An Bank Co., Ltd. and
has worked in the investment development department of the
Company. Mr. Zheng has extensive experience in corporate
investment and financing.
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EX ESRhEREEENE

Mr. Zhang Yun Feng, aged 58, graduated from Anhui University
of Finance and Economics majoring in science of merchandise.
Mr. Zhang has worked as an officer of Bengbu Foreign Trade
Bureau, Anhui Province* (Z#&HIEFINERF), general
manager of Bengbu Knitted Cotton Fabric Import and Export
Company* (HFRTHHBMMEL OS], deputy general
manager of the marketing department of Shenzhen Ouhe
Network System Company Limited* CRYIBERERFZBREL
@), deputy general manager of the marketing department in
the headquarters of the Kunlun Securities Company Limited* (&
WMEEEAREAT) and general manager of Anhui Xin Tai Yuan
Technology Company Limited* (Z# & ol BRAT) . He is
currently the president of Shenzhen Qian Yuan Kun Li Investment
Technology Co., Ltd.* CRYITFE LA R ERFLBRAR) .

Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in capital operation.

Mr. Fang Wei Ran, aged 37, graduated from Guangdong Ocean
University with bachelor of science in financial management. He
previously worked in Huizhou LCY Elastomers Corp* (BMNZEE
IR AEE/AT). Mr. Fang is currently the finance manager
of Zhongfang Chaozhou. Mr. Fang has extensive experience in
accounting practices and cost management.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES:

Ms. Qian Fang Fang, aged 39, is the joint company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Qian graduated from Northwest University
majoring in accounting with a bachelor’s degree in management
in 2006, and was conferred a master's degree in management in
2008. Ms. Qian was appointed as the supervisor of the Company
for the period from 12 February 2012 to 3 March 2014. Ms. Qian
was appointed as the joint company secretary of the Company on
6 March 2014.

Mr. Chung Man Wai, Stephen, aged 44, was appointed as
the joint company secretary of the Company on 8 September
2020. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor’s degree of science in applied
accountancy from Oxford Brookes University in United Kingdom,
and he has served as company secretary for various Hong Kong
listed companies. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experience as a
professional in the fields of accounting, auditing and company
secretarial matters.

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EFgRS

To the Shareholders,

During the 2022 Financial Year, the supervisory committee
of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”), exercised
conscientiously its authority, safeguarded the interests of the
Shareholders and the Company, followed the principle of
trustworthiness, honestly carried out the duties of supervisors and
worked cautiously and diligently, in accordance with the Company
Law of the PRC, requirements of the relevant laws and regulations
of Hong Kong and the Articles for their accountability to the
Shareholders.

During the year, the major work performed by the Supervisory
Committee included the attendance of the Board meetings;
reviewing the report of the Directors and reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board, if any, for the Shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company; strictly
and effectively monitoring whether the policies and decisions
made by the management of the Company had conformed with
the state laws and regulations and the Articles or safeguarded
the interests of the Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee has
also reviewed the performance of the Directors, general manager
and senior management in the daily operation by various means,
and seriously examined the Company's financial affairs and its
connected transactions. After the examination, the Supervisory
Committee concluded that:

1. the report of the Directors and the reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board for the Shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
are in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Articles;

2. the Directors, general manager and other senior
management of the Company have strictly followed
the principles of trustworthiness, worked diligently and
responsibly, and discharged their duties for the best
interest of the Company. The Supervisory Committee has
not discovered that any Directors, general manager and
other senior management of the Company had abused
their powers, damaged the interest of the Company
or the benefits of the Shareholders and employees or
contravened any laws and regulations or the Articles; and
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EFgRS

3. the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the 2022 Financial Year, which were audited by Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited, have truly and fairly reflected
the operating results and financial position of the Group.
The related parties transactions were fair and reasonable
and had not infringed upon the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee takes this opportunity to thank the

Shareholders, Directors and all the employees of the Company for
their supports in the past year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Mr. Wang Xing Ye
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenyang, 30 March 2023
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the 2022 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2022 Financial Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 65 to 67.

The state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2022 is set out

in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 68
and 69.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the 2022 Financial Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2022 Financial

Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 70 to 71.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2022, calculated under the Company Law of the
PRC, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was established
(2021: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles.
Under the laws of the PRC, the Company would be obliged to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the financial information of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 268 and 269.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

For the 2022 Financial Year, the Company did not establish or
implement any share option scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the 2022 Financial Year and
up to the date hereof are:
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Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) SREBRSLE (F/E)
Mr. Huang Chunfeng (Chief Executive Officer) =EBEE (THEZ)
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong RN
Non-executive Directors EMITES

Mr. Chau Ting Yan BEMSTE

Mr. Yin Zong Chen FREKLE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIEITES
Mr. Guo Lu Jin HFESRE

Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang mERSY

Ms. Gao Hong Hong St
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent to the Group in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, all the Directors
shall be appointed at the general meeting for a term of three
years. A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon
the expiry of the term.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out on pages 17 to 22.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/her
date of appointment as a Director or supervisor (or until the expiry
of the term of the current session of the Board or the Supervisory
Committee) and thereafter subject to termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the supervisors
has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the Directors’ and supervisors’ service contracts
disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance related to the Group’s business to which
the Group was a party, and in which a Director or supervisor or
an entity connected with a Director or a supervisor had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, which subsisted during or at
the end of the 2022 Financial Year.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRS

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND SUPERVISORS'’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, save for the Directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company, the following corporations
and individuals had interests and/or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of total

Interest owners Shares issued share capital
HERITRAE

EERHEA B W EDLE

1 Beijing Hua Xia Ding 420,000,000 Domestic Shares 28.58%
ITRESR 420,000,0008% N & AR 28.58%

2 Huang Guang Fu (Note 1) 420,000,000 Domestic Shares 28.58%
=ER #ET) 420,000,0008% FI & % 28.58%

3 Beijing Lichuang Future 180,000,000 Domestic Shares 12.25%
JER 38R R 180,000,0008% N & A% 12.25%

4 Zhai Ming Yue (Note 2) 180,000,000 Domestic Shares 12.25%
ZEA (&t2) 180,000,0008% N & AR 12.25%

5 Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long 140,000,000 Domestic Shares 9.53%
ARINE R ERE 140,000,0008% N & & 9.53%

6 Zhang Song (Note 3) 140,000,000 Domestic Shares 9.53%
SRAL (H1523) 140,000,0008% PI & % 9.53%

7 HKSCC Nominees Limited (Note 4) 599,477,595 H-Shares (listed Shares) 40.80%
EBPREHE (REAN) BIRAR (#fa#4)  599,477,5958HAE (LT 1%) 40.80%
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

Notes:

Huang Guang Fu is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests
in Beijing Hua Xia Ding. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO, Huang
Guang Fu is also deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held
by Beijing Hua Xia Ding.

Zhai Ming Yue is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests in
Beijing Lichuang Future. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO, Zhai Ming
Yue is also deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by
Beijing Lichuang Future.

Zhang Song is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests in
Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO,
Zhang Song is deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held
by Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long.

As notified by HKSCC Nominees Limited, as at 31 December 2022, the
following participants of CCASS had interests amounting to 5.00% or
more of the total issued H-Shares as shown in the securities accounts
in CCASS:

(1 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as
nominee holds 85,524,740 H-Shares, representing 14.12% of
the issued H-Shares.

(2) Ever-long Securities Company Limited as nominee holds
64,282,000 H-Shares, representing 10.61% of the issued
H-Shares.

(3) Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee holds
63,810,000 H-Shares, representing 10.54% of the issued
H-Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
has not been notified of any interests and/or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the 2022 Financial Year
attributable to the Group's major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 78%
— five largest customers combined 100%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 90.27%
— five largest suppliers combined 100%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers disclosed above.

TAX RELIEF

The Board is not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors. Following a specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the 2022 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors and supervisors of the Company or
their respective associates was granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries any right to acquire Shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any such
right during the 2022 Financial Year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the 2022 Financial Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the 2022 Financial Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into
by the Group under the applicable accounting standards during
the 2022 Financial Year are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the related party transactions disclosed in Note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in the Listing Rules which are subject to the reporting,
announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the 2022 Financial
Year and a discussion of the Group's future prospects are set in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 16 and
the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 of this annual report
respectively.

Risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have
been addressed in the Chairman’s Statement on page 5 and the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 16 of this
annual report respectively.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Likely development in the Group’s business

The likely development of the Group is shown in the Business
Prospects section in the Management Discussion and Analysis and
Chairman’s Statement in this annual report.

An analysis using financial key performance indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to the
business of the Group are set out in the Financial Review section
in the Management Discussion and Analysis and the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Environmental policies and performance

Environmental protection is critical to the long term development
of the Group. The Group places importance in the management
practice so as to minimise waste, maximise efficiencies and reduce
negative impact on the environment.

Relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
others

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of the requirements and complaints of the
customers. The Group conducts appraisal of the performance of
the suppliers on a regular basis.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has an on-going review of the newly
enacted laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group. The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
business of the Group.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, is
interested in any business that competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, nor has
any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the date hereof.

AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
2022 Financial Year have been audited by Asian Alliance (HK) CPA
Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. The Company will propose relevant resolutions
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM") in this regard.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

Shenyang, the PRC, 30 March 2023
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics which are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time to comply with the regulatory
requirements and to improve the corporate governance practice.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the 2022 Financial Year,
except the following:

Code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code requires that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors. The Company did not arrange such
insurance cover during the 2022 Financial Year as Directors
considered that the risk of material legal claims against Directors
is minimal. Nevertheless, the Board will review this arrangement
from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances and
arrange for appropriate insurance coverage when necessary.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board, which currently comprises 8 Directors, including three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jing Ming as chairman of
the Board, Mr. Huang Chunfeng as the chief executive officer
of the Company and Mr. Leng Xiao Rong; two non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chau Ting Yan and Mr. Yin Zong Chen;
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo
Lu Jin, Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang and Ms. Gao Hong Hong. The Board
is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and risk
management to protect Shareholders’ interest. Daily operation and
administration is delegated by the Board to the executive Directors
and the management of the Company.

The brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of this report. All the Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. The composition
of the Board is well balanced as all the Directors have experience
in their field of expertise with a balance of skills, knowledge and
experience relevant to the operation of the Group.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the
Board.
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The Board has three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualifications. In
addition, two non-executive Directors are appointed to provide
guidance to the Board.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independent of the management of the Company.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, in particular, (i)
independent non-executive Directors are encouraged to actively
participate in the Board meetings; (ii) the number of independent
non-executive Directors is in compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules; and (ii) independent professional advice
are obtained at the Company’s expense to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors will have access to accurate
and relevant professional views in the performance of their
responsibilities. The Board will review the implementation and
effectiveness of the above mechanisms on an annual basis.

The Directors believe that the objectives of corporate governance
should focus on long-term financial performance and should
not be limited to short-term returns. The Board will not take
unnecessary risks to achieve short-term gains at the expense of
long-term goals.

During the 2022 Financial Year, the chairman of the Company has
held one meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors to discuss the Company’s
strategy, Director’s contributions, and their independent view.

The terms of appointment for all the executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are 3 years. All the Directors shall be elected or removed by the
Shareholders in general meeting according to the Articles.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The policy relating to the board diversity of the Group (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) sets up the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board in order to ensure the members of the Board have
the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities. In determining an optimum composition of the Board
and its committees, the Company will consider all aspects of
diversity, and take into account the Company’'s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The selection of candidates
is based on a range of measurable objectives, including but
not limited to ethnicity, language, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, as well as professional
experience. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
but not limited to business management, finance, audit,
investment, civil engineering and macroeconomic adjustment
and social development. They obtained degrees in various majors
including business administration, accounting, architecture and
civil engineering, finance and sociology. The Board Diversity Policy
also sets out the Board's commitment to gender diversity and
other diversity aspects, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender
parity on the Board. The Company currently has one female
Director, and the Board will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time as and when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates as Directors.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) is of the view that the Board has achieved the
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy and shall review the
Board Diversity Policy and measurable objectives at least annually,
and as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any or necessary amendments on the
Board Diversity Policy and propose the amendments to the Board
for approval.

The Group also adhered to the diversity concept, including but not
limited to the gender perspective, in recruitment of employees. For
the 2022 Financial Year, the Group had 49 employees, of which
approximately 42.86% were female. The Company is of the view
that the current composition of employees has achieved gender
diversity.
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TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Group’s businesses and their statutory
supervision responsibilities as directors of listed companies. The
Company will update the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Group’s businesses as well as the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, where appropriate. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in training
programmes held by qualified professionals in relation to the
revised code and amendments to the relevant Listing Rules, so as
to develop and update their knowledge and skills.

During the 2022 Financial Year, all the Directors have participated
in proper continuous professional development trainings to update
their knowledge and skills by attending briefings, conferences,
programmes, workshops and seminars as well as by way of further
education and self-study, so as to understand their roles, functions
and responsibilities.

A summary of training received by the Directors is as follows:
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Training areas

g E
Listing rules Company'’s
and their internal

compliance regulations
Directors 5% LIHRAKRER 2RFEAIRE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRALAR A v v
Mr. Huang Chunfeng BEEEREE v v
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong RIS v v
Non-executive Directors FFHITESE
Mr. Chau Ting Yan BEMEE v v
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRESE v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFHITESE
Mr. Guo Lu Jin PESEE v v
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang FEWREE v Y
Ms. Gao Hong Hong BAAL LT v v
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During the 2022 Financial Year, three Board meetings and one PR2022FHMBEE R ABIBH=-REEE
AGM were held and the attendance of each Director is set out as GEN—RBREEERG  ZEFHNHERS

follows: MEHUT
Board
meetings AGM
fEER
EEggE BEKE
Executive Directors: HITESE .
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRELARSE A 3/3 11
Mr. Huang Chunfeng =EEREE 3/3 11
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong RN 3/3 11
Non-executive Directors: FEPITESE .
Mr. Chau Ting Yan BEMEE 3/3 11
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE 3/3 11
Independent Non-executive Directors: 15__2 FEBITESE .
Mr. Guo Lu Jin BE&E 3/3 I7Al
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang %ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁi 3/3 1/1
Ms. Gao Hong Hong BAAR T 3/3 11

All the Directors have access to the advice and assistance of the TREENNEETEERATEELRER
joint company secretaries of the Company in relation to the Board RENBIGERBMENZE R R
procedures and corporate governance matters.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded all the matters EERERCRYEE R mITBER
discussed by the Board and the matters resolved. Minutes of RAZEE EER Gmaobr/b BAA T B
Board meetings are kept by the joint company secretaries of EREIMEER UBEAEEXNZEGTH
the Company and are available for inspection by any Director or BB

committee members.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company are segregated and not exercised by the
same individual. The chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhang lJing
Ming and the chief executive officer of the Company is Mr. Huang
Chunfeng.

With the support of the joint company secretaries of the
Company, the chairman of the Board ensures all the Directors are
provided with adequate information on matters discussed at Board
meetings in a timely manner.

REMUNERATION OF COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 13 February
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The majority of committee members are independent
non-executive Directors and the committee chairman is Mr. Guo
Lu Jin. Other committee members are Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang and
Mr. Chau Ting Yan.

The roles of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments (including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment), and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors.
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Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

FINEE G RN Z PR T

Number of meetings BERY 1
Mr. Guo Lu Jin HESRE 171
Mr. Chau Ting Yan BEMEE 11
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang ‘maERfE 1/1

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Remuneration Committee
has considered and reviewed the existing terms of employment
contracts of the executive Directors and the non-executive
Directors.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Company by
band for the 2022 Financial Year are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 13
February 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. The majority of committee members are
independent non-executive Directors and the committee chairman
is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming. Other committee members include Mr.
Guo Lu Jin and Ms. Gao Hong Hong.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience, length of service and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually
and to make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

o to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

o to identify individuals who are qualified/suitable to
become a member of the Board and to select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise,
knowledge and diversity of perspectives required from
members of the Board as well as other requirements
under the Listing Rules will be assessed to determine if the
nomination is suitable;
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o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors to determine their eligibility;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular, the
chairman and the chief executive and the policy concerning
the diversity of the Board members, and the measurable
objectives for implementing such policy;

o to review and implement the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy,
and the progress on achieving these objectives;

o to review and implement the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate. This includes the nomination procedures
and the process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates for directorship set out in the Nomination
Policy; and

o other matters authorised by the Board.
NOMINATION POLICY
Selection Criteria

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy")
for Directors was formally adopted which incorporated the
nomination criteria and principles for Directors that are set out in
the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference. The Nomination
Policy applies to the Directors and where applicable, senior
management prepared for Board positions under the succession
planning of the Company.

The Nomination Policy aims to (i) set out the criteria and process of
the Company in the nomination and appointment of Directors; (ii)
ensure the Board members have the required skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that conforms to the Company’s business;
and (iii) ensure the Board continuity and maintain its leadership
role.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

o character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy;

o any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board;

o requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules;

o any potential contributions that the candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

o willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and Board
committee(s); and

o such other aspects that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where necessary, may be
amended by the Nomination Committee and/or the Board.

Nomination policy
Appointment of New Director

a. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director
and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.
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b. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

C. The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, where applicable.

d. For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above, and make recommendation to the Shareholder
in relation to the resolution on election of a Director at the
general meeting, where applicable.

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

a. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service of the retiring
Director to the Company and the level of participation and
performance on the Board.

b. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director who
stands for re-election continues to meet the criteria as set
out above.

C. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the
resolution on re-election of the retiring Director at the
general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as Director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be set out in the circular to
Shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the
Listing Rules and/or relevant applicable laws and regulations.
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Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings
are as follow:

RR2ZETEZNZTHCHFBUT

Number of meetings BERY 2
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRABASE 4 2/2
Mr. Guo Lu Jin PBRBEE 2/2
Ms. Gao Hong Hong SHA T 2/2

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the existing structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board; assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and reviewed the Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 13 February 2012 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The majority of
committee members are independent non-executive Directors and
the committee chairman is Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang. Other committee
members are Mr. Yin Zong Chen and Ms. Gao Hong Hong.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and to handle any problems of his or her
resignation or dismissal;

° to review and monitor the external auditor's independence,
objectivity, and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards. The Audit
Committee should discuss with the auditor the nature,
scope of the audit, and reporting obligations before the
audit commences;

o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports and accounts, half yearly
reports and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;

° to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control system;
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o to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has the appropriate standing
within the Company, and to review and monitor its
effectiveness; and

o to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as
follow:

. FER M BBAI SNES IZ BB B T1F1S 2 1%
A AR RANEEZNEELSAT
NERHEREF LEHFEBEEN
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. BRNAERNMBERETHRRE
o

BRLZEGERNEHCHFBENT

Number of meetings BERY 3
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang EeoRME 3/3
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE 3/3
Ms. Gao Hong Hong BAAI T 3/3

The Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2022, the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.
During the 2022 Financial Year, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company
over the financial reporting of the Company and reviewed the
2022 audit scope and fees.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditor without the
presence of executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has not established any committee responsible
for the corporate governance function of the Group, and the
function has been collectively performed by the Board. The
Board acknowledges the overseeing of the corporate governance
function by the Board collectively. The Board is responsible for the
corporate governance functions with the following duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations on
changes and updating;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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o to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o such other corporate governance duties and functions set
out in the CG Code (as amended from time to time) for
which the Board are responsible.

The Board has reviewed and approved the Corporate Governance
Report set out in this report. The Board has reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, and the
Company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the
external auditor and shall develop and implement policies on
engaging an external auditor to supply non-audit services.
During the 2022 Financial Year, the Company paid audit fee
of approximately RMB930,000 and non-audit services of
approximately RMB90,000 to the external auditor respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
securities transaction by Directors. Following a specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code for the 2022 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Company's financial statements showing a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibility to the Shareholders on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

. B REEARNBDBEREBTERRE
RIREBIBERED ;

. HE BN AEZEEANEERES
W RTAREGRFM/ WA ;

. BNEABEEEATANEGRMER
TEEEQRSOIWE ; &

. EXEaaNEEERTR (BTAEK
E5]) FTESIZEHMEEXERRHE
R BRE ©

EFECORF RAERBREAEIINEEE
ARG - BEFEERNETATEEEREER
RABH)» R A RB R ERFOEREENGR
Mo

1% EME =

EZLEgTEaEMINEREEMNEED
EETRMEES UNFEREHBREE
SNERIZ BB IR JE W AZ R FE MU IR © 522022
FEMHREE > KABEBINEZEEN DB
F49 N R #930,0000 8 1% & A K IEZ B8R
B4 AR #90,0007T ©

HHERBIRETH

AT B ETHARRIM S OFF SRR 2T
AEREREFTETES S ZRETR]
KAREHR ERESEDREFN20225
M EEIETIRETR -

EERLHEMEIRE ZEE

EXgMRHARSERBEIERENRERE
STEAIRGHREANBDNM B RS UEER
AT 7 PR B B RA TSRO o AR B IR
Bl AR B AR S M IR R B R R IEHAYR R
EEER FNBLAHMRS -

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Corporate Governance Report
EXELARS

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with the supports of finance
department of the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has applied the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and consistently followed the appropriate accounting
policies and provisions of laws.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Supervisory Committee and the Audit Committee to maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems, to
ensure that a review of the effectiveness of such systems has
been conducted at least annually. Such risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Directors and the Board have
an oversight role to determine that appropriate risk management
processes are in place and that these processes are adequate and
effective.

The Board has reviewed the following annually: (a) the changes,
since the last annual review, in the nature and extent of significant
risks (including ESG risks), and the Company’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment; (b) the
scope and quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks (including ESG risks) and of the internal control systems
and the work of internal audit; (c) the extent and frequency of
report by the management of monitoring results to the Board
(or board committee(s)) which enables it to assess control of the
Group and the effectiveness of risk management; (d) significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified during the
period. Also, the extent to which they have resulted in unforeseen
outcomes or contingencies that have had, could have had, or
may in the future have, a material impact on the company’s
financial performance or condition; and (e) the effectiveness of the
processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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The Group’s risk management process involves the identification,
evaluation, response, monitoring and reporting of risks. After risks
that may potentially affect the Group’s business and operations
are identified by the management of the Company, the Board
will perform risk assessment by prioritising the identified risks to
determine key risks exposed to the Group and discuss measures
to mitigate such key risks. Besides, existing risk mitigation
measures are subject to regular monitoring by the management
of the Company, which will review the Group's risk management
strategies, and report such results and make appropriate
suggestions to the Board.

If material internal control defect was noted, the Company would
conduct continuous tracking for the improvement of internal
control defects, and counsel and support the persons in charge of
internal audit function to ensure good rectification results.

The main features of risk management and internal control
structure of the Company are as follows:

o The Board determines the business strategies and
objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines the
nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives of the Group and ensures that the
Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems;

o Heads of major operation units or departments manage
risks through identification and mitigating risks identified
in accordance with the internal guidelines approved by
the Board, the Supervisory Committee and the Audit
Committee;

o The management ensures appropriate actions are taken
on major risks affecting the Group's businesses and
operations; and

o The management is responsible for reporting the findings
of the risk management and internal control, and the
Board will follows up and reviews the same and answer the
questions raised by members of the Supervisory Committee
and the Audit Committee.
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During the 2022 Financial Year, all Directors were informed
about the situation of risk management and followed up on its
handling and the internal control system was reviewed, according
the investigations made by the Supervisory Committee, the
Audit Committee and CT Consultants Limited. As a result of the
foregoing, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and the Audit
Committee consider that the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems were fully, appropriately and effectively
implemented. The Board, with the assistance of the Supervisory
Committee and the Audit Committee, has also reviewed and
expressed its satisfaction on the adequacy of the Company’s
resources, the qualifications and experience of its staff, the
training programmes and the relevant budgets for the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and is required, as soon as reasonably practicable
after any inside information has come to its knowledge, to
disclose the information to the public; and

o has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.
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MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall corporate strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group,
whereas the management of the Company is responsible for the
daily hands-on operation.

When the Board delegates its management and administrative
functions to the management of the Company, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of the management of the Company
and in particular, the management of the Company shall obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Qian Fang Fang was appointed as the joint company secretary
of the Company on 6 March 2014. Mr. Chung Man Wai, Stephen,
engaged from external service provider, was appointed as the
joint company secretary of the Company on 8 September 2020.
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, the chairman of the Board, is the primary
contact for external company secretary. Each of Ms. Qian and
Mr. Chung undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the 2022 Financial Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) has
been adopted by the Board on 29 March 2019. The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders to
be its goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board takes into account,
among others:

o financial performance, liquidity position, business condition
and strategies of the Group;

o actual and future operation and demands for liquidity of
the Group;

o expected future expansion plan of the Group;

o gearing ratio, credit facilities and indebtedness level of the
Group;

o gains, losses, retained profits and distributable reserves of
the Group;
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° general market condition;

o any restrictions against the declaration of dividends; and

o any other relevant factors which the Board may deem
appropriate.

In proposing or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements, future growth and its shareholding value. In
accordance with the Articles, all applicable regulations and factors
above, the Board may, from time to time, pay interim dividends or
special dividends to the Shareholders which the Board considers
reasonable after taking into account of the financial condition
and profit of the Company, and the Company may also announce
final dividends in forms of any currencies at the general meeting,
provided that any dividend must not exceed the amount proposed
by the Board.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time.
The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
for investors to understand the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.shenyang747.com,
to provide up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, and
corporate governance practices.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders, in particular, through the AGM or other
general meetings to communicate with the Shareholders and to
encourage their participation. The chairman of the Board as well
as the chairmen of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available at
the forthcoming AGM to meet with the Shareholders.
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The chairman of the Board, the chairman or the representatives of
each committee together with the external auditor have attended
the AGM for the 2021 Financial Year to answer any questions
raised by the Shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM will be held in June 2023. The notice of
AGM will be sent to the Shareholders in due course.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on the Group’s business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. The Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the investor communication
policy and considered it to be effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and the poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward proposal of general meeting

Two or more Shareholders holding in aggregate 10 per cent or
more of the Shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting may,
in accordance with the requirements set out in the Articles, make
a requisition to the Board to convene a Shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting (the "EGM") or a class meeting thereof stating
the object of the meeting. The Board shall as soon as possible
proceed to convene the EGM or a class meeting thereof after
receiving the requisition.

Shareholders who put forward proposals at general meetings can
also follow the above procedures.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries

Any enquiries regarding the shareholding of H-Shares, including
the transfer of Shares, change of address, loss of certificate, etc.,
should be sent to the Company’s H-Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-16, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Any enquires relating to the Company should be sent to the
Company's business premise for the attention of the chairman of
the Board.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no change in the Articles during the 2022 Financial

Year. The Articles is published on the website of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 37 1% S BT ¥R

E(FE)SHENFEMARAT

/Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
BEARERRHNEBERAR

(incorporated in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 65 to 267, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HNEGLARERRMAERABRKRRK
(PP EA R RHE 2 AL BB R A E])

ER

HMEEBHEGAAZERKRMEBERAR (&
RAE) REWBAT @GifsEEE) TINE
65EE267TEMR MR BI5522022
FENANENGEHFRRERUREEZA
FEENGEEER Ao BEahEMEE
WER - GERAEHREGEERERER
MRtz e MBHRERNT (BEEEEBUR
BE) o

BMRE ZEHREUFRRERES ST
FEAE ((ERAEHMAE)) BENEEH
BHREEL (EBUBREEL) MAEK
NaAMEETY BEEF20224F128318H
REMBERAIRBEEZH IEFEENGEETFE
KRG ERER2 TEEREBATK
B BIREZ BRE

BERZEE

HFIRREBE A G RMAOIE B HE
Al (ERZBER)) ETES - HAREZ
FEANEEFHNRMPIRE NEZEA
BB BREAENEF—E - RiE
BB A ERMAEEG S AMRT TR
(TsFBU)) - A\ SEE BRME
BITRETRNEMBETEE KFIEE
HFIFM RN B RBETERBEE MK
PNEREHER-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FREER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FAREFTEEERBRMNEEHE B A
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HARGREMBRERNEIRAETENS

consolidated financial statements of the current period.

These  HoBtEBERENGANSRAEMET

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the B UERERNES TETEERERN M
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our THELEEEREHEBNER
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEHNIGE

As disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2022, investment properties,
which were stated at fair value, amounted to approximately
RMB235,200,000.

MUAR B M B IRRW 21T IRE S » 72202212831
B EZARBEIIRNEEMERNARE235,200,000

T °©

Loss from changes in fair value of investment properties
of approximately RMB18,200,000 was recognised on the
Group'’s consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

R BEEHE2022F12831HIEFENGEBmRE
RIEMEA N BEEEEIEL ARKBE18,200,0007T ©

The management performed valuations on the fair value
of investment properties with the assistance from an
independent valuer.

EEETEIIGEMNEN THREMENRAEBEE
7T

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included:

PR EEEHREYENTENEAEFEE !

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the independent professional valuer;

— MEBUFXEMGEMNEE EORTEINL

- Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness of

the valuation methodologies; and
— FHMhHEARENEEMRSEY &

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used

in the valuation of investment properties at year
end, including the rental in reversionary period,
vacancy rate, yield, market rents, market unit rate of
individual unit and adjustment factors for size, view
and floor level of property and timing of comparable
transactions against current market data and entity
specific information on a sample basis.

— REXRMLEEVELEMARERAZBENS
B giEERPENES TEX - WHX -miE
HE - BEBMNMSEUREYERR S8 K
BEMNRRERAR  UEARER HRERTIZH
BREBRETEERIETI R ZHEEZH -

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REWEHIGE #)

The fair value of certain investment properties were
determined by adopting the term and reversion analysis of
investment approach. The valuation is sensitive to market
rents with key inputs including rental in reversionary period,
vacancy rate and yield.
ETREMEAABENRBARER EZNERKRERL D
T - HEHNEBRMRBA BN TISHESHR  8fF
ERPANEE ETEX R EE-

The fair values of certain investment properties were
determined by adopting the direct comparison method.
The valuation is sensitive to market unit rate of comparable
properties and adjustment factors for size, view and floor
level of property and timing of the comparable transactions.
ETREMERAANEBENDRAEFLBIAETE o hEY
AILEMENT S BUXRRYEER KRB REENRAE
R R LU P EE A 5 BB R 2 HR R ©

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the judgements involved in determining the inputs used in
the valuation.
EMRAREMENLERMESHEE JVHERKRE
MERERGEMBRRPFAENESEER MLEE
& P68 A RO A\ BB B e ) i o
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Impairment assessment of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties

BB E P (15T 2 B9 I

As disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
statements, at 31 December 2022, deposits of assessment of deposits paid for acquisition of properties
approximately RMB149,100,000 (the “Properties included:

Deposits”) was paid for acquisition of properties (the I UNIBYIZEFAZ T EMBENENEHEFE
“Properties Acquisition”). I

MANAR S AT ERARMIEE 24P BR 102022128318 B

U (MRUREE)) X (T5T24 ARE149,100,000 —  Performing an independent check on the

7t (MEeTE ) © ownership of the land in which the properties
located;

The management performed a valuation on the properties —  ¥#JZFrTER L EAEETHE RS ;

with the assistance from an independent professional valuer.

With reference to the valuation, the management concluded — Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

that an impairment loss of approximately RMB11,046,000 objectivity of the independent professional valuer;

was recognised in respect of the Properties Deposits as at 31 —  FHEB Y FEGEMPIBT I BENREEMN ;

December 2022.

EEETRUSXLEMBE THYEETEHE K2
ZhE%R BERBEL 1120225128318 s EsT£
FESERLE R EAY AR 1511,046,0007T

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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Impairment assessment of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties (Continued)

BKIBY E TS (15T £ BB EFFIG ()

We identified the impairment assessment of the Properties —
Deposits for the Properties Acquisition as a key audit
matter due to the fact that management’s assessment of
the recoverable amount of the Properties Deposits involved
significant judgment. -
ENEEERYEXI I NRESBENMEH I RERH

&> R E BN =T 2 RRET LY FRR S

5T -

Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness
of the valuation methodologies;

HEGERENBEEE KGR ;

Evaluating the reasonableness of source data of
significant inputs, including comparable market
transactions used by the valuer;
TEEAREARBIEN GRS  SIEGEMFTA
AILEIBR S ;

Obtaining an understanding from the management
about the status of the construction process and
progress of the Properties Acquisition;

MEERE TR IBEERMERBERNBR

Obtaining a confirmation from the vendor with
respect to the amount of the Properties Deposits as
at 31 December 2022;

BEHEENR2022F12831 B =] ENE

=3 .
RE

Reviewing the relevant correspondences and
documents provided by the management to
evaluate the status and progress of the Properties
Acquisition; and
BREEERMAVERER R H LT Y ZER
BERARER &

Discussing with the management on the timing on
when the Properties Acquisition can be finalised.

HEEENRYERBAREE
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Impairment assessment on other receivables

B fth Y7k B 8 18 5T

As disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
gross amount of other receivables of approximately
RMB165,576,000, and an allowance of credit losses of
approximately RMB123,436,000 were included in the
Group'’s consolidated statement of financial position.

MU AR & BT IR R MIEE28FT K B8 > 122022512831
H> ESEBEHMEBKRRBENSARE165,576,000
o MEEBEBRENAR123,436,000E5tA &
ERNGEMBARAR

The impairment loss on other receivables, net of reversal,
of approximately RMB36,886,000 was recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

R EBEEHE2022F12831HEFENGKSIBH
REREMEWAR R EEE (NRER) AR ARE
36,886,0007T °

The allowance for credit loss of other receivables represents
the management's best estimates at the end of the reporting
period of expected credit losses under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9: Financial Instrument’s Expected
Credit Loss Model, with the assistance of an independent
professional valuer.
HERNE SRS IBREISTE L X G EMTHE
T EEEREBEEEYBREENFZSESRMIAI BN
REHRATEHREESERA TRAGEFENREM
E

The management assessed whether the credit risk of other
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and apply a three-stage impairment model to
calculate their expected credit losses.
BEEMEEMBWRNESEREEN T EEBLERES
BE LA WERA=REHERAESABEERREERS
o

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of other receivables included:

HIE E AR EHEMNE SR 838 -

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer;

— MEBUBRGEMNEE EEORFERNLE

- Understanding and evaluating the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination;

— MBFALTHEERAEEEEEANG A TG
BABENRETEEAE2HEESE;

- For the historical information, discussing with the
management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit
risk, defaults and credit-impaired receivables,
corroborated management’s explanation with
supporting evidence;

— HRBEEN HEBEENRUATHREEEER
HAEERBEZEEN BENOREERERU
Mo UZFERESEIEENRE ;

- For forward-looking measurement, assessing the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data;

—  HRAEMESE SHEEBEREE - KESIR
REERARSEE  WHAILERITEBIRRT
B REEE;

- Challenging the management the sufficiency of
impairment loss based on the specific facts and
circumstances; and

— REABSERBEREREEEHRERBENE
HEESRE ) &

026 EHRE BHLABERRNARAT
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Impairment assessment on other receivables B =g BT 1S (48)

(Continued)

The measurement models of expected credit losses involves —
significant management judgement and assumptions,
primarily including the following:
FEHEEFEENGI 2RI RBEBEAHEB KBRS —
FEEFEUTRIE !

o selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default;

. WESBERARBEEAEESESH OFEE
MR BORBRRARRENRE

o criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and

. BERRAEERBRBERMBIENNERNS &

o economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

. AIREM ST BRTEER  URERRE SRk #E
Eo

We consider impairment assessment on other receivables
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the significant
estimates and judgement involved in determining the
expected credit losses allowance on the other receivables.
RPIR A EMEUGRIEN R BTG RARESEE It
TSHERERGEMBRENEE ! & E T HMERRIE
MFEHAE B R IR R PTY IRBY E R (5T R H i o

Checking major data inputs used in the expected
credit loss models on sample basis to the Group's
record.

HEZE SEELRNTEREEEHEEENMA
NFEHIRBAE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hth&E#

EARESFHHMENGS - HMhEHE
ETHERERANER EF8REEaME
BRRBFIBZBENRE o

RPYGANERRNER LRSS
B RATRE ZE EMENEEAAER

BYEESE S ©

BEHANESMBRRNES  ZANE
EERBHEMEL  FULBRET > TR HA
ENERHGEMBRERUKMAEESBERE
R T BB R EERBRERELUFFHE
BEAHEBNBR - ERBRMHEATHNIE
MRBFDSEMBERFEERIER > R
RERTRFE - MLRMULEARSES
g0

EFXREREANAIMGSMBRREAK
EHNEE

BB B BT IR A B R BB A MR BRI EE
BEREEEMAANG SRS 1
HAAEE S MBERRNBEREEHR
R o S AR T B0 B A SR P R B PO BB
HlEE.

ERUGEESUHFRERT BERFAEFEES
Hh EEEFECENESD TEBERE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

ZHEMMEHR A M B RRAENEE

HANER EHREMBREEEES T
FEBRPRFFRERMENNERERNE
BERFRRD I HASRERMAERZBEENR
HoRBERMBHEZEMHFR HMAESE
RERERIFHER S  FRILMUIN AR ST EH
AR - AT ER AT SN T EFHEA
ALTEERE LERE - SEBRERSKTHN
fRe8 > EREREBRVEBZBERETH
B AR —ERERFERBERIE I8
ORI LA ARG SRR S e IR G IERHE
PPN ERER I SER B M BREME
FA#& R FB AR & A TS B AR P 1R L BOASTER E
AIERABISEERPIMRIFE R

ERESERBENETESFNBRESD &K
PERT FXAE R TEXREREE-
IR

— RN EREGE AR M B AR
GMBREFEERNBERVEAR &
SHRHITESRFE UGS LR
URERFTRMBEENERE F
HEFERER - HICEREFRISEY
KB RIE - BRER  ERBRTL
SEERRENMERIZ £ FIERAEE
RAMFMERNEABRNEARES
RARBERIBEERME M ERIER
BY LR ©

—  THRAEFFTHEBERIES ) UKE
BENEFER BEENLIFYE &
EEABEFINERIEERER -

—  HMB SATESMERAESBREN
BN R & SHE S ABRIRER
aEM-
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

R B AMBRREENEE (@
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BEMN RBIEMERNETRE
HEESGFEHREERBREMNE
AAEES KMAEENRYE B85
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IRV E R B > B MIEE &M
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EHIEFTBENE RS - AT K
REENFEITTEER SEEFE
FEKE o
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THo

- © EEERNERNEFTIINY
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chung Chi Chiu

Practising Certificate Number: P0O6610

8/F., Catic Plaza

8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A 42 £
ﬁ\rr\ 0 *E m 13§
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F128310IEFE

Continuing operations

Revenue
Contracts with customers
Leases

Total revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Impairment losses under expected
credit loss model, net of reversal

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of deposits paid

Loss from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net

Exchange gain, net

Depreciation

Staff costs

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operation

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Loss for the year

FRIEERT

Wz
BEREX
HE

L
HEM

=7

HARA

TRHEERIBRAE T
REREE  HNFREE

eI ERBRREE
B8

REMELNAEEEHD
1R
HEM B QB m PR
b 52 W i 5 2R

e

BT A

HMEERM

RAE A

PR AR
PRSI

REFBEEEXERZ
FREE

BRIEEER

REDRIREER
FRmm )

FREHE

20202FEEHRE

24

21

10

12

13

14

2022
RMB’000

ARBTR

27,959 46,075
1,468 947
29,427 47,022
(26,610) (46,336)
2,817 636
1,920 2,490
(36,900) (5,344)
(11,046) (7,170)
(18,200) (13,900)
= 12,381

17 1,193
(1,300) (1,257)
(6,845) (6,649)
(5,809) (9,984)
(478) (67)
(75,824) (27,621)
- (6)
(75,824) (27,627)
= 2,553
(75,824) (25,074)

BEHLRERRNARAR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

& A 42 A.l<
ZElEmER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

2022
RMB’000

ARBTR

(Loss) profit for the year attributable

to owners of the Company:
— from continuing operations
— from discontinued operation

Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Loss for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests:
— from continuing operations
— from discontinued operation

Loss for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests

Loss per share

From continuing and discontinued
operations
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)

From continuing operations
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)

ERBRHEAEAEEER
(B548) #F) :
—REFEEEED
—REERILEEEES

EREHAAEEER
B8

FFEERRE R EIGFE ARG :

—REFECEES
—REBRIEEEXER

FFERE S I FEARESIE

BREHE
REFEEERBRLE
—2X (ARED)

—#E ARED)

REFBEEER
—2x (ARED)

—#% ARED)

(73,521) (26,090)
= 2,554
(73,521) (23,536)
(2,303) (1,537)
- (1
(2,303) (1,538)
(75,824) (25,074)

16
(5.00) (1.60)
N/A REH N/A F5E A
(5.00) (1.78)
N/A FEH N/A RE A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mElEmkHEMEENRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

2022
RMB’'000
ARBTT
Loss for the year FREE (75,824) (25,074)
Other comprehensive expense Htz2mMAx
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEN S EEEmIEA
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in BAnBESAEMEZERA
equity instruments at fair value HNERATARENARNEE
through other comprehensive income 518 (3,683) (3,031)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HERISEEM T IEERm 2 HH &
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on ME BN EFEST 2 ERELR
translation of foreign operations (11) 9)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FREMEER > {NRFTEH
net of income tax (3.694) (3,040)
Total comprehensive expense for FREEMZEEE
the year (79,518) (28,114)
Total comprehensive expense THEGEEMAS 4R !
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company S UN=TEZZ= DN (77,215) (26,470)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (2,303) (1,644)
(79,518) (28,114)
Total comprehensive (expense) EATHEE AEMWL
income attributable to owners of 2| (BR) Wnas4eEE .
the Company:
— from continuing operations —REFEREEE (77,215) (28,894)
— from discontinued operation —REBEARILREER - 2,424
(77,215) (26,470)

20202FEEHRE

BEHLRERRNARAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBERRER

At 31 December 2022
72022%12831H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

Deposits paid
Deferred tax assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development
Contract costs

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Deposits and other receivables
Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities — current portion

Other borrowings

Amount due to a non-controlling interest
Amount due to a shareholder

Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

IERBEE

Y ENVISE 4]

EREEE

REMZE

BRAnEBESARMEE
WA (HEAREEEA
Hth2mEWKA) BIRA
I8

B 5%

TFIERIBREE

MEBEE
FIEERBIYE
CLEIES

FE UL BR X

BHEE

5] R HLAth FE IR
= IRFUIRTTAE R
ReEMReFEERE

mREBAR

FE(TBRR

GBHERE
HMEARRESER
MERE- RO
HAER

B —RIFE R R R IR
B —RIREREA
RIEER

MEEEFE

BWEERRBER

18
20
21

23
24
35

19
25
26
27
28
29
29

30
31
32
33
34
41
41

2022

RMB’000

ARBTT
441 597
567 930
235,200 253,400
28,169 31,852
130,884 141,930
31 31
395,292 428,740
175,580 129,268
72,926 100,518
13,125 =
433 295
43,212 140,272
41,856 77,101
6,557 7,083
353,689 454,537
116,144 150,443
= 10,488
51,245 64,212
547 760
5,415 =
- 1,621
511 943
1,483 1,494
175,345 229,961
178,344 224,576
573,636 653,316




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRER

At 31 December 2022
72022%12831H

2022
RMB’000
ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBMEE
Other payables and accruals HithEmIERESER 32 258 258
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaE-IEREED 33 27 189
285 447
NET ASSETS BEFE 573,351 652,869
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHE
Share capital Rg 7 36 1,469,376 1,469,376
Reserves B (895,642) (818,427)
Equity attributable to owners KNBVHER ANELER
of the Company 573,734 650,949
Non-controlling interests JEITREHE = (383) 1,920
TOTAL EQUITY RS 573,351 652,869

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 267 were FEO5E E267BNFNRE MR KES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 BR2023F3A308MERIREE > WHT

March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: FIEENREE .
Zhang Jing Ming Leng Xiao Rong
SRELEA IR
Director Director
EFE EE

W0EERE BRABPRERMERAET 69
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mMEEmEFR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE202612831HLEEE

At 1 January 2021
Loss for the year

Qther comprehensive (expense) income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI

Items that may be redlassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations

Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year,
net of income tax

Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37)
At 31 December 2021
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments at
FvTOC

ftems that may be redlassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations

Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of
income tax

Total comprehensive expense for the year

At 31 December 2022

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEZEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

EHZE20225E12A310IEEE
Notes:
(a) Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the value of net assets
acquired and the nominal value of domestic shares issued as a result
of the incorporation of the Company as a joint stock limited company
and the share premium from the issuance of H-shares.

(b) Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required to set aside 10% of its profit after taxation
prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and
regulations to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches
50% of their respective paid up capital or registered capital, where
further appropriation will be made at the directors’ recommendation.
Such reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred or increased the
capital.

() Distributable reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, distributable reserve shall
be the lower of the accumulated distributable profits determined in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations as stated
in the PRC statutory audited financial statements and the accumulated
distributable profits determined in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The Group did not have
any reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

(d) FVTOCI reserve

The FVTOCI reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising from
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI that have been recognised
in other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or
loss when those equity instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of. Gains
and losses arising from revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI will
not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Wizt

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

IR s E

B i B IR P E EEER A AT
BRBHERADEMRIMETHONER
EiE2 M HES MRS THIR A £ 05
Gt

EEBRBRAEE

RIEPE G StERFOER  AEBBEZRR
BIEMPEII0%EREERFATRES  H
R AEESEIRER AR R AT
BAMS0% E—PHNRARAEERES-
ZABE UAERCEEENEABER
1BANAR A o

AN EZ

RIEBEPEBRZRG IRHIEZEEAR
AP EE R ROEREE 2 #S R P EE
ERBZMFRETZ Rt A H# o REH £21R
BEAARGTRAEE Z Rt A 9KkiE
FME 2 BRIEE - REEN2022F K%20214F
128318 it fEAE Al o] 5 Ao 2 #4 ©

BRAAGBESAEMEEBANGHE

BRAABEESARMEEBRANREEERER
Hth2EWARZNIZAABESARME
HWARNRATASGHEEN R RERE
B HBERERANBESAEMESENRA
NEZTANEERENDEEEENE
B-BAABESFARMEEKRANRAEAT
ASEMEENRERBENERBBETE
EMOEEREm -

02:2FERSE BHRABEERMAERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

& AL N-J=1}
EEREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
EHZE2022512831HIEEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year
— From continuing operations
— From discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Income tax
Interest income
Dividends from equity investments
Rent concession
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment losses on other receivables, net

(Reversal) impairment losses on contract assets,
net

Impairment losses on trade receivable

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
deposits paid

Loss from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net

Loss on written-off of property,
plant and equipment

Finance cost

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Increase in properties under development
Decrease in contract costs
Decrease in deposits and other receivables
Increase in trade receivables
Increase in contract assets
Decrease in trade payables
Decrease in contract liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other payables and accruals

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EEER
FAEE
—REFESEES
—RERIEEEES
A
FriS#
FBUA
RIERERE
e
ME - -BERREITE
ERREEITE
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FER
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FEAS BRF R L

aHaRRLD

HMEA KRB ER
1@an Geizl)

HEEFFARE
[SENFRIEETD

REEBFIRAREFE

2022

RMB’000
ARBTT

(75,824) (27,627)
= 2,553

= 6
(25) (153)
(1,661) (2,136)
- (32)

165 133
1,135 1,124
36,886 5,331
(12) 13

26 =
11,046 7,170
18,200 13,900
= (14,953)

- 66

478 67
(9,586) (14,538)
(46,312) (7,452)
26,409 31,243
60,174 17,634
(13,151) =
(126) (308)
(33,116) (560)
(10,488) (44,438)
3,022 (6,394)
(23,174) (24,813)
11) 9)
(23,185) (24,822)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Dividends received from equity investments
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment to a shareholder

(Repayment to) advance from non-controlling
interest

Decrease (increase) in restricted bank balances

Repayment of lease liabilities
New other borrowings raised

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
31 DECEMBER, represented by:
Bank balances and cash

2022
RMB’000
ARETIT
BB IEE
BWFIE 25 153
RIERECD WL E 1,661 2,136
HEWBATMNIRER
HEE = 31,109
IEEM B AT MRS RA
FEE - 17
BEYE  -BERRE 9) (690)
REZEFSREFEE 1,677 32,725
REEE
BIIREEIER (16,421) (1,210)
JEFERR MR (GBR) B
(1,621) 1,621
SIRHISRTTAEGR R
(3 10) 35,245 (1,275)
BEHEaR (1,210) (1,294)
SEMNEMER 5,000 =
KE (AR MEFHN
REFEE 20,993 (2,158)
HeRkHEEEEIER
GREZL) 1810558 (515) 5,745
MB1HHNBRERRES
B1EE 7,083 2,497
EREHTE, FEE 11) (1,159)
EXNRERREEE
HHE 6,557 7,083
R12B31HNREREE
EEIEEH B :
IRITHERRIRE 6,557 7,083
002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= o

ekt e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a joint stock limited company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The address of the principal place of business of the
Company in PRC has been changed from Room 2-12-
5, Block B, Diwang Club Apartment, No. 19 Wenyi Road,
Shenhe District, Shenyang, the PRC to Room 3802, Block
N, Zhidi Mansion, No. 55, Xinghua North Street, Tiexi
District, Shenyang, the PRC with effect from 1 September
2021.

The address of the registered office of the Company in PRC
is No. 1-4, 20A, Central Street, Shenyang Economic and
Technological Development Zone, the PRC.

The address of the principal place of business in Hong
Kong has been changed from 8/F, Skyway Centre, 23
Queen’s Road West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong to Room
2507, 25/F, Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong
Kong with effect from 1 September 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42
to the consolidated financial statements. The Group was
also engaged in credit business which was discontinued
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (Note 13).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) are RMB.

The Company’s H-shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 16 December 1999.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment —
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
specify that the costs of any item that were
produced while bringing an item of property, plant
and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the relevant
property, plant and equipment is functioning
properly) and the proceeds from selling such items
should be recognised and measured in the profit or
loss in accordance with applicable standards. The
cost of the items are measured in accordance with
HKAS 2 Inventories.

The application of the amendments in the current
year has had no impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance.

2.

RAKEITNERMBHRSEN (F
AMBREER)) @

RS ERH MBS T B RIS

WEER @
2.1 [EREEEEGERF163E (5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

The Group has applied the amendments for
the first time in the current year. The annual
improvements make amendments to the following
standards:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
assessing whether modification of terms of original
financial liability constitutes substantial modification
under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes
only fees paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged as at the date of
initial application,1 January 2022.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of reimbursement relating
to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
remove any potential confusion.

The application of the amendments in the
current year has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts’

RAKEITNERMBHRSEN (F
AMBREER)) @

B A8 B 14 SR 4 35 B 18 R AR A
AIEARMBREER

REEEKRIRFERAUTEEMEH
REBIR B RAMES] BB K

HEQ

BEAMBREER REBEL
F175% (81520204
108 R2022828 2
BAMBREED
BT 21T )

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Non-current Liabilities as
Covenants (2022)3

Disclosure of Accounting Polices'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may
require items in financial statements to be measured in a
way that involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items to be measured
at monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly
and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions
based on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender does not
test compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2022, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (2022) ("the 2022 Amendments”)

The 2022 Amendments modify the requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 1 issued in 2020,
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (“the
2020 Amendment”) on how an entity classifies debt and
other financial liabilities with covenants as current or non-
current. The amendments specify that only covenants with
which the entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity's right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Covenants which are required
to comply with only after the reporting period do not
affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE202612831HLEEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (2022) (“the 2022 Amendments”)
(Continued)

The amendments also specify the disclosure requirements
about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right
to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the
entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting period.

The amendments also defer the effective date of the 2020
Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. The amendments, together with
the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. If an entity applies the 2020
amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the
2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2022, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

84

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material
to its financial statements. Guidance and examples are
added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group's
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so
that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant assets
and liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant assets and liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised)
and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with the right-of-use
assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group's annual
reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2023. As at
31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to the
amendments amounted to approximately RMB567,000
and RMB574,000 respectively. The cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments will be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated
losses (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
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A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

Bt BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1  Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1  Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technigue that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. EEMBERREHEBEERTETHK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT R @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1  Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31  IREUBERRENEE @
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair Lo BB EMS > A0
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, BEFEDAE R - FIR
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs NE=R BREAERZE DTS
to the fair value measurements are observable BEANRBETEZWAR
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value Bz BRREERZAAR
measurement in its entirety, which are described as BHARBESECERE
follows: M B
. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices . FE—REABEIEZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and
no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment
properties which are subsequently measured under
fair value model and financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and
assets which includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The acquired processes
are considered substantive if they are critical to the
ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills,
knowledge, or experience to perform the related
processes or they significantly contribute to the
ability to continue producing outputs and are
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

For business combinations in which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet
the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the "Conceptual
Framework”) except for transactions and events
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21,
in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases of
which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-
use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable
or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or group of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
the group of cash-generating units).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

Bt BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’'s performance as the Group

performs;

o the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to

date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct

good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented

on a net basis.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to
by the parties to the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

Bt BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

(Continued)

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for

any significant financing component.
Contract costs

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction of infrastructure and development of
properties. The Group first assesses whether these
costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of
other relevant standards, failing which it recognises
an asset for these costs only if they meet all of the

following criteria:

(a) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can

specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources
of the Group that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance

obligations in the future; and

(0) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the
goods or services to which the assets relate. The

asset is subject to impairment review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. EEMBERREHEBEERTETHK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT R @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 FEGHEEK®

Leases HE

Definition of lease HAENESR

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract MENELTRENT R

conveys the right to control the use of an identified FMAESIE#HNEENER

asset for a period of time in exchange for DBEARE B &858 —1EHE

consideration. ExBgHEE

For contracts entered into or modified on or after MREREREBUBRS

the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or ZAFI16RBRAH 2 BEI L

arising from business combinations, the Group NETHAEFSHMESL

assesses whether a contract is or contains a HNENMms > REEKRRB

lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at 1E5T B ERs IR S B HR (WE )

inception, modification date or acquisition date, as REREBUBREGENSE

appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed 16REBTHERTHENZE

unless the terms and conditions of the contract are ShR—EHENEEIEE %

subsequently changed. SRR EWENTE ) BRIE
ZENTHNERERRGEHEER
I

The Group as a lessee FEBEREBEA

Allocation of consideration to components of a B EEA T

contract

For a contract that contains a lease component MEBHEER D UK —IEY

and one or more additional lease or non-lease ZIBFRIINEENIFHER D

components, the Group allocates the consideration HNEHAME AERRKRSL1

in the contract to each lease component on the BRREEZHERD BER

basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease HMERSNAEREBILIER K

component and the aggregate stand-alone price of JEFRE R D RVABB L EAE o

the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RAMBRRENEERTEGH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT R @&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 FEGHEEK®
Leases (Continued) HE @
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBEEREBEAN @
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets HHERREESEHES
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition AEET BME B HAEAE
exemption to leases of office that have a lease term BANZEAIUTEFTEE
of 12 months or less from the commencement EERENBA=HERRARE
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also A ERRRR ANEET
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low- BEBEEENTEERERBER
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases M MM EREEEEE
and leases of low-value assets are recognised HMEMNBEENMMRILNERA
as expense on a straight-line basis or another MEHEHNS —R2FIEEE
systematic basis over the lease term. R T
Right-of-use assets EHESE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: EREEENMABE !
. the amount of the initial measurement of . HEaBZYBEE
the lease liability; I
. any lease payments made at or before . P RE H A 2 Rl E
the commencement date, less any lease HEAEAENT B
incentives received; FERIBWHEEE ;
. any initial direct costs incurred by the . KEBEENEM
Group; and WWEERA ; &
. an estimate of costs to be incurred by . KEBRIFRERFS
the Group in dismantling and removing EREEE -EREMRE

EFfES M EE RN
HEEEAENMKEN
R A5 14 B 3R B9 R
B L 5T EEE BB AS ©

the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities other than adjustments to lease liabilities
resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

3.

2022FEIRE

REMBRRGEREERTEG K

K@

3.2

FEGFHHE @
HE @
FEBMEREBA B
RAEEE (B)

ERAREERMRAREMNSR
SHTE R BEBEE L5t
HESRNERNEMEF
HEE BEXxEEEARITE
B 7AM201978 4K 5% 3 % A8
HETRAPMERNEES
RABERIN -

REBESEMBEENHRG
RENEGENNWHAMBEAEEE
BARNERAREERRAS
HHREER R FHRERE
SHErE - EHMBER T » £
REEERBZENHEMGS
AIEAERRER UBREE
=) AEHRITE -

FEBRGEMHRTERA
REREEERY ABIA
Ho

FIROEIEERT &

ENTREBEESELRE
ERAMBRESERBIFTA
RO BRAREBESE B
REDBHHRABEFLH
AEBERGESEINEEMNRE
STAERREEMA -

BEHLRERRNARAR

105



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. EEMBERREHEBEERTETHK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT R @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 FEGHEEK®

Leases (Continued) HE @

The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBEEREBEAN @

Lease liabilities HEAE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group RHEEMRBRE RERMUR
recognises and measures the lease liability at the ZHBAHAZMNNEENR
present value of lease payments that are unpaid NIRERILTEHEEE-
at that date. In calculating the present value of HHEENRESNERZEE
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental AlxEEEERANREERB

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if

HHRY IR 8 EMA) X5t HE

the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily ERAIRE

determinable.

The lease payments include: ZEREMNMEE !

. fixed payments (including in-substance . BEMR (BIEEEE
fixed payments) less any lease incentives TE AT TR Rk A 1A FE U AR
receivable; EEBE;

. variable lease payments that depend on an . BURR —IBfE B tE =

index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a

lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

WA RREMR 05
AR BYA B ARSI
R ;

FErBERERETEAE
RSt

KEREGEMEERT
ERRERIITEE
P4

AR IEREM I AIE
M (H R R R A EE
IE1TEAR IETHERE) o

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are REBEE AEaEURE

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR R MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market
rent review, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

3. REMBRRGEREERTEG K

K@

32 IEBEFHBRG®E
HE @
FEBEREBA @
THEE1E (8)

W HIBLUUTER  AEBEN
StEREARE (AR ER
REEFLAERAR

. HEA PR E TS
BEERNIEELES
B EZBR T HEH
HEEEEBEREMR
STl B ARRVAE(E ST AL3R
KRALRIETTHE I
MmEHMtE -

. HRHiEEEEERS
SHEESESHEREERN
MELEEE) FULER
o ERNBRERY
EERMNBENRERE
TR LIE T E1HE
MEE&E-

KEEBPAR G MBI TR A
HEER2IBERER-

02:2FERSE BHRABEERMAERAT

107



108

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and any
appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modlfications (Continued)

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component. The associated non-lease
components are included in the respective lease
components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient
not to assess whether the change is a lease
modification if all of the following conditions are

met:

o the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only

payments originally due on or before 30
June 2022; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

o there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for
the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value
model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases
(Continued)

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rate prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. When a fair value gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit
or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When
a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rate
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserves (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
Settlements of monetary items which formed part
of net investment in foreign operations without
changes in the Group’s ownership interests is not
considered as partial disposals.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-
market rate of interest is treated as a government
grant, measured as the difference between
proceeds received and the fair value of the loan
based on prevailing market interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. EEMBERREHEBEERTETHK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT R @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 FEGHEK @
Employee benefits BEE=H
Retirement benefits costs ROFEF LA
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit REX EENRARENETEI &
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund BEIMEABETENEHIANR
Scheme are recognised as an expense when RESRHRBMAIZEZE
employees have rendered service entitling them to HREER AR

the contributions.

Termination benefits AUEFER

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at BitwflzaBRERsERr
the earlier of when the group entity can no longer AEBCHIRERIEENERE
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and s RIS REMARAER
when it recognises any related restructuring costs. UBREERZE) B
Short-term employee benefits FZEIES #E

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at i EE RN N EEIRHERY
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected BFRLTE AT 2T B FIAY R ALIR
to be paid as and when employees rendered the SRR -FTBERBEEET
services. All short-term employee benefits are mRRARS BRIES—EEE
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS MBS ER BRI AFTRE
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in RAE ) A B E R A > B {E R
the cost of an asset. 3 ©

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to EHRERZMNERELE
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual % HEESESHNEN BT
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount BRFE FRERR ERa
already paid. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management, including
costs of testing whether the related assets is
functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the
extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off
the cost of assets other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development which are intended
to be sold upon completion of development and
properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
under development are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of
the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Properties under development (Continued)

Properties under development for sale are
transferred to properties for sale upon completion.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from change in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
A leased property which is recognised as a
right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group
as intermediate lessor classifies the sublease
as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances
that are subject to regulatory restrictions
that result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-
term (generally with original maturity
of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and cash equivalents as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management. Such overdrafts
are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is
subject to third party contractual restrictions are
included as part of cash unless the restrictions result
in a bank balance no longer meeting the definition
of cash. Contractual restrictions affecting use of
bank balances are disclosed in Note 28.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal and constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

4= A

REMBRRGREERTEGK
K@

3.2

FEGFHHE @
REKRFEEEEE @

e RERERMS  HE
REEEEREREN LR
ENRERIFEEFEEE M
FRAEREREZNRMIRTE
X BEMAERIEEEENE
PUEB D o RF BN R E R
BIR R 2HEEHAERR °

FEEERZEE AR
B ERITAS BR TS 5 (F IR & &6
7 FRIERB EBIRITEER T
BRNGRENE FERITE
BR £ FB B G A9 IR I 75 I MY 5
28 FE °

A

HWAEBRRKAMBESH
AEEME CEERMEEE) > M
EERAIERAFEZEE
BEESEIE ARG A
GRS -

EEBEBEHEZZEIREE
& B R Fr M 75 B9 L B e 1~ e
ERR® RRESHARSEE
ZEMBEEMAAENREN
RIEME o B H T ERIRE
ZEMBEENGFHERESAE
stE A HREERZFRE
MENRE (HERBEE
MEEEX) o

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising
from past events but is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for
an obligation, the part of the obligation that is
expected to be met by other parties is treated as a
contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine
whether an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a
provision is recognised in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in which
the change in probability occurs, except in the
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a settlement
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from
the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income
if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial
assets (including trade receivable, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances and restricted
bank balances) and other items (contract assets)
which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivable and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

0) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE202612831HLEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the
debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

0) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE202026128310LEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes-off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written-off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivable, contract assets and deposits and
other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

REMBRRGREERTEGK

K@

3.2

FTEG

sHEUER ()

ERMTH @

MBEE (&)

R EBHM B REZERE T
HEFIEHEEEERAM
BBz HE (&)

(v)

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SHERERTEREEE
B (&

R BRI BEE
PEEAR B B TS
IS EAIERR
s> TR RIERT -
HBR AL E 2
AR AE B o

FERBBABEERT
BRREEMNRmE
BB R ITERRE
Wik SRS 4R > MR IR
FABHNEE ST
Fe EAth FE WRRIB B 51 -
BB @18 A IR
TEFEREE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022

EHZE2022512831HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including (trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities, amount due
to a non-controlling interest/a shareholder and
other borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, (if
any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs (Continued)

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for
assets capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15,
the Group assesses and recognises any impairment
loss on other assets related to the relevant contracts
in accordance with applicable standards. Then,
impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised as
contract costs is recognised to the extent the
carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive
in exchange for related goods or services less
the costs which relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as
expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs
are then included in the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit to which they belong for the
purpose of evaluating impairment of that cash-
generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract
costs (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Bt BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and

equipment, right-of-use assets and contract

costs (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating units or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash generating units or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3.2, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The Directors have not come
across any significant areas where critical judgement are

involved in applying the Group’s accounting policies.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment loss on deposit paid for
acquisition of properties |

The impairment loss on deposit paid for acquisition of
the Properties | was based on the assessment of the
recoverable amount of such deposit, which requires an
estimation of the fair value of the Properties | at the date
of the acquisition. The assumptions include management's
estimation on the market unit rate. Changes to the
assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of
the Properties I. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amount of deposit paid for acquisition of the Properties
| subject to impairment assessment were approximately
RMB130,884,000 (2021: RMB141,930,000). Impairment
loss of approximately RMB11,046,000 was recognised
to deposit paid for acquisition of the Properties | (2021:
RMB7,170,000). Details of the impairment testing on
deposit paid for acquisition of the Properties | are disclosed
in Note 24.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments at
Fvrod

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s unlisted equity
instruments, amounting to RMB28,169,000 (2021:
RMB31,852,000) are measured at fair value with fair value
being determined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to fair value of these instruments. See Note
6(c) for further disclosures.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves certain
assumptions of market conditions which are set out in
Note 21.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties (Continued)

Relying on the valuation report, the Directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. In light of the negative impact of the Covid-19
pandemic, the independent valuers included uncertainty
clauses in the valuation reports in respect of investment
properties located in PRC amounted to RMB235,200,000
(2021: RMB253,400,000) as at 31 December 2022.
Whilst the Group considers valuations of the Group’s
investment properties are the best estimates, the ongoing
Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market
volatility depending on how the Covid-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve, which have led to higher degree of
uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current
year. Changes to these assumptions, including the
potential risk of any market violation, policy, geopolitical
and social changes or other unexpected incidents as a
result of change in macroeconomic environment, travel
restrictions implemented by many countries, increased
complexity in international trade tensions geopolitics,
changes in policy direction and/or mortgage requirements,
or other unexpected incidents would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
Group’s investment properties is RMB235,200,000 (2021:
RMB253,400,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties under
development

Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The Directors make
significant judgements in determining the net realisable
value of these properties, which involved the estimation
of selling prices of the properties based on current
market prices of properties of comparable locations and
conditions, the costs necessary to make the sales and
the construction costs to complete based on the existing
development plans, the legal and regulatory framework
and general market conditions, where applicable. Changes
in the assumptions relating to these factors could result
in material adjustment to the net realisable value of the
properties under development.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables

Trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables are
assessed for ECL individually. The provision rate are based
on internal credit ratings and taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the expected
loss rates in the current year as there is higher risk that a
prolonged pandemic could led to increased credit default
rates. The information about the ECL and the Group's other
receivables are disclosed in Notes 6(b), 26, 27 and 28.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. However, the implementation of the tax various
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the
PRC. There are many transactions and calculation for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses
of approximately RMB62,973,000 (2021: RMB54,809,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future, which is a key
source of estimation uncertainty especially the uncertainty
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and
evolve. In cases where the actual future taxable profits
generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such
a reversal or further recognition takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes lease liabilities, amount due to a non-
controlling interest/a shareholder and other borrowings,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
other reserves and accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on the recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

Categories of financial instruments

o

TMIAR

a.

TR TRAVEER

2022
RMB’000

MBEE

Financial assets
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

WAMKREATA
Amortised cost EhH A A
Financial liabilities MHEaRE
Amortised cost b 3=) i

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities, other borrowings and amount due to a
non-controlling interest/a shareholder. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TR &
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREREREBFEREEK @)

policies (Continued)

Market risk HiG A

(i) Currency risk () Iy
The Company and its subsidiaries have KRB REWBABA
intragroup balances with other group BIHE & E B H2 LUSME
entities denominated in foreign currency SHERNEE RN QB R
which also expose the Group to foreign BR o TR AN E A Z S
currency risk. P& J& gz
The carrying amount of the intra-group PIREHARUERAER
balances that are denominated in currencies BRINEEEMINGE
other than the functional currencies of the SHEMEBE AN RBIBAA
relevant group entities at the end of the EREVERMEEM T :

reporting period are as follows:

2022
RMB’000
AREFT
Intra-group balances EBEAN R BB
HK$ BT 4,350 2,875
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SHMTH #®@)

MHEEEEBRREE (@

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.
policies (Continued)

154

Market risk (Continued) HGEE (&

(0 Currency risk (Continued) () B E b ()
Sensitivity analysis BRE D
The Company is mainly exposed to the KABEEERETE
currency of HK$. e JR g o
The following table details the Group’s TREVAEEARAR
sensitivity to a 5% (2021: 5%) increase and s R AERAINE FHE & A2

decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currency. 5% (2021: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes intra-group balances where the
denomination of the intra-group balance
is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. A
positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss for the year and a negative
number indicates an increase in post-tax loss
the year if RMB appreciate 5% against the
foreign currency. There would be an equal
and opposite impact on post-tax loss for the
year if RMB depreciates 5% against HK$.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(@)

(ir)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

RMB AR
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate other
receivables (Note 28), lease liabilities (Note
33) and fixed-rate other borrowings (Note
34).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances as detailed in Note 29.

The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates risk
on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this
note.

Bank balances are excluded from sensitive
analysis as the Directors consider that the
exposure of cash flow interest rate risk
arising from them is insignificant.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
measured at FVTOCI. The Group invested
in unquoted equity securities for investees
operating in bank industry sector for long
term strategic purposes which had been
designated as FVTOCI. Price risk was
monitored by the management of the
Group and will consider hedging the risk

exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis for unquoted equity
securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 were disclosed in

Note 6(c).
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group's credit risk exposure are
primarily attributable to trade receivables,
contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances and restricted bank balances. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated
with its financial assets except that the credit
risk associated with certain other receivables is
mitigated because it is secured over a property from
Shanghai Wanbang Enterprise Group Company
Limited* (“Shanghai Wanbang”), an independent
third party.

* For identification purpose only

6.
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HE2022F12831HILEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets and other items under ECL model.
The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available, reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following
information is used:

- internal credit rating;
- external credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability
to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;
and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers.

Information about the Group's credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable,
are summarised as below:
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group's
established policy, procedures and control relating
to customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on customers. The
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer located.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customer.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2021: Nil) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Major Customer (defined in Note 7) in the
construction of infrastructure and development of
properties segment.

In addition, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment assessment on trade
receivable under ECL model. Impairment of
RMB26,000 (2021: Nil) is recognised during the
year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note.
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HE2022F128318ILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. £RITH @)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MHBEEREEEERER &)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Bank balances and restricted bank balances

Credit risk on restricted bank balances and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for restricted bank balances and
bank balances by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default
of the respective credit rating grades published
by external credit rating agencies. Based on the
average loss rates, the 12m ECL on restricted bank
balances and bank balances is considered to be
insignificant and therefore no loss allowance was
recognised.

Contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

FEE R AEFE (B

IRITATER R 2 IR FVIRTTAS B
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e
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Contract assets (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
approximately 90.8% (2021: 100%) of the contract
assets was due from a customer. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group is responsible for monitoring procedures
and the review of the recoverable amount of
each material individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate provision
for impairment losses is made for irrecoverable
amounts. In addition, the Group continuously
monitors its retention receivable balances so as
to ensure that the Group will not be subject to
material bad debt risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment assessment of contract assets under
ECL model. Reversal of impairment loss of
approximately RMB13,000 and impairment loss of
approximately RMB1,000 (2021: impairment loss of
RMB13,000) is recognised during the year. Details
of the quantitative disclosures are set out below in
this note.

6.

ERTH @

b.

MHEEEEBRREE (@

FEE R AEFE (B

EREE (&)

AEBEEFTNEERE > E
#A%990.8% (20214 : 100%)
ENEETER—2ZRHM
BeARBEERERERME
AEBEEBEERETREFKR
REREPRBESEAER
BRI UR[Cl£ 58 LURRE
Aol EIMSREIEH BB
EEEEE I REBF
EEEHEWRENIEE R
MR RAEE NS EEEE AR
BRERE o

AEBHBHEEBEER
THEHEERETEHER
IR L - ERRBR THAR
#513,0007c 898 1B k&5 18 # 0]
& AR 11,0007 8 B E &S
18 (20214%F D HEBBEAAR
#13,0007T) ° E =R BB
IR AMIEE T 0

02:2FERSE BHRABEERMAERAT

161



162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ekt e

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Deposits and other receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
approximately 68.0% (2021: 78.8%) of the
deposits and other receivables was due from a
debtor.

The Directors make periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. For those
deposits and other receivables that the Directors
believe that there is no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
For those deposits and other receivables that are
past due or there is significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Directors provide
impairment based on lifetime ECL.

As at 31 December 2022, the probability of default
applied ranging from 10.81% to 100% (2021:
10.73% to 100%) and the loss given default was
estimated ranging from 9.00% to 85.22% (2021:
70% to 80.14%).
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MHEEEEBRREE (@

FEE R AEFE (B

5T R B M BN AR

AEBBBER—ZEFAN
e REMERZEBENEE
RREFEAA68.0% (2021
F:178.8%) °

EXEREpELBELTE B
RS EH AR ERIRTHE
MEBREMER Hil2k
H M FE R IE B B Wk [B1 72 2
TR EHR (B B 5F & o ek F5]
EREMBYERMES » EFR
7 BYIPHSBLURZSE £
WEERBRI EBEEEN &
FERRBE12ERBREER
BIELRERRE BN EAH
HEBEREDLEREE RARE
EEARNZFITEREMEBR
Mo BEEREBEEMERESS
BIEHRERER -

FR2022F12831H FEAMW
BAMENT10.81%ZE100%
(20214 : 10.73%E100%) >
MEANBEREMFTA9.00%
F£85.22% (20214 : 70% &
80.14%) ©

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Deposits and other receivables (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the allowance for credit
losses of other receivables with approximately
RMB123,436,000 (2021: RMB86,550,000) mainly
include:

i) approximately RMB68,600,000 (2021:
RMB30,301,000) represented the
allowance for credit losses on the
consideration receivable of approximately
RMB98,000,000 (2021: RMB140,849,000)
from a purchaser (the "Purchaser 1) (as
detailed in Note 28(i)). Affected by the
continuing deterioration of commercial
real estate market during the COVID-19
pandemic, and together with the existing
effects on COVID lockdown, the property
development project of the Purchaser |
has been delayed. The Purchaser | failed to
make payment as scheduled in the notice
for deferred payment during year ended
31 December 2022. Therefore, considered
the creditworthiness of the Purchaser |, the
Directors considered that such consideration
receivable become credit-impaired. Hence,
a further impairment of approximately
RMB38,299,000 was made during the year
ended 31 December 2022; and
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b. MEBRREERRKREER (@
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Deposits and other receivables (Continued)

ii)

approximately RMB53,100,000 (2021:
RMB53,100,000) represented the allowance
for credit losses on the consideration
receivable of approximately RMB62,310,000
(2021: RMB66,260,000) from a purchaser
(the "Purchaser 1I"”) (as detailed in Note
28(iv)). The Directors noted that Purchaser
Il was involving in several legal cases
regarding the private lending disputes and
was affected by the deteriorated operation
during the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
since 2020. The Purchaser Il failed to make
payment as scheduled in the agreement.
Therefore, considered the creditworthiness
of the Purchaser Il, the Directors considered
that such consideration receivable was
credit-impaired. Hence, except for the
balance of approximately RMB9,210,000
(2021: RMB13,160,000) was secured by
a property of Shanghai Wanbang, full
impairment has been provided on the
remaining balance as at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2022.

Reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB1,725,000 and impairment loss of
approximately RMB38,611,000 (2021: reversal of
impairment loss of approximately RMB17,066,000
and impairment loss of approximately
RMB22,397,000) were recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.
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HE2022F12831HILEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

EMTH @

b. MBRKREEBRKRER (@

FEE R AEFE (B

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the follow categories:

A E BB ERME B AR AR BFE
HEIELTER

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
default and does not have any not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
ERE R FNENRREE L EEABRE 2HBNEEEE- N2EAEREERE
REERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
BREE BEALER AR ERERETHUEN 2HBREEEE- NEAEHREESE
BIEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
A& EERRBNS B LURBEEM LRMEEEE- 2PRREEEE-&
(BBRIIIBERERNER) EEERE EEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired  Lifetime ECL- Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
B8 BERBRnEERREERE 2HEHEERE- 2BRBESEEE-U
HRESRE RESRE
Write-off There is evidence that the debtor is Amount is Amount is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group has no written off written off
realistic prospect of recovery
s BRBETNEFARAREVRAAEETIHA%E MHBHEHE M BRAEE

ELERE R

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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HE2022F12831HILEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERMTH @
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREREREBFEREEK @)

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERMERAEFE ()
(Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures TRFNAERNBEERS
of the Group's financial assets and contract assets, NEERETTEREEEET
which are subject to ECL assessment: mHNEERERO

2022
Gross carrying amount

W0ERELE

RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARETR

Financial assets at amortised costs

REHRAHENIBEE
Bank balances 29 Baa2-Al N/A 12m ECL 6,379 7,024
RITEER TER 12EABHEERR
Restricted bank balances 29 Al N/A 12m ECL 41,856 77,101
ZIRBIRTER Nl 1ERBHEERE
Trade receivables 26 NA (Note a) Lifetime ECL 13,151 -
(not credit-impaired)
FEMERR TBH (Hita) SARBEERE
(REERB)
Deposits and other receivables 28 A (Note b) 12m ECL 914 809
e RAMERIE TBH (Hizt0) 1ERBHEESE
Lifetime ECL 1,103 159,753
(not credit-impaired)
e
(REERB)
Credit-impaired 163,760 165,777 66,260 226,822
HREERE
Other items
HitER
Contract assets 27 /A (Note a) Lifetime ECL 434 308
(not credit-impaired)
BHEE TER (Hiza) 2EFREERR
(BEERE)
Notes: et
(a) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group (a) MEWERREHNEEM
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to S AEECEASEMY
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. WREEAFIRZLEBIES
AR EHTEREEEER
EEEEE
Trade receivables and contract assets with 20228128310 k&
gross outstanding balance of approximately BREBBEIINNOAAR
RMB13,151,000 and RMB434,000 as at 31 #13,151,000c R AR #&
December 2022 (2021: Nil and RMB308,000) were 434,000cHEW R R e &
assessed individually, respectively. HNEEBD B BETE
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HE2022F12831HILEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERTH @&
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERREEEEREE @
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBEFE (B)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Kzt : (#8)

(b) For the purpose of internal credit risk management, (b) MABEERREEmNS
the Group uses past due information to assess AERER A B R KT
whether credit risk has increased significantly since HEERKR BV HESEU
initial recognition. REBDFREIEN

2022 20226

Other receivables HhpEWRIE 164,863 914 165,777
2021 20214

Other receivables HhpEW RIS 226,013 809 226,822
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HBZE2022F128318IEFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERMTE @
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERREEEEREE @

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREREEFE (B)
(Continued)
The following table show reconciliation of loss TR E BRI
allowances that has been recognised for trade BIEBHNR:
receivables:

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and 2021418 1H ~5¥20215F12831H

1 January 2022 202251 81H -
New financial asset originated FREsER T B & 26
At 31 December 2022 $£2022%12H318 26
Changes in the loss allowances for trade receivables AR BB EEEH T E
are mainly due to: 22D

New trade receivables with gross carrying amount of ~ 42BREIEA AR
RMB13,151,000 13,151,0007cH9
HREWAR R 2
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for deposits
and other receivables:

6. £MTH @&

b. MBRKREEBRKRER (@

FEE R AEFE (B

TREHEMETE R EMER
IR R R R R R AR ¢

At 1 January 2021 20211818 169 10,890 70,160 81,219
Change due to financial F20215FE1 818 HER
instruments recognised as at RS T ERIEE)
1 January 2021:
~Transfer to lifetime ECL (not ~ —&Z 2 HATEH]
credit-impaired) =EBE ®BEE
BB (163) 163 - =
—Transfer to lifetime ECL (credit- —#&ZE2Hi7aH
impaired) EEEE (E8
BB - (902) 902 -
— Impairment losses recognised  — B HESRREEE = 21,886 511 22,397
— Impairment losses reversed —BEERESE (6) - (17,060) (17,066)
At 31 December 2021 120214128318 - 32,037 54,513 86,550
Change due to financial 20221818 FER
instruments recognised as at 1 &R T ERIEE) :
January 2022:
—Transfer to lifetime ECL (credit- —#$ZE 2 HTEHE
impaired) =EBE (B8
BB - (30,301) 30,301 -
— Impairment losses recognised  — B R E K18 - - 38,611 38,611
— Impairment losses reversed —BEERERSE = (1,725) = (1,725)
At 31 December 2022 122022128318 = 11 123,425 123,436

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT

169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831HILEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Note:

Changes in the loss allowances for deposits and other
receivables are mainly due to:

Further impairment made PEF AT
for debtors E—FRIE
Settlement of other receivables EEEMEW TR

ERMIR &

b. HMBRREEBERBER (@

FEE R AEFE (B

BisE

TS R EL A R IR T A 4R I 2
HEBBR U T EBA :

Increase (decrease) in
lifetime ECL
2 HRFERE EE1E
¥ GRi2L)

Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
®BISERIE EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT

= 38,611
(1,725) =

Further impairment made for debtors S (&% A PRAYIE—F

BE
Receivable secured by property M ERREREIE
Settlement of other receivables EEE M ETRIE

S 21,886 511
= = (13,160)
(6) = (3,900)
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HE2022F12831HILEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that have been recognised for contract
assets:

TRIR @B

b. HMBRREEBERBER @

FEE R AEFE (B

TR EMGNEERTN
BIEBHNR:

At 1 January 2021 1202181818 -
New asset originated PR e & E 13
At 31 December 2021 72021E12831H 13
Change due to financial instruments F2022F 1 A1 BEEREmMIE

recognised as at 1 January 2022: e

— Impairment losses reversed — BB Ao (13)
New asset originated PR e & E 1
At 31 December 2022 $£2022512H31H 1
Note: st -

Changes in the loss allowances for contract assets are mainly
due to:

BHEENBEBREEHTIEZEH
i

New asset originated FrEsemmEE
Settlement of contract asset BHNEBERE

(13) =

026EHRE BHRARERRHBERAE
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o

ERMIR &

172

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the Directors to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Liquidity tables

b.

MEBRREERRRER (@

TR EZ AR

EEERESARSE &
EEERIHRFREERBESE
BEEBER—EKT  ZK TR
EERnENRUrERZE
B> WREIREMEBREFTHE
REVFE

TRV EEBMBZEEERT
GRFH - ZRDEAEET
REREEYBRENRFEH
BN B R ERNRMIFRER
ERE TRECERERE
B Rz

REELH

2022 20228
Trade payables FEFTERR NATER 116,144 - 116,144 116,144
Other payables and accruals HtENHIEREHER N/ARER 51,245 258 51,503 51,503
Other borrowings HitfER 36% 5,900 - 5,900 5,415
Amount due to a shareholder EA—2RETE NATER 511 - 511 511
Lease liabilities HEaE 4.8% -55% 562 27 589 574
174,362 285 174,647 174,147
2021 20015
Trade payables FEfIERAR NATRER 150,443 = 150,443 150,443
Other payables and accruals HtENHIERESER NARER 64,212 258 64,470 64,470
Amount due to a non-controlling interest EfFEERER NATER 1,621 - 1,621 1,621
Amount due to a shareholder BAN—2RRETE NATER 943 - 943 943
Lease liabilities HEsE 27% 791 193 984 949
-5.5%
218,010 451 218,461 218,426
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Board is responsible to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurement.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs
under Level 3, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
Board works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

Equity instruments at FVTOCI A ABESAHMEE

6.

WARKRAETA

EMTH @

ETMITAZAREENE

FEEBOEMIAMMBHR
BENRARBESE-BEF
GHEEANBEMRUNANE
BEstEEEBEMERMRE
UNIEKS

KRGSt AR BER  AEEF
RSN MS R REREIE
BEB=ZREATAERABA
ENITAME  A&EEEZE
B=HEERMGEMRETH
B BEFGUEGERIBMGEE
MMRESEURIGBENMGE
By Ko 1R B g A B

() FEEABEEZL
ABES RS EE
KA BB E

REBEHR ~&EE
BOMBEEDER
AEBEFE TRMRHA
MEEZSEMHEE
ZRAREE (LERFF
Bz AERMRBAR
) o

2022
RMB’000
NC B

28,169 31,852

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE202612831HLEEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SMIAGE
C. Fair value measurements of financial C ERMTEZAREESE @)

instruments (Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets () FEFHBEEEZ R
that are measured at fair value on a AREE L EEE

KR n1BEE (B)

recurring basis (Continued)

31 December
2022
#20225
126318

Private equity investments at 0.9% equity  0.9% equity Level 3 Market approach - fair Discount of lack of marketability,
FvToc! investmentin  investment in value of the private determined by reference
Chaozhou Chaozhou equity instruments to the share price of listed
Rural Rural was determined by entities in similar industries of
Commercial Commercial comparable company’s 3.10% (2021: 4.15%) (Note)
Bank Co., Ltd., Bank Co., Ltd, price to book multiple,
which is which is and applying discount of
engaged in engaged in lack of marketability
banking banking
activities activities
in PRC in PRC
BAREESARMEEK: — RPERE  RPERE =R miEE-hERETIRY, BZmBRBERE £22%
HRERERE BITERN  RITERD AREBEDHALAR  BUTELTEENRE
BMENEE HNENEE TRELRABHRZTE BT 53.10% (20215
BIRGER RIRAER TENITEREE 4.15%) (Hfzt)
AFIM09%  AEIRI0.9%
BAKE BARE
Note:  An increase in discount for lack of Wizt PRIERRZMHR
marketability used in isolation would result BUEER LA
in a decrease in fair value measurement BERFAERER
of the private equity investments, and vice BENAABETE
versa. For the year ended 31 December B RZINRE
2022, a 1% increase/decrease in discount 20224128318
for lack of marketability and holding all FEE -HhZm5H
other variables constant would decrease/ mEMImELAS
increase the carrying amount of the private Tk1% > MMAMBEHR
equity investments by approximately uk=1 ¢SS - N
RMB291,000 (2021: RMB332,000). IhERERENIR
EER TR T
9 ANE#291,0007T
(2021%F : AR
332,0007T) °
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 REEEREFEF

and 3 in current and prior year.

— TR=HzBELE

Lo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

At 1 January 2021
Total loss in other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2021
Total loss in other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2022

Included in other comprehensive income is
an amount of approximately RMB3,683,000
fair value loss (2021: fair value loss of
RMB3,031,000) relating to the unlisted
equity securities classified as equity
instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of
the current reporting period and is reported
as changes of “FVTOCI reserve”.

The Directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

72021FE181H
Hth 2wl E 184858

72021FE12831H
Hth2mWlE 184828

142022512831H

6. £MTH @&

c THMTRAZAREENE @

(i) FB=ZRAAEENE
B AR

34,883

31,852

28,169

Hthz2mi A BiEHE
RAREERDES
BAREESAEME
AR AT ERIE
EHRAESEEEANA
ABEBEBOARE
3,683,0007T (20214 :
NABEBEEARE
3,031,0007T) » W ER %
A REEAEM
EEUWA B Y&
@J °

EERR NREEMH
WRLBIHNARFZ
HtWMBEERMFE
BZRAERAEARE
BE-

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT

(3,031)

(3,683)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

7. REVENUE 7.
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations for the years is as follows:

Continuing operations FBRE%%

Revenue from contracts with BEREHWE
customer

Type of services HRFELE R

Construction of infrastructure and EFE 28 b 22 258 K2 4)
development of properties: HEEE
Construction of land TR
Construction of communication BEEEES

tube
Leases HE
Total revenue 4BUN

) EFRE\NK=ES

FRXERERBREL
ZWm ol

2022

RMB’000
ARETT

22,952 43,145
5,007 2,930
27,959 46,075
1,468 947
29,427 47,022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

7.

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties

Construction of land

All the revenue from construction of land were
recognised at a point in time based on the
contracts entered into with a stated-owned
enterprise located in the PRC (the “Major
Customer”).

The relevant land specified in the contracts are
based on the Major Customer’s specifications with
no alternative use. Taking into consideration of the
relevant contract terms, the legal environment and
relevant legal precedent, the Directors concluded
that the Group does not have an enforceable
right to payment prior to the completion of the
acceptance and transfer procedure. Revenue
from construction of land is therefore recognised
at a point in time when the completed land is
transferred to the Major Customer, being at the
point that the acceptance and transfer procedure
completed and the Group has present right of
payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

7.

sk (&)

(i) FERAEHVW=MENEE
BRERWERRYEZRE
TR

BT ERHPAE W H IR
BREANRPEN—REERE
(TXEEZER)FTINEHARN
R—R RS -

REXRETERRER Lt TH 1R
BEEZRBERIEL > TF
HthA% - &EZ BB S AIF
MR RIRIE MAERLAR TR
Rk EFEE ~EER
SR UN S A A2 P S Al 2 AT A £ A
B RT SR B AT ST o EIUE -
THERNW@EN BRI
W T EERT P AIREL (B
B I SZ (Y 72 7 7T A RO RS BE) B
B MASEBRARA W
BXRAFEREIRE-

02:2FERSE BHRABEERMAERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMBHRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

7. REVENUE (Continued) 7. W= @)

ERENWmNBEOERE @

(i) Performance obligations for contracts with (ii)

178

customers (Continued)

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties (Continued)

Construction of land (Continued)

The Major Customer made advance payments
to the Group while the acceptance and transfer
procedure is still ongoing. The advance payments
result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the construction and development
period until the completion of acceptance and
transfer procedure.

The Group considers the advance payments contain
significant financing component and applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component as
the period between payments and transfer of the
associated infrastructure land is less than one year.

Construction of Communication tube

All the revenue from construction of communication
tube was recognised at a point in time, based on
the contracts entered into with customer located in
the PRC.

BRERWERRYERRE (B

TR ()

FEEREBBIMEFE
TR M A& B (F B R
HeFANMEBEERAVEREN
BERRAERBEAES
BEERBRMIEFTRAL-

FEEIABEMRBEEIEX
MERD WERERERR
A RBEERNEARERSD
MR ZER RERREAE
BIEMERZ T BT E—
o

BIEEEER
BRI EEENFAEWETY

REURPEERIIILE ’jE’]
By I BEHEST o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

7.

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties (Continued)

Construction of Communication tube (Continued)

The relevant communication tube specified
in the contracts are based on the customers’
specifications with no alternative use. Taking into
consideration of the relevant contract terms, the
legal environment and relevant legal precedent,
the Directors concluded that the Group does
not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to the completion of the acceptance and
transfer procedure. Revenue from construction
of communication tube is therefore recognised
at a point in time when the communication tube
is transferred to the customers, being at the
point that the acceptance and transfer procedure
completed and the Group has present right of
payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect
liability period, are classified as contract assets,
which ranges from 30 days to 1 year from the date
of the practical completion of the construction. The
relevant amount of contract asset is reclassified to
trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services performed
comply with agreed upon specifications and such
assurance cannot be purchased separately.

7.

sk (&)

BERANWENBOEE @

BRERWERRYEZRE (&

BIEEEEZER (B)

GRPEHNERBEEE
DEREZERER A EHM
BENRR -KEEERESRIF
MR RRBERERERL
P EFEEREBR TR
W B 1% 32 A2 Fr A It S A A 1 K
RYSRBIITHE - UL > BB
EFEENREEBEEERR
TR FREERESY XA RLRD
TR RBERRER BAE
B A (IR IRIT RN R A1E
= PIBEREAERE LB 2 Ry Eh

PARMERR (ER B R EAEEst
308 EF) Emz Al U
BHREEFEDEAGHNEE a4
BEENEBSBEEREBRER
RIEM D IEAEURERRR o 415
HREBMETERRBZETH
TEARA - MILIERB T AEE S
BE-

02:2FERSE BHRABEERMAERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HBZE2022F128318IEFE

7.

REVENUE (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15 to its revenue from the construction of
land for not disclosing the remaining performance
obligations under the Group's existing contract
with the Major Customer as the Group recognises
revenue from the satisfaction of the performance
obligation in the amount to which the Group has
a right to consideration from Major Customer that
corresponds directly with the value to the Major
Customer of the entity’s performance completed
to date. In addition, for all other contracts in which
the performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue with an original expected
duration of one year or less, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed as permitted under HKFRS 15.

Leases

7.

sk (&)

(iii)

(iv)

PEERRENHRTROSE
N ZER

FEBRCRKEBYBREE
RIS 155 R ITRVEE 7 AR
AR B MRS W
M EREAERRTRER
FEAGHNETZERTENE
T RABRTERZHEERBS
FERPBBMERHEES
THERBNZIEETRER
WA EBZEERERENEE
A Z W o i oh » FLIR TR AT
HARR 73 —F s U 2 FRHA R B
mmlamz BHNEENMER
thENMmS > RESTEHMHR
FEAFE15 DEEZFR
T EHBIR 5 BRI A ER

Zo
HE

2022
RMB’000

AREFT

For operating leases: Lease
payments that are fixed NEN

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), being the chief operating
decision maker (the "CODM?"), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focus on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

PAAEHEMS - BEHEE

1,468 947

REE S ER

MERDE KD ERIRFEMES > B
FAREFE (EFg) EIEE2E
ERARE (EEEERRE)ER
ZEMFIRARMNERER‘RZERK
RFEA  RIEBR A ER AR E D
Wy o 3 B GF A E BIEEORREFTH
B E 8
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AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F128318ILEE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

- Construction of infrastructure and development of
properties

= Property investment
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results from continuing operations by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December

2022

BN (B

AEMs AEEREEEMBTRS
ZERISESRHIAIME DU T ¢

- ERRMERMMELER

= MERE
P 6 ES

MR A EBE IR E D8 5 BIZR
BREEEERT 2 W REE D

HE12A31MHILEEE

2022

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Continuing operations FHBICE R
Construction of infrastructure and ~ ERRHERMWELE

development of properties 27,959 46,075 1,423 71
Property investment MELRE 1,468 947 (27,866) (20,468)
Total #st 29,427 47,022 (26,443) (20,397)
Certain impairment losses under FHEEEREETH

expected credit loss model, netof ~ ETRERSE:

reversal B[] (36,886) (5,331)
Other income HittgA 1,920 2,490
Exchange gain, net PE U i % 8 17 1,193
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net & Kt /B2 51U 5 48 - 12,381
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1¥ R R REHFTE

equipment (165) (133)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {#EZEINE (1,135) (1,124)
Staff costs SEN%N (6,845) (6,649)
Other operating expenses H &% (5,809) (9,984)
Finance costs MEME (478) (67)
Loss before tax from FBREEB 2 IRRE

continuing operations 518 (75,824) (27,621)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-

segment sales in the current year (2021: Nil).

LEREND MWK mIERBIBE
FHKRmE -AEELEDHEHE

(20214 : 48) o

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 3. Segment results represents the profit earned
by/loss from each segment without allocation of certain
impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net
of reversal, other income, gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
net, depreciation, exchange gain, net, other operating
expenses, finance costs and all administration costs
including directors’ emoluments and staff costs. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable segment:

EEDER (B
7 BB B AE ()

REDBNESHRARERN G5
KRR FFRWE3) - DEEEIE
B & B FTBERAYER S E LAV
B RSt hDERBEEHREN
THETRERBE (0FREE) Hith
WA HEM B AT W FEE &
FER W PR HE SR RE
MAEKRFAETHAE (BEESINE
RETRHA)  ILTHFE RS B K&
REHEME EBEZRREEERNT
Ee

NBEERER

UTAAEERRARSHHBEDNE
EREED !

2022

RMB’000
ARETT

Segment assets DEEE
Continuing operations PRS2

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties

Property investment MEKRE

Total reportable segment assets AIRE DB EEEE
Unallocated corporate assets RKPEABIEE
Consolidated assets REBE

ERRMERRDELRE

303,920 307,182
366,084 395,330
670,004 702,512

78,977 180,765
748,981 883,277

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

BN (B

PBEERER @)

2022
RMB’000
ARETIT
Segment liabilities FEEE
Continuing operations FBRE %
Construction of infrastructure and ERREERMELE
development of properties 116,144 160,931
Property investment MERLE 38,735 54,723
Total reportable segment liabilities ARE D EELBEE 154,879 215,654
Unallocated corporate liabilities Al N=I=EK 20,751 14,754
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 175,630 230,408

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deferred tax
assets, deposits and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables and accruals,
other borrowings, lease liabilities, tax liabilities,
amounts due to a non-controlling interest/a
shareholder.

PO EEBER DB REBERDECEIRM

ail

BRYZE BB Rk~ FE A
EE-BRARBESFAHEME
EWRABRAET A VELERE
EE SR EMBURIE
RERFEFEBEE U PR
BEENREKEDER-

. PRETHMBEARERESE
B Hthem HEER A
BB EAFERER—8
REFRIRLUSN FRE &R DA

EEE DB

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE

183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831HILEE
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. EDER (&
Other segment information HithpEER
Continuing operations FFEREET
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss FADMBEHASHEEFENS
or segment assets: 8

2022 2022 2022 2022
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AREFT NS
Loss from changes in fair value of RENEALBEZIN
investment properties 58 - - 18,200 13,900 - - 18,200 13,900
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEMTERINHAESR
deposits paid - - 11,046 7,170 - - 11,046 7,170
Impairment losses on trade receivable recognised in 1B & BEREIEUER A E
profit or loss B 26 - - - - - 26 -
(Reversal of) impairment losses on contract assets 18 (&2 B3RMAH
recognised in profit or loss, net EEREFETE (12) 13 - = - = (12) 13
Additions to non-current assets (Vote) FROEERE ()
~ investment properties -RENE - = - 110,000 - = - 110,000
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AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831HILEE
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. ESER (&
Other segment information (Continued) HithERE R (@)
Continuing operations (Continued) FFEREER ()
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included EHRREEFFELERFECBLED
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets: EESHERTRDIPEESENE

CEI

2022 2022 2022 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARHET7T ABBFT ARBFT

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W& BERRETE 1 1 - - 164 132 165 133
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBENE - - - - 1,135 1,124 1,135 1,124
Additions to non-current assets (Aote) FRBEERE ()

- right-of-use assets —fEREEE - - - - m 1,535 m 1,535

~ property, plant and equipment -WE -BERRE 9 - - - - 690 9 690
Other income HA (1,682) (2,139 (191) (162) (47) (189) (1,920) (2,490)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HERBATNEFE - - - - - (12381) - (12,381)
Impairment losses on other receivables RERERNEMENTIE

recognised in profit or loss, net RESEZE - - - - 36,386 5,331 36,886 5,331
Loss on wiitten-off of property, plant and equipment #iE¥1% BB kR EER - - - - - 66 - 66
Financial costs HEMA - - - - 418 67 418 67
Exchange gain, net ERWE e - - - - (17) (1,193) (17) (1,193)
Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and Wizt FERBEEAGEEMIAERIEIE

deferred tax assets. RIBEE-
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A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831HILEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. ESER ()
Geographical information tEER
For both year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December HE20225F12831H K&2021412831
2021, all of the Group’s revenue and assets are derived HIEMEERE  ZEBMFTE WE K
from external customers and operations based in PRC and BEHREMUNRPENINIES KE
accordingly, no further analysis of the Group's geographical 5o A > A B AR E I E
information is disclosed. BE—D Difro
Information about major customers FEERREN
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years MEEEREFT ARG AERLE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is W BIB10%U T -
as follows:

2022

RMB’000
ARBT

Customer A — Construction of infrastructure &P A —EFERRES

and development of properties YIEERE 22,952 43,145
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hthg A
2022
RMB’'000
AR¥TT
Continuing operations PRI E#
Bank interest income HRITH EUA 25 18
Loan interest income BRFEWA - 135
Dividends from equity instruments at ERER 2 BASR PR R I B 4B R
FVTOCI relating to investments held WA EEET AEM
at the end of the reporting period ZERANKRAT AR
e 1,661 2,136
Covid-19 - related rent concessions 201978 m B RAERAMAE
(Note 20) Bl (#75220) - 32
Sundry income FEIFUTA 234 169

1,920 2,490
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AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

10.  FINANCE COSTS 10. REMZ
2022
RMB’000
AREETT
Continuing operations FBR S
Interest on lease liabilities HEsENE 63 67
Interest on other borrowings HERHE 415 =

478 67

11.  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS 1. FEHAEEHEEN TERERE 0k

MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL e E|
2022
RMB’000
ARETIT
Continuing operations FBRExm%
Impairment losses recognised (reversal) on: 50 (e REEE .
— trade receivables —EURERFR 26 =
— contract assets —BHEE (12) 13
— other receivables —H g FIa 36,886 5,331
36,900 5,344
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 6(b). BRI AT G B E M FE6()
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A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

12.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12.

FRiSIRFA

2022
RMB’000

Continuing operations FBSE X
Current tax: BPERFRIE !
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — A ZEFRER

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the Group’s
income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the Company and the PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The income tax expense for the years can be reconciled to
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as follows:

AR®EFT

ERNEREMEFEGLSERRE
#M16.5%5t 1 - AR A EBILENR
BELEHEREA  LEHEBRE
TR -

RIEPEEEMERE (REMRER
E) REEMSRIEEHER XA
B RFENBABNRZMEFEZR
RABI5% o

HAELERE EENRIBIZAEAREE
RERTHMNKETE

RiZEREED FRMERHAXHA
PRIRATE R Z HARINT

2022
RMB’000
ARBTT
Continuing operations PSS
Loss before tax FRFR ARS8 (75,824) (27,621)
Income tax at applicable tax rates BRBERRETEN
Fr81% (18,927) (6,819)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax sH#RFF A B IS
purpose MBEE 17,396 11,838
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BEFRBANRELE
purpose (1,002) (7,898)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBHEENRE
=gt 2,729 3,059
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 2 Al AR FERIRIE
recognised k518 (195) (174)
Tax effect on tax reduction MRIBINRNRIEEZ (1) =
Income tax expense FRiSMmX = 6

188

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F128318ILEE

13.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Credit business

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors
resolved to cease all the Group’s credit business. On
31 December 2020, the Company entered into a
disposal agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser 1”), pursuant to which the Company sell the
entire equity interest of Shenzhen Shen Wu Investment &
Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Shen Wu")
and its subsidiaries (the “Shenzhen Shen Wu Group”),
which include Chung Hwa Finance Limited (“Chung Hwa
Finance”), and the shareholder's loan of approximately
RMB15,709,000 at a consideration of approximately
RMB5,000,000. Chung Hwa Finance carried out all of the
Group's credit business.

The disposal was completed on 2 June 2021, on which
date control of Shenzhen Shen Wu Group passed to the
Purchase I.

The profit (loss) for the year from the discontinued credit
business is set out below:

Loss of credit business for the period
Gain on disposal of credit business (Note 38(i)

13.

HNEEEFBE
EEEFHE WD (Ha238()

EARIEEEER
(ELES

HZE2020FE 12831 LEEE - EEE
BARFLAEENMBEEXER -
FR2020FE128310 » X AT EIFIL E
=5 (BAL) T HEERS FiIt
AABIHERIT LR EERBIR
~E (GERIEY) RERB AR (HF
HEIER) (BIEREEERRAT
(THREEFEE)) 2RERREER
£ ANR115,709,0007T  FUEBH A A
E1%5,000,0007c c FEEEREEAR
BB EEXER

HEFIER20215E682H5EH * T3
L YEBNIERIENZ A EREE
Flo

I8 4

A

REBRILEEEH ZFREN (B
B AW

2,572

2,553

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE

(19)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
EHZE2022512831HIEEE

13.  DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 13.

Credit business (Continued)

The results of the credit business, which have been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
were as follows:

EARIHEEET (@)
EEXES @

Bt AGGEERANEEETER
LI

Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, TEREEEBERTH

net of reversal RERE > {NFREE] =
Other operating expenses HZ S (19)
Loss before tax PRI ARS8 (19)
Income tax expense FriSinR =
Loss for the period HAEEIE (19)

Loss for the period from discontinued operation includes
the following:

REERILEEXEBZ HNEREE
THIRIE:

Auditor's remuneration 1% 34 B B -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the credit
business contributed net cash outflow of approximately
RMB58,000 to the Group's net operating cash flows,
no effect in respect of investing activities and financing
activities.

HZE2021F12B31BLEEE 8%
BHAEBNWKERSREFHEEM
R R FENARESS,0007T 0 K
MRE R RRE FHEEFE-
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AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F128318ILEE

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 14. FREE

2022
RMB’000

ARBFT

Loss for the year from continuing operations & B 58 ACE #5752 £
has been arrived at after charging: EEEHR

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executives'’ EE -EBEEBRTETHAE

remuneration (Note 15) B (BaE15) 1,794 1,773
Other staff cost (excluding directors’ HMMEBIHA (FaEESE
emoluments) [i3)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —Hre  ITERHEMER 5,303 4,803
— Contributions to retirement benefits — B IREF B HR
schemes 894 795
6,197 5,598
Capitalised in properties under development R854 & &1L (1,146) (722)
5,051 4,876
Total staff costs BT A48%8 6,845 6,649
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERREITE
plant and equipment 165 133
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEINTE 1,135 1,124
Total depreciation recognised as expense eI NI E4E%E 1,300 1,257
Donation }88E 29 1,000
Loss on written-off of property, a2~ MR B R s B
plant and equipment 518 - 66
Auditor’s remuneration (including ZEEMIN & (B1FE
the fee for PRC subsidiaries) WEATINER)
— Audit service —Z RS 950 950
— Non-audit service —IERZEAR TS 90 90
Contract cost recognised as an expense N B =Y N 26,409 45,804
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A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

15. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 15.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ s
emoluments

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

EE - EE FTETHABRERES
#HER

(@ EF-EFERFBTHAEN
i <=

FRRBEER LHRUKRES
NEMFAIRBENES BEER
FETHASFMOT

Contributions

Salaries  to retirement
and benefits
Fees allowances O Total
RIKER
ik HEREY AR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
For the year ended #%202212831H
31 December 2022 LEE
Executive directors BITESE
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman)  5€4(85 (/%) 100 277 - 377
Huang Chunfeng (Chief BE# ((THEH)
executive officer) (Note J) (=7 120 282 40 482
Leng Xiao Rong RINEE 100 191 35 326
Sub-total Vet 320 750 75 1,145

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
EXFATHITESME A NREMRESA B RAEBNEFEREMIBHAMRT

192

Non-executive directors ~ JEHITES

Yin Zong Chen FRE 30 - - 30
Chau Ting Yan (Note if) BEM Kz 120 = = 120
Sub-total g 150 - - 150

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company and

its subsidiaries, if applicable.

EXFTIFRTEEMEREXARSETELDRENBAR (HEA) EFARMHKRS -

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F128318ILEE

15.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 15.
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a)

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ s
emoluments (Continued)

Independent
non-executive directors

Guo Lu Jin

Gao Hong Hong

Luo Zhuo Qiang

Sub-total

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of

the Company.

BUFRTES

M oo
i 25 o
e

It

Fees

e
RMB'000
AREFR

EE - EE FTETHABRERES
#ER (@)

(@ EF-EFERFBTHAEN
M (&)

Salaries
and
allowances

AL
RMB'000
ARBTR

Contributions
to retirement
benefits
schemes Total
RIREEF
AT gt
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT

120 - - 120

60 = = 60
120 = = 120
300 = = 300
770 750 75 1,595

EXFRBILIFRITESEME B RSBEETEALDESFIRMHERE

Supervisors

Fang Wei Ran

Wang Xing Ye

Zhang Yun Feng
Chen Jun Feng

Zheng Ze Jian (Note v)

Sub-total

Total

EE
H
2
Fk
i i
WRE (Y

I\Et

Bt

10 133 1 154
15 - - 15
10 - - 10
10 - - 10
10 - - 10
55 133 1 199

825 883 86 1,794
0226 EHRE BRAREERKRNARAS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

15.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 15. EE-EF - FETBRAERIGERES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) g @
(a)  Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ s (@) EF -EBEERTETBHRASHN
emoluments (Continued) ME @&

For the year ended HZE2021512831H

31 December 2021 LEE
Executive directors HITES
Zhang ling Ming (Chairman)  3R#(85 (£/2) 100 263 14 377
Huang Chunfeng (Note ) && 8% (W5L) 19 = = 19
Chau Ting Yan (Note ii) BERM (Wzti) 93 = = 93
Leng Xiao Rong RINEE 100 191 31 322
Sub-total /et 312 454 45 811

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXFTRITEEMER XN RERE LD REERNEFEEMRHENRS

Non-executive directors ~ JFFHITES

Yin Zong Chen FRE 30 - - 30
Ye Zhi E (Note i) B8R (Wi 25 - - 25
Chau Ting Yan (Note i) BERM (W75t 27 = = 27
Sub-total INE 82 - - 82

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable.

EXFIRIFATESHERFINREFEEFTRATDVRENB AR (HER) EFFMRHIRE -
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AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

15.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 15. EE-EF - FETBRAERIGERES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) g @
(@)  Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ s (@) EF -EBEERTETHRASHN
emoluments (Continued) ME @&

Independent BiFHTES
non-executive directors
Guo Lu Jin FEE 120 = = 120
Gao Hong Hong BALAL 60 - - 60
Luo Zhuo Qiang EER 120 - - 120
300 - - 300
Sub-total et 694 454 45 1,193

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company.
XA EIIIFRITESME AN RERERABEEMEHART

Chief executive officer THRAEH

Huang Chunfeng BE# - 302 41 343
Supervisors S

Fang Wei Ran FEA 10 113 10 133
Huang Yong Jing (Note i)~ &x& (Mztiv) 1 = = 1
Wang Xing Ye THE% 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng REI 10 - - 10
Chen Jun Feng R 10 = = 10
Zheng Ze Jian (Note v) ;mEfRE Wzt 8 49 11 68
Sub-total ivat 54 162 21 237
Total st 748 918 107 1,773
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A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

15. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 15.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ s
emoluments (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director,
a supervisor or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. No emoluments
have been paid to the directors, supervisors or chief
executive as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2021.

Notes:

i Appointed on 5 November 2021

ii Redesignated as non-executive director on 5
November 2021

iii Resigned on 5 November 2021

iv Resigned on 11 February 2021

v Appointed on 11 February 2021

(b)  Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year include three directors (2021: three
directors), details of whose emoluments are set out
in Note 15(a) above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining two (2021: two)
highest paid employee who are neither a director, a
supervisor nor chief executive of the Company are
as follows:

EE - EE FTETHABRERES

HEg @

(@) EF -EBEERTETBHRASHN
ME @&
B E20229 K2021412H31H
EEE  wEEE -BEEgE

(b)

BETHRAERERRRRES
BN &8 ZHE o B 220225 &z
202112831 HIEEE i
MEF - EEHAFTETHAE
AR S EAIMAKRE
EMALEEEIEZEIHIE

Wiat -

i 202111 B5RESE

ii R2021E11B5HAEEIE
BITEE

jii 2021511 B5HBHE

iv 20212811 BEHE

v 202128 1M BEZE

LaEEHES

ERNERRLRSHEER
HEZ28E (2021F . =%
) ERBEEMSHEBEN
ESEIEE15() o R BR P A

(20214 . WA) IERRBE
EEERTETBRAENR
B EENFEIBENT

KRR
RIREFFT B X

Salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

2022
RMB’000
ARETT

736 564

16 25

752 589
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AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

15. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 15.
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are
neither the directors, supervisors nor chief executive
of the Company whose emoluments fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Nil to RMB1,000,000 ZTE AR #51,000,0007T

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the Directors, supervisors, chief executive officer
or any of the two highest paid employees as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
Directors, supervisors, chief executive officer and
the two highest paid employees has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during each of
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
Apart from the Directors, chief executive officer and
supervisors, the Group has not classified any other
person as chief executives during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

EE - EE FTETHABRERES
#ER (@)

(b)

hEEHES (@)

FERBDESE - BEFHTHE
HNRBHESFHMF BN
T

2022 20214 12H31H
FEFEE AEEBERES
EE - TRENIMEERSH
BEEA— AZNMEESM
AMAARE B % 2 2B 3B
B/ 18 o B 2022 20214
1283 1HIEFE  HEES
BEE - TBEEEMARSH
B2 B i ol B = E I B
F o B E2022F 20215128
BNTHIEFE BREF 1T
HEREBEEI REE BT
AEMATDERAETETERA
Bo

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831HILEE

16.  LOSS PER SHARE 16. SREE
For continuing operations REFFEREETR
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from KABVHEB ANELERER RIS
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the BILEUTE®RE

Company is based on the following data:
Loss figures are calculated as follows: BHEEFTEUWT ©

2022
RMB’000

ARBTR

Loss for the year attributable to owners of ~ ZAB B AFEMLERNE

the Company 18 (73,521) (23,536)
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued & : REBRIEEEERE >
operations FE R E A - 2,554

Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss i & B% & 7 K # & 18 m
per share from continuing operations EREFELEER
1R (73,521) (26,090)

Number of shares & E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 78 88 A & # E B8
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss S ERERINETHE
per share 1,469,376 1,469,376
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HE2022F12831HILEE

16. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 16.

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company for the purpose of
basic and diluted loss per share FREE

The denominators used are the same as those detailed

above for basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 December 2021, basic earnings
per share for the discontinued operation is RMBO0.17
cents per share, based on the profit for the year from the
discontinued operations of approximately RMB2,554,000
and the denominators detailed above for basic earnings
per share.

No diluted loss per share for both 2022 and 2021 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in
issue for both 2022 and 2021.

17. DIVIDENDS 17.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2022, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2021: Nil).

20202FEEHRE

BikEE (@)
REFRICERBRILIEERER
AREHEANBEFECERBERL
REXBNSREAREEHRTIZ
LUF8URETE -

2022

RMB’000
ARETT

MEREAKLEGBEM
SAREHEA ANERNG

(73,521) (23,536)

PRAN SR FXSREAR#BHEHE
Fresl z 3 48R o

REBRIEERT

HE2021F12831HIEEE  B4&1E
BEEBNEREABNAERAR
BON7TD ORI EERE 2 ER
A AR KE2,554,00070 K% XSG
EARBAFZEIZ DEtE

I 2022F K202 1 E B E B 81T
ZEAR > MO 2520229 K20215
2 SREEEE-

RS
FR2022F A > Ak 52 E K3
ERAREFERATDEERRKRER  ME

REHAR LUR TN E R R (IR B
(20214 1 48)

BEHLRERRNARAR
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A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

LVERN e

18.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.

COST D%
At 1 January 2021 120211818 151 181 150 43,581 49,063
Addition hE = - 690 - 690
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBRE] 3800k

(Note 38(ii) and (i) (i) - - - (48,581) (48,581)
Write-off bl 62z| (126) (82) - - (208)
Exchange adjustments ERBE - (1) S = (1)
At 31 December 2021 120214128318 25 98 840 - 963
Addition RE - 9 - - 9
At 31 December 2022 1#2022%1283180 25 107 840 - 972
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:HrER Bstii{E

AND ACCUMULATED

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 120211818 94 132 150 36,380 36,756
Provided for the year FRERE 18 19 % = 133
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBRE

(Note 38(ii) and (i) (W 5£38(1)Re(i)) = - - (36,380) (36,380)
Eliminated on write-off TR R 18 2 (87) (55) S = (142)
Exchange adjustment ERBEE - (1) S S (1)
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 2 % 246 - 366
Provided for the year FREE - 1 164 = 165
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 25 9% 410 - 531
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2022 120225128318 - 11 430 - a1
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 = 3 594 - 597

The above items of property, plant and equipment are UEYx-BERREBEETVUER

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates AN HEFEHEITE ¢
per annum:
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the lease HEEE & FHEAE25%
term or 25% Mg EARE
Furniture, fixtures and 8-20% RENEER 8-20%
office equipment NE
Motor vehicles 25% AE 25%

200 SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

19.  PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19.

BRERPYE

Properties under development

R

2022

RMB’000
ARETFTT

175,580 129,268

2022
RMB’000
AR®TT
Amounts comprise: SEREE
— Construction costs including staff cost —RBENR EERTEN
capitalised BT A) 151,009 104,697
— Land costs — AL A 24,571 24,571
175,580 129,268
Analysis of leasehold lands: HE DT -
RMB’'000
AR® T
As at 31 December 2022 $22022%12H831H
Carrying amount EREE 24,571
As at 31 December 2021 5220214128318
Carrying amount IREE 24,571
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F12831HILEE
Additions NE -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021FE128318ILEE
Additions NE 24,571

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The residual values are determined as the estimated
disposal value of the leasehold land component. No
depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands
taking into account the estimated residual value as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

RS T A BRE B MU B AR A R 5t
WERRBRKE - FGREERT
AEELMISNEFHEBEZ
BEIR2022F K%20214F12831 RS
SRISEE HELMASHRITEE
)Eﬁ )

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

EREEE

As at 31 December 2022
Carrying amount

As at 31 December 2021
Carrying amount

For the year ended
31 December 2022
Depreciation charge

For the year ended
31 December 2021
Depreciation charge
Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 38(ii) and (i)
Exchange difference

$£2022512H31H
fREE

72021F12831H
IREE

#EF2022%12831H
EEE
TERX

#HZ=E20215F12831H
IEERE
MERX
HEWBAE]
(K7 =E38(i1) R i)
EERZE

- 567 567

= 930 930

- 1,135 1,135

54 1,070 1,124
(14,577) = (14,577)
- 7 7

2022

RMB’000

AR®ET
Expense relating to short-term leases BADHATE EABRARIRE 164 162
Total cash outflow for leases HEZREREABEE 1,374 1,456
Additions to right-of-use assets FTREBEERE 772 1,535
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE202026128310LEEE

20.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 3 years (2021: 1 to 3 years). Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the portfolio
of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, lessors of
offices provided rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic to the Group
through rent reductions ranging from 10% to 15% over 8
months.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions in HKFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient
not to assess whether the changes constitute lease
modifications. The effects on changes in lease payments
due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant
leases of approximately RMB32,000 recognised as negative
variable lease payments.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, lessors of
offices did not provide any rent concessions.

20.

2022FEIRE

ERERE @

MEMEFE ~EBEEZEMRA
ERAREE-HESHWUEEHEME
3%F (20214 1 1E3%F) 5T 1L - HE R
THZE R EERER > B2 8B NEIF
R AR o % 7 TE AR HA e 5T A S AT B
HIBENRER  2EBEB SO0
EFEIEE GHI P AH HNITHVERR -

NEBTEHMMAET L ZEEHEL -
20225 2021128311 » 45 H3#E
E/HEEH Oy R ERS N
HBFRE 4R S AL

HERR

HE2021F12831HIEEE  HAE
HEABEBRAEBAN10%E15%H
AER% mAEBERBER2019T
REEREBENERGRNESE
e

ZEHEERBR2019BRRFERZE
BEEMY UNEEBMBREE
A58 1655 5B 46BERFT 5 Z FRA 151+ >
FERCEBAITEER L FTE
ZEFHESBHEER - HIRHEA
FABREEFH R RN E R M E Y
MENMRESHF E8 ARE32,000
7T BRI AA SRS

HE2022F12831HEEE AT
HFR AN SR IR A E R FR < R o

BEHLRERRNARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

21.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 2. KREYE

The Group leases out shop units and car parks under AEBERBLSHEENAmEEEAR
operating lease with rental payable monthly. The lease FES HEESAZNH -HE—®K
typically run for an initial period of 3 to 5 years (2021: 3 VMG A EA3ESSE (20214 ( 3E54F) ©
to 5 years). These leases contain a minimum annual lease ZEHESEEENREEEREN
payment that are fixed. o

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as HIEPEHENZERERE AN
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are EEEEBE HAEETEREEZR
denominated in the respective functional currencies of HEMAZIMNER R - HE SN HEAR
group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual BREAESRERREHEAEA
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the EEYEEERE

property at the end of lease term.

Fair value NAEE
At 1 January 2021 72021%181H 157,300
Additions hE 110,000
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiBEmAEENAAEE

P ER (13,900)
At 31 December 2021 %2021412831H 253,400
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiEm RN AREE

B ER (18,200)
At 31 December 2022 F22022412H31H 235,200
Unrealised loss on property revaluation included in FFABRNYESEAREIREGE

profit or loss (18,200)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE202026128310LEEE

21.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Real Estate Ownership
Certificates of the following properties have not been
obtained:

(i) 88 (2021:125) properties with carrying amount
of approximately RMB84,886,000 (2021:
RMB131,000,000) has not obtained the Real
Estate Ownership Certificates as the outstanding
considerations of approximately RMB38,476,000
(2021: RMB54,465,000) have not yet been settled.
The Directors are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to lawfully occupy, use, lease and sale of
these properties.

(i) 30 (2021: Nil) properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB28,981,000 (2021: Nil) is in the
process of obtaining the Real Estate Ownership
Certificates. The Directors are of the opinion that
the Group is entitled to lawfully occupy, use, lease
and sale of these properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective
dates by Graval Consulting Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the
Directors determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements. The Directors work
closely with the qualified external valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

21.

2022FEIRE

REME (B

122022128318 » MREE T34
ENTEEERS

(i) ERPHEHAERENARK
38,476,0007C (20214 ¢ AR
#554,465,0007T) H A EE
WEARSGERENARE
84,886,0007T (20214F : ARHE
131,000,0007t) 28818 (2021
D 12518) MEZTAHEER
FoBEERA AEEEHES
FER-ERAEEREEZ
=3/ EL

(ii) IREEL AR 528,981,0007T
(20214 : %) 3018 (2021
F ) YELERSEERE
BEERIA FEEERE
ERAEE -ER - HEREE

120225128318 &20215F12 831
B AEEREVENLABEDZR
HAEETEMBENETIGERESR
HEMEEEXERARATNEH
HERETREERE

REEHEBYENLAEER  EF
BEBEANEESFENGEERMR
WARE EFRAGERINEMEE
EFEF MBI GBIEERITK
RE g A B o

BEHLRERRNARAR
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21.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

2. KBEYMEBE

RESAZEMEN LR ABER YE
ZEERRERRAHBAAR

Shop unit located in Guangzhou Investment approach

2022: RMB20,000,000
(2021: RMB19,400,000)

IR BN RS M R&E*
20224 © AR #20,000,0007¢
(2021£ : AR #19,400,0007T)

Term yield, taking into account o~ The higher the term yield, the lower
yield generated by market average  the fair value, and vice versa.
selling price and the market
average rental from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the conditions of the building of
3.2% (2021: 3.2%)

FHREEA3.2% (20214 : FHEEEEE AABEINBE
32%) BEEABLENEN  R2THRe
HiETHEERTS THETE
AR R (F B R U B

Fik
Reversionary yield, taking into The higher the reversionary yield, the
account of yield generated by lower the fair value, and vice versa.

market average selling price

and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental of
3.7% (2021: 3.7%)

BRBREA3T% (202145 : EREREEs AABEEEE K
37%) BERAELENEZ 2o
miETHEERMETHESE
G2 WERD AR URMER

RIEE 2 EREER

Market unit rate, taking into account A significant increase in the market
the recent transaction prices for unit rate used would result in a
similar properties adjusted for significant increase in fair value,
nature, location and conditions and vice versa.

of the property, which ranged
from RMB38,540 to RMB40,379
per sp.m. (2021: RMB33,228 to
RMB44,390 per sp.m.)

T RFAENEEARZER B ARENTEEEABLIARER
MMELE HERKRELA  AABEBBEEN K274
B)NhBEENRETARAR
# 38,540 E AR 40,3797T (

2021 F I B AARARES3,228
TEAR 44,390 7T)
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21.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

2. KEYE®

Office unit located in Beijing Direct comparison
2022: RMB120,500,000
(2021: RMB131,000,000)

R I RNB FEEM EREA

20224 © AR #120,500,0007T
(20214 : AR #131,000,00077)

Market unit rate, taking into account A significant increase in the market

unit rate used would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

the recent transaction prices for
similar properties adjusted for
nature, location and conditions
of the properties, which ranged
from RMB17,207 to RMB28,246
per sq.m. (2021: RMB19,514 to
RMB28,158 per sq.m.)

K RRENFEHARZEE Ol FRANDEEEAE LHRER

MEEE MR REHEE)  AABEBEEEMN R2TRe
MNHEEENREFAKARK

17,2070 AR #28,2447% (2021

FARKI9514TEARE

28,1587T)
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 2. KEYE B

Shop units and car parks Investment approach Term yield, taking into account of ~ The higher the term yield, the lower
located in San He yield generated by market average the fair value, and vice versa.
2022: RMB94,700,000 selling price and the market
(2021: RMB103,000,000) average rental from comparable

properties and adjustment to reflect
the conditions of the building of
2% (2021: 2%)

R =N EHENREEMN2022 KEE FHREEA2% (20215 1 2%)  REHKEZES AnBEIEE
F 1 AK94,700,0007 (2021 TEOEEENENTRTHEE R2TRo
£ 1 \E¥103,000,0007T) BRBRTHESELNKEER
WL BB URBREFRR
Reversionary yield, taking into The higher the reversionary yield, the
account of yield generated by lower the fair value, and vice versa.

market average selling price
and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental of
2.5% (2021: 2.5%)
EREWGEEA2.5% (2021F : ERE TS AREEUR-
25%)  REEAELEYEL
miETHEERMETEESE
G2 WERDEHAREURMEK

K2 ERER

Market unit rate, taking into account A significant increase in the market
the recent transaction prices for unit rate used would result in a
similar properties adjusted for significant increase in fair value,
nature, location and conditions and vice versa.

of the property, which ranged
from RMB33,000 to RMB37,460
per sp.m. (2021: RMB32,429 to
RMB46,023 per sp.m.)

L REAENEERRZEE (B MRANTEEEARLARER
MMELE HBERRAGEE  ARBEBESEM RZHAe
B NmREENRETARAR

#33,000cE AR 37,4607C (

2021 F 1 BT A RARE32,429

TEAR46,02370)
The fair value measurement is categorised into Level 3 fair NABEAERERAE=RLAE
value hierarchy. e
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the RER WRmEALEHE =Ko

year.
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22. GOODWILL 22, (5

cosT D%
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 20211818~
2021 and 31 December 2022 2021128318 &
20224 12831H 44,459 - 44,459
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT R5tinE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 20211818~
2021 and 31 December 2022 2021128318 &
20224 12831H 44,459 - 44,459
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 112022512H31H - = =
At 31 December 2021 72021FE12831H = = =
Impairment test on goodwill A RER R
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set MAEBRARME W EXPIEER
out above have been allocated to two cash-generating NEEEMERSEESEMN (REEE
units (“CGU"), comprising one subsidiary engaged in B  SE—RBUEERKEER
the construction of infrastructure and development of BMEZRDBHMNB AU R—H
properties segment and one subsidiary engaged in the REEEEBNNB AR -

credit business segment.
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22.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test on goodwill (Continued)

Notes:

(a

Construction of infrastructure and development of properties
— Zhongfong Chaozhou Investment Development Company
Limited* (“Zhongfong Chaozhou”) (“Unit A")

The principal activity of the Unit A is the land development
project in Chaozhou (the “Project”). The Project cover three
construction phases (ie. phase I, phase Il and phase Ill).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the profitability
of Unit A was adversely affected due to the following
factors: (1) there are no acceptance of completion of the
constructed land during the year; (2) the trade receivables are
long outstanding and the settlement is slow; and (3) country
government has yet to be entered the procedures of bidding
of phase Il and phase Ill of the Project, the timetable for
construction of phase Il and phase Ill of the Project cannot be
determined and the Group was uncertain on the timing of
acceptance schedule of the remaining land area of 624 acres
of the Project which is far beyond the original timeframe.

Under these circumstances, the Directors decided to fully
impair the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Unit A
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Credit business — Chung Hwa Finance (“Unit B")

The principal activity of the Unit B is provision of credit
business with the money lender license in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had
determined not to renew the money lender license in Hong
Kong and scale down the credit business upon the expiration
of the money lender license on 12 September 2018. Under
this circumstance, the Directors decided to fully impair the
goodwill arose from the acquisition of Unit B during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

As disclosed in Note 38(i), on 2 June 2021, the Company
disposal of its entire interest of Shenzhen Shen Wu Group,
goodwill with carrying amount of RMB Nil attributable to
Chung Hwa Finance is disposed.

22,

[} G-

AERER @@

et

(a)

ERXHEESRMEZRE-—FEH
M EREEERAR (THREFM)
(TAEEAL))

ABMIz TEXEHABIOBAMET L
A EE (R - HED
BEN—H —HR=E)

HE2017E128318EEE B
(WRERNTEZECEL LT
B ()FEBEBRER R M KR EE KRG
HEEZE ; RO)ERBUTH A&
ABEBZHAR=ZHNBEERS &
EAETEREBER RN
BXRAAEEFEEEEGR LM
EfE624M 2 BN B IR 2 B[] (H
EBRERER) > ABMNRFIEE

NEIFHZE-

HFILEERT  EFRAERUKBAE
NEEZEHEREE2017F12831
HIEFEEHBRERE

EEEB-PEREEH (TBEfL)

BEMUZFEXHANERBRMEER
EH WHRABREARR-

HE2018F12A31HLEFEE &R
BREFREETENREARRE
W HA2018F98 12 HE AR Em
BEBEEEB -FLBRT EER
REFUBBBEMEENEENEHE
2018FE 12831 HILFEEEH B EUR
o

MI5E38()FTIR EE > 52202156821
EABDEHEERFILYERNE
B PESERGEREEAR
BETHNEEEHE
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23. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

23. RBAABESARtNEZEBANRKRE
IR

2022
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Unlisted investments: JELHEE
— equity securities (Note) —RAEH (HaE) 28,169 31,852

Note:

As at 31 December 2022, the unlisted equity investment represents
0.9% (2021: 0.9%) equity interest in a PRC private limited company
which is principally engaged in banking business in the PRC. The
Directors have elected to designate this investment at FVTOCI as it is
the Group's strategy to hold these investments for long-term purposes.

24, DEPOSITS PAID

Deposit paid for acquisition of Properties |
(defined in Note) FRNE IR

Note:

On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang Investment & Consulting
Company Limited* (“Beijing Shen Shang”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement (the
"Properties Acquisition Agreement |1”) with a vendor (the “Vendor
1”), pursuant to which Vendor | agreed to sell, and Beijing Shen Shang
agreed to acquire a commercial premise with the construction area
of 2,800 square meters (with the right to use 5,000 square meters
of car parks at the basement level two, being part of Phase 3 of
the ancillary facility project of Beijing International Zone Convention
Center* to be constructed in Beijing Shunyi District Tianzhu Airport
Commercial Zone* (the “Properties 1”) at the cash consideration of
RMB152,800,000. Details of the acquisition of the Properties | has
been disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 15 November
2016.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had paid deposit of
RMB149,100,000 (2021: RMB149,100,000) to the Vendor I. The
acquisition is expected to be completed on 30 June 2024.

Miat

720225128318 FF LR AL EE—H
FERFERERITEZNTRAMABRL
T0.9% (20214 : 0.9%) BIPGHE - EHEEE
RIEEEIEEARAABETAEMEE IR
At BEREAEENRBERZERE
FIERIARE -

24,  H{HABETE

2022
RMB’000

ARBTR

RHUWBME (EEENE)

130,884 141,930

PisE

R2016FE 118158 R ER K EBABR
A8 ((EFRBHE > AATEENBAR) A
B (&A1) T W E R (TSR
1) HFib BEFRRHERIEREERRIK
E—TEERYE YEAEREE2,800F
KB #EERM T & ZE5,000F 5 KEE
BzERYE UREETIBEREREXRZZE
AREEREENIIREERRBREERLE
HEIEE AN —0 (L) > BeRE
# AR %£152,800,0007s ° & BIWRE V) 2189 5%
BRAEATBEA2016FE11B15BMA S
WEe

20215128318 AEBRAEHIZTE]
£ AR #149,100,0007C (20214 : AR
149,100,0007T) ° FEHAUK BB = I8/4202456 8
30H 5ER% ©
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HE2022F12831HILEE

24,

DEPOSITS PAID (Continued)
Note. (Continued)

Due to the significant impact of COVID-19 in 2022, the construction
progress is slower than planned schedule, the management of the
Group estimate that construction of Properties | will be completed on
or before 31 December 2023 and the acquisition will be completed
on or before 30 June 2024. Therefore, the management of the Group
concluded that there was indication of impairment and conducted
impairment assessment on the deposit paid for acquisition of the
Properties I.

The recoverable amount of the deposit paid for acquisition of the
Properties | has been determined based on fair value less cost of
disposal of the Properties I.

The fair value of the Properties | was determined, by reference to the
valuation carried out by Graval Consulting Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer, based on Level 3 hierarchy using market
comparable approach that reflect market unit rate, taking into
account the recent transaction prices for similar properties adjusted for
nature, location and conditions of the Properties | which ranged from
RMB40,832 to RMB49,318 per sq.m. (2021: ranged from RMB43,446
to RMB55,250 per sq.m.). A slight increase in the adjusted price per
square metre used would result in a significant increase in the fair value
of the Properties I, and vice versa.

As at 31 December 2022, based on the result of the assessment, the
recoverable amount of the Properties | is amounted to approximately
RMB134,584,000 (2021: RMB145,630,000) and the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount of the deposit
paid for acquisition of Properties | is lower than its carrying amount.
An impairment loss of approximately RMB11,046,000 (2021:
RMB7,170,000) has been recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022.

*  For identification purpose only

24,

AN
Mzt (#8)

EE122022F 20198 RABRNE AT E 2
%Lgﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%lg’z&%AIEJETTE
ST EIRR B 2023FE 12831 HH 2 A5
B> BUR R 72202456 830H 2 ATSEA ©
At AEFAEBEEBRAEFEEREBEN R I
HIKEBYEIE ] SEITRET G

WM ENENT SN RO EDERY
ENARBERSIHERKETE -

MENAABENSEBLAERSEGE
S XERERABMMEE BERNE
:ﬁ& RARMTBEENTBLEEELE

G WSAEE Ly ES R %ﬁffﬁ(eﬁﬂ@
%ll& “HER R KR E B EE) o BN
BT HKARKA0,832TTE ARSI, 31877:
(20215 : NIRETFHRKARKAL3,446TE
ANER#55,2507T) © KBS T 5 KERIE
MBI ERE N A ABESENAEE
> RZ IR

202246128318 BG4 R » 2R
A EI£EEL 2 AR 15134,584,0007T (2021
£ AR1145,630,0007T) » AEEEIREH
E%ﬁtuﬁzEﬁ%%lﬂﬁﬂ%Eﬁiuﬁ@ﬁéﬁf&ﬁéﬁ
RESE REZE2022612831HILEEE
R EEELA ARYE11,046,00070 (2021
£ AR#7,170,0007T) °

* (EHEF
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25. CONTRACT COSTS

Construction costs and expenditure
capitalised

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are mainly related to land leveling cost, road facilities
and electricity supply, rainwater and wastewater facilities
and land requisition cost.

Contract costs are recognised as part of the cost of sales in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which revenue from the related project is recognised.
The amount of capitalised costs recognised in profit or loss
during the year was approximately RMB26,409,000 (2021:
RMB45,804,000). There was no impairment in relation
to the opening balance of capitalised costs or the costs
capitalised during the year.

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

25. B8

2022

RMB’000
ARETFTT

BEMFTREACHR

72,926 100,518

20225 2021E 12 B3 1HERE R
E’JAZ’JEEZIKIEQ:I:%QZ”% ERE

SR R 188 ~ PRI 7K ER B AN - ith 4
BERRC

BRI AT P IERATE B W AR
REBEmRPERABIHEM K
FERNRERPEENE R AT
45 N R 154926,409,0007T (20214 :
AR #45,804,0007T) ° £ R
BRI A BB A R I B AN E R A Y
/)—JZ{E"

26.  FEURBRER

2022

RMB’000

ARET T
Trade receivables — contract with customers FEWEER—FFEEH 13,151 =
Less: Allowance of credit losses B EEREEE (26) =
13,125 -

As at 1 January 2021, there was no trade receivables from
contracts with customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivable net
of allowance for credit losses presented based on the
repurchase agreement date at the end of the reporting
period, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition date:

R20215F1 810 BIEERBEREGH
R FE U BR X ©

ERBEHREDBEHZEHN BEEE8
Wy 25 B 58 B HAAR ) 4R BB FEIRBRR

Rz EEmERER) NIRE DT
To
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26.

FEURERTR ()

2022
RMB’000

61-120 days 61—120H

The Group has not specified the credit period to the Major
Customer and given that the Group has long-term business
relationship with the Major Customer, the Directors
considered that none of the balance from the Major
Customer has been past due as at 31 December 2022. The
Group does not hold any collateral over the balance.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are
set out in Note 6(b).

27.  CONTRACT ASSETS 27.

AR®EFT

13,125 -

AREBUTRIEECFEZTENEESH
BrBEEBIAEERFETRER
HAEBR%  EERAMN20220128
STHMEFERER &AL - AER
W AR A AIRR & o

P ST B R R 18 5 it 5 1B 8051 IS B EE
6(b)
BHEE

2022
RMB’000

ARBTR

Retention receivables of construction
contract
Less: Allowance of credit losses

S EERERE

As at 1 January 2021, there was no contract assets.

Retention receivables included in contract assets represent
the Group's right to receive consideration for work
performed and conditional on the satisfaction of the
service quality by the customer over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts. The contract asset is transferred
to the trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the expiry date of the
period for the provision of assurance by the Group on the
service quality of the construction work performed by the
Group.

214

434 308
(1 (13)
433 295

R2021E VB H BIEEAEHNE
7o

BRRAENBWFREFIEAEEMTE
GRREZRERRAETNK TIEH
WMABHEF HUEF RERBE
BN - BRANEABKGE (BE
RAEEMHEE R ITAERETIREM
RFEERBZAREMZE) » G4
EEBEERIIRM
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HZE2022F128310IEFE
27. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 27. BHNEE#E

The Group typically agrees to a retention period of 12 FEE-REEREHNBENI0%4H

months for 10% of the contract value. This amount is FIRERBANMREBI -ZEEFASG

included in contract assets until the end of the retention HNEEEERGPERT (t—K&R

period as the Group's entitlement to this final payment FEEHBESMARNEETIENR

become unconditional, which is typically at the expiry date BHEERMFREHARNIEB) AL

of the period for the provision of assurance by the Group FE R #Z R A& RER LA 5

on the service quality of the construction work. o

The Group classifies the contract asset as current because KEBRENEEDBARNEE

the Group expects to realise it in its normal operating cycle. AAarEEFERTEHEEESERAR

I
Details of impairment assessment of contract assets is set BRIGNEEZF RN MIEE6(D) o
out in Note 6(b).
28.  DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. FIERHEMEWRIE
2022
RMB’'000
AR® T

Other receivables (Notes) HAth FEWRIE (HaL) 165,576 226,622

Prepayment TR RRIE 871 -

Deposits Hi7 201 200

166,648 226,822

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEBRE (123,436) (86,550)

43,212 140,272
Notes: Vg
At 31 December 2022, other receivables mainly include: R2022F 128310 EthEWRIBETES
&

(i) approximately RMB29,400,000, net of accumulated (i) X N R%29,400,0007T (AR R TR
impairment loss of RMB68,600,000 (2021: approximately B 518 A\ R #68,600,0007T) (2021
RMB110,548,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of F A ARME110,548,0007T > &
RMB30,301,000) represented the consideration receivable E:HRERE AR 30,301,0007T)
from the Purchaser |, in relation to the disposal of 66.67% IERWE FIRE RAERR2020
equity interest of Shenzhen He Hui Huang Development FNRISHERNEERIITEE
Company Limited (“SHHH Development”) which was IBERERAD (TRNEEERE
completed on 15 November 2020. The balance is unsecured B1) 1966.67 % IR I o Z S ER A I
and non-interest bearing. RRRE
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28.

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

approximately RMB1,092,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of RMB11,000 (2021: approximately
RMB10,218,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
RMB1,736,000) represented a loan to Guangzhou Leyou
Internet Technology Co. Ltd* (“Guangzhou Leyou”), an
independent third party. The unsecured loan bear interest rate
at 6% per annum and was expired in 2021.

approximately RMB1,725,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of RMB1,725,000 (2021: approximately
RMB5,537,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
RMB1,413,000) represented the consideration receivable
from a purchaser, in relation to the disposal of the entire
equity interest of Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment
Development Company Limited which was completed on
28 June 2019. The balance is unsecured and non-interest
bearing.

approximately RMB9,210,000, net of accumulated
impairment of RMB53,100,000 (2021: approximately
RMB13,160,000, net of accumulated impairment of
RMB53,100,000) represented the consideration receivable
from the Purchaser Il, in relation to the disposal of 20% equity
interests of Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development
Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Hai Yue”) at a
consideration of RMB133,000,000, which was completed on
4 March 2019. Receivable of approximately RMB9,210,000
(2021: RMB13,160,000) was secured by a property of
Shanghai Wanbang. The balance is non-interest bearing.

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other
receivables are set out in Note 6(b).

*

For identification purpose only

28.

s1E R HAtFEUYTRIE ()

et - ()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

£ ANR11,092,00070 (0% R 5t
BB ARK11,00070) (20214 :
#AR110,218,0007T > 3Bk R 51
EEEAR1,736,0007T) 52 F
BUE=FBEMNEEEHARZE
RAE (TEMEERE) NER - ZERE
IFERIZEFF6%st 2 122021
FERHR-

# AR #1,725,00070 (OB R &R
BB AR K1,725,00070) (2021
F Y ANR¥5,537,00070 B E
sHRERE AR1,413,0007T) 16
El—2E85HNRE AREER
201956828 HEM M &R IT
A ERERERSRATZBR
o ZERABERKRER

# AR %9,210,0007T (0B R &t
FEAR53,100,0007T) (2021
£ ARME13,160,0007T ° 0B
Kt EEARYES53,100,0007T) 5
EUWEHIRE ABRBRAUARE
133,000,000tz N BEHEEMNEE
EMEZRBRAE ((EMEE))
20%PG 1 Z B E72019F384
H5eRk o 49 AR #9,210,0007T (2021
£ 1 AR¥13,160,0007T) BYFE R
HHEESEBYEER ZEHA
RBe

BRI R EMBYRIEZ BET G
AEF B EC P EE6(b) o

*

EH 5
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29.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and
short-term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group's
short term cash commitments, which carry interest at
market rates range from 0.01% to 1.95% (2021: 0.01%
t0 1.95%).

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances that are placed
in restricted bank accounts amounting to HK$41,856,000
(2021: HK$77,101,000), such balances can only be applied
for the Project and restricted for settlement of various cost
upon approval by the Major Customer and are included in
cash and cash equivalents. The balances carrying interest
at variable interest rates ranging from 0.25% to 1.75%
(2021: 0.30% to 1.75%) per annum.

At 31 December 2022, cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB and kept or deposited in
banks in Mainland China amounted to RMB6,362,000
(2021: RMB7,009,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through bank authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and
restricted bank balances are set out in Note 6(b).

29.

2022FEIRE

RERRELFHEER RRERITE
AR

RekBRcEEEBOEEMmmERE
BiEHIRSAEBNIEHNTHRER
B AR ERF R N F0.01%ZE1.95%H9
FZEH B (20214E: 0.01%E1.95%) ©

120228128310 ZERZRHIER
1TER P MVERTT45 87 441,856,000/ 7T
(20214 : 77,101,00087T) » %%
ERETARZER  RILERZIR
BIUEETERRAEAA Wit AR
RIS EEEB ZEFEHEN
F0.25%F1.75%R 2B EF KB
(20214 : 0.30%E1.75%) ©

2022 12B31H  Z"EBERES &
IR1T455R AR 166,362,0007T (2021
F . AR1E7,009,00070) UARIEEET
B> WRTFHFEREMR PE A
RIT- AR AEEEHRRAMEME
& o SR AR IR P B A (SN IR AR
B)) K (4508 ~ EERATEEIERT )
NEEE A B 1B IR A SN 2E TS
RITHARBE R EME -

BRRITHER R ZRFISRITAE ROV
BEHEBEF B EI HIEE6(0) o

BEHLRERRNARAR
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30. TRADE PAYABLES 30.

Trade payables represented construction payables in
relation to construction costs and other project-related
expenses which are payable based on project progress
measured by the Group. The suppliers have not specified
the credit period granted to the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period:

FEATRRTR

BNRRSRZEEARAMIESE
BRI SRR B ST R M THiRIE
AEBFENREEE - HER
WERTAEREEEER

BUF A h iR &5 HASR B FE AT BR AR AU BR B0
DT -

2022
RMB’000
ABR¥F T
Within 180 days 180BH ™ 42,480 76,918
Over 180 days 180H Uk 73,664 73,525
116,144 150,443
31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 3. BHafE
2022
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Current liabilities EIAE
Construction of infrastructure and ERSHERMELE

development of properties

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB54,926,000.

As at 31 December 2021, RMB10,488,000 represents the
advance payments made by the Major Customer.

The Major Customer made advance payments to the
Group while the acceptance and transfer procedure is still
ongoing. The advance payments result in contract liabilities
being recognised throughout the construction and
development period until the completion of the acceptance
and transfer procedure and the Major Customer obtains
control of the completed infrastructure and property.

218

- 10,488

PR021E1B1H 8B EANAR
#254,926,0007 °©

R2021F128B31H AR
10,488,000t F B E A EHTEL

RIE

FERRERBNEFNEETE
mAEEFHBAMNRIE - BYREE
RENaERBERZRAERABA
R BEERBXNEFTRREE
ZEREFSER TERRMRYERNE
HER L
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31.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and
how much relates to performance obligations that were
satisfied in prior periods.

3. ANaBE@E

TREFINCHEFBREREETGNE
BEFANEERENBEREERET
NENEEERNEE -

2022
RMB’000

ARBTR

Revenue recognised that was included in R E# T A SN EELER

the contract liability balance at the B BB U

beginning of the year

Since the Major Customer has delayed the completion
of the acceptance and transfer procedure on its sole
discretion, which the Group does not have any control
on such procedure, the contract liability related to the
unsatisfied performance obligation, which was expected to
be satisfied within one year in prior year, has not yet fully
recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The significant decrease in contract liabilities in the during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 was mainly
due to revenue recognised when control of the completed
infrastructure and property is transferred to the Major
Customer.

10,488 43,145

HREERF BITRAEIEETEMR R
EBXER MAEESZERLIE
(RS Eit > SR BITHEL
EBRERNEGNEE KRBEHN LE—
FEE—FRNET) BRAREEIEE
F2021F 12831 HIEEEMUA ©

REE2022F K2021F12831HLEFE
B> 8HERRNERLHEEARE
TERAESEB T ERR MR
B RER FT R SR AT U A ©

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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HBZE2022F128318IEFE
32.  OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HttEMRIERESER
2022
RMB’'000
AR¥TT
Other payables and accruals (Notes) HMENRIERETE R
(L) 51,503 64,470
Less: non-current portion B IEREIEE Y (258) (258)
Current portion TMENER 51,245 64,212
Note: Mzt -
At 31 December 2022, included in other payables amounting to R2022F128318 st AR RIBEN &
approximately RMB38,476,000 (2021: RMB54,465,000), represented REAH AR 1E38,476,0007T (20214 : AR
the outstanding consideration in relation to the acquisition of 88 54,465,0007T) > f5UNHEB8IE) 2 (20214 !
properties (2021: 125 properties) which was assumed through the 125184)%) R EERE > HEE20205F12
acquisition of 125 properties through acquisition of subsidiaries (the B31BLEFERBNENRBAS (ZEHEB
“Subsidiaries”) during the year ended 31 December 2020. AT)) U BE125IBY) 2K o
As at 31 December 2022, the other payable bear default interest at 12022128318 » & RIBRVZAF
0.05% per day (2021: 0.05% per day). The vendor agreed to waive KAFH0.05% (20214 : §H0.05%) o &
the default interest for both years ended 31 December 2022 and FRREREEE20225 520211283181k
2021, MEFEEREMNFE
33.  LEASE LIABILITIES 33. fHE&E
2022
RMB’000
AR® T
Lease liabilities payable: BERUTHREZANEE
Bf&:
Within one year —FR 547 760
Within a period of more than one year BB —FERBRmE
but not more than two years 27 189
574 949
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 12E R AR HAEARY
12 months shown under current liabilities ~ FVIE (B & RN A(E) (547) (760)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121# 5 % ZIEAE AR IE
shown under non-current liabilities GIBIERBEE) 27 189
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied FERNHEESENMEFIGIESEMN
to lease liabilities ranged from 4.8% to 5.5% (2021: 2.7% FIZEB4.8%ZFE5.5% (2021F 1 2.7% %

to 5.5%). 5.5%) °
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34.

35.

OTHER BORROWINGS 34.  Hfthfamk
2022
RMB’000
AREETT
Unsecured SR 5,415 =
The other borrowings include: HAEREE
i) RMB3,000,000 received from an independent third h) 20229981 7HE —& BT
party on 17 September 2022 for 6 months, and F=FWE AR3,000,000
bearing a fixed monthly charge of RMB90,000; and o AHRER BESAER

AR %90,0007T ; &

i RMB2,000,000 received from an independent third ii) #2022F 11 A5 8 —&1FL
party on 5 November 2022 for 6 months, and F=HUWE AR2,000,000
bearing a fixed monthly charge of RMB60,000. o AleER  BEESRER

AE#560,0007T ©

DEFERRED TAX 35. RIEIRIE

The following is the deferred tax asset recognised and the MR EmRIRIERIBE ZE KER

movements thereon during the current and prior years: REERBETEFENESEER

ECL provision
FEHAEE
EEigiEE
RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and 120211818 ~20214
31 December 2022 128318 /%2022F12831H 31

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses RIEFENERRER  RIBEEBEA A

could be carried forward for five years to offset against ERFLURIHE BB ERREF

its future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets relating to BRI RBARIESEINEIERIEE

unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is B> REERAESE BHERR R

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to MUFEZEREREEEESESAR

allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised. g

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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35.

36.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 35.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had estimated unused tax losses of approximately
RMB62,973,000 (2021: RMB54,809,000) available for
offset against future profits in the PRC. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the unused tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profits stream.

Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately RMB62,973,000 (2021: RMB54,809,000)
with expiry dates as disclosed in the following table. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RIS HAR » AN E B g SE A i P
BB R m A 5t R B R TE RS 18
#75 NR1862,973,0007T (20214F © A
FR1&54,809,0007T) ° BN 2 LLFERI R
FREFT > AT AB BRI A 1B
IR IBE E

ABEDHREBEELOELYARE
62,973,0007cH9E518 (20214 1 AR
54,809,0007T) * EIHAH B T Hh

2022 20224
2023 20234
2024 202445
2025 20254
2026 20264
2027 20274
SHARE CAPITAL 36.

Number of
shares

RIS #E

BERAER S
2022
RMB’000
ARETFTT
- 2,752
6,307 6,307
5,658 5,658
27,856 27,856
12,236 12,236
10,916 -
62,973 54,809

23

Authorised, issued and fully paid: (& B TREHE:

— Domestic shares of RMB1 each —-SREBARE
1T RE K
At 1 January and 31 December MBI
128318 864,000,000 864,000 864,000,000 864,000
— H-shares of RMB1 each —-SBRAEBARE
170
At 1 January and 31 December MB1RR
128318 605,376,000 605,376 605,376,000 605,376
Total HEEt 1,469,376,000 1,469,376 1,469,376,000 1,469,376
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37.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 16 October 2020, Shenzhen Ju Sheng Chuang lJian
Investment and Development Limited* (“Shenzhen Ju
Sheng"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Shenzhen Apple Culture Media Company Limited* (the
"Vendor II") entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Shenzhen Ju Sheng has conditionally
agreed to purchase and the Vendor Il has conditionally
agreed to sell 60% equity interest of Shennongjia at the
consideration of RMB35,000,000, of which approximately
RMB1,446,000 and RMB33,554,000 are for the acquisition
of 60% equity interest of Shennongjia (the “Sale Shares”)
and shareholder’s loan (the “Sale Loan”) respectively.
Shennongjia holds properties under development which is
located in the PRC. The acquisition was completed on 15
March 2021.

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration
test in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
and concluded that the properties under development,
including the construction costs and land costs, are
considered a single identifiable assets.

Consequently, the Group determined that substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets (excluding cash
and cash equivalents) acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable assets and concluded that the acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

Consideration transferred

Deposit paid

37.

EEANHES

20202FEEHRE

BRWBEHRBARWBEEE

522020108160 » A AR 2 EHE
NEFEY T ERAELELEREBRA
B (MERINFER)) BRYITFER L
BEEERAR (BEAN) JIIEE W
ORI OFRINRREERGEREWE
BEAIERERELERRZ60%
> 1B A AR 135,000,0007T
Hoh#g AR #51,446,000c RO AR
#%33,554,00070 73 B BN UL FE R B2 2R
BI60% 81 (MBHERD ) RIREEMR

(MHEER) - BRRFAMRPEH
B ERYZE W EIEE 1202145
3815052

AEBRBEEEMBHRSERFIN

TEF S ERERARELEDR
a0 Wi H LU B E R 3 hao 2 (8
BREERAR LR E) RESE—
FIEBIE E o

EHit > ZEEREE > IR EE (F
AERERENFEESFEED ZA
AEEER LHMETR—EE—HF
HMBBEED LT HER DA
BN — AR EETERES

FREGRAE

RMB’000
ARETT

35,000

BEHLRERRNARAR

P23



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

37. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 37. EBWEMEQRKEEE @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RN R RN EWEEERAR
acquisition mF:
RMB’'000
ARBTT
Properties under development BRI 51,430
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRRIRE 17
Other receivables H R IE 44
Amount due from the Vendor I FEWE 5 IIFIE 5,594
Amount due to Shenzhen Ju Sheng BRI REIE (6,300)
Amount due to the Vendor Il FE(S & HIRIE (33,554)
Trade payables FETERRR (14,820)
Other payables HAE (= IE (1)
Net assets acquired of FrUS e & B3 ME 2,410
Add: Assignment of Sale Loan o ERHEEN 33,554
Less: Non-controlling interests (40% interest in B IR E R RHEZEEN40%
Shennongjia) i (964)
Consideration transferred EEENAE 35,000
Net cash inflows arising on acquisition of MR REENRERASER

Shennongjia

RMB’'000
AR® T
Consideration paid in cash (Note) LIRSS IR E HaE) -
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B PSRV IRIT A R IR (17)
(17)
Note:  The deposit of RMB35,000,000 was paid to the Vendor Il MisE: #HZE2022F12831HILEEE 5T
during the year ended 31 December 2020. AER135,000,000tBEX G FEAS
Ilo

The non-controlling interests in Shennongjia recognised FRULEE B HRRERR 2 N1 R 2R Y IR AR
at the acquisition date was measured by reference to the BRI LR MRREEFEN
proportionate share of recognised amounts of net assets of LD RE » A9 AR 16964,0007T 51

Shennongjia and amount to approximately RMB964,000. Bo
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38.  DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38.

0) As disclosed in Note 13, on 2 June 2021, the
Company disposed of its entire equity interest of
Shenzhou Shen Wu Group and the shareholder’s
loan of approximately RMB15,709,000 at a
consideration of approximately RMB5,000,000.

The net assets of Shenzhen Shen Wu Group at the
date of disposal was as follows:

Consideration received:

Cash received

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

BWRE

H

@)

&®=

=]

MBAE

UM EE13FAIRE A AT
20216 2B HE THRILY
EENEHRERBERERY
AR#15,709,0007T > B4
2 AR H5,000,0007T °

REEBE FILMEERN
BEEFENT:

BEWAE:
RMB’000
ARBTR
5,000
BREEFENEERARS
#r:

2 June 2021

202156H2H

RMB’'000

AR®TT

Property, plant and equipment L EN V=Y 512
Deferred tax asset FIEIRIEE EE 760
Loan and interest receivables FEWER KT E 3,286
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FATIE 5] & R AR RUIE 5,490
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR RIS 143
Other payables and accruals HAuhE IR EsT & B (220)
Amount due to the Company B ABIFIA (15,709)
Amount due to a non-controlling interest FE(T IEFERG T TR IE (1,732)
Net liabilities disposed of FrHE & EFEE (7.470)

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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38.  DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. WHEMBAR @
0) (Continued) (i) #)
Gain on disposal of Shenzhen Shen Wu Group: HE R E BRI
2 June 2021
2021%F6H2H
RMB’'000
AR®TT
Net liabilities disposed of FrHEaBEFEE (7,470)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan R E = 15,709
Non-controlling interests R (6,428)
Reclassification of cumulative RHERILYERBREHR DL
exchange reserve upon disposal of REERHEERER
Shenzhen Shen Wu Group to profit
or loss 617
2,428
Gain on disposal HE W 2,572
Total consideration BRE 5,000
Satisfied by: T3 ARER
Cash BE 5,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEESRIRERAFEE
2 June 2021
202156 H2H
RMB’'000
ARBET T
Cash consideration BERE 5,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B PTHERITARKIRS (143)
Total consideration received B AE 4,857
The impact of Shenzhou Shen Wu Group on the AR & B A& E 5722021
Group's results and cash flows in 2021 is disclosed FHEGERRENENTER
in Note 13. B MEE130
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38.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(i)

On 15 January 2021, Shenzhen Tong He
Chunglian Investment Development Company
Limited* (“Shenzhen Tong He"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of
its entire 90% equity interest in Guangdong
Xinmao Biotechnology Company Limited*
("Guangdong Xinmao") and shareholder’s loan of
approximately RMB13,886,000 at a consideration
of RMB9,990,000. The disposal was completed on
2 February 2021, on which date the Group lost
control of Guangdong Xinmao.

Consideration received:

BUlRE

Cash received

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

38.

HEMBAR (@

(ii)

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Other receivables

Restricted bank balance

Bank balances and cash

Other payables

Amount due to Shenzhen Tong He

Net liabilities disposed of

Y EN G ]
EREEE

H A FE R IE
ZIRHIIRTTAEER
IRITHERRIRE
Hth & RIE

B RYIRE &R

PRt EREFE

202118158 "X AT B
2EWBABLFRIITRIGAIE
KREZRBEREELAE (MF
NEED FTILEEHEUSH
EERERZEREYRES
RAB (TEREK) WE
0% K ERRBERNIARE
13,886,00070 RBA AR
9,990,0007T ° tHE B 220214
2B2H BIAREBREERE
BRI ER B ER) SEAk o

BWAE:

9,900

BEXREEFIENEERERD

#r

4,701
7,299
249
41

(3,321)
(13,886)

(4,915)

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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38.  DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. WHEMBAR @
(i) (Continued) (i) #)
Gain on disposal of Guangdong Xinmao: HEERE R :
2 February
2021
2021%2H2H8
RMB’000
ARBT
Net liabilities disposed of PR E B B3R (4,915)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan R EHEE 13,886
Non-controlling interests R 470
9,441
Gain on disposal HE WS 549
Total consideration RE 9,990
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEESRIRERAFEE
RMB’'000
ARBET T
Total cash consideration received BRIRERE 9,990
Bank balances and cash disposed of FTHERTTHEGRIRE (43)
9,947
g For identification purpose only * ERER
(i) On 19 April 2021, Shenzhen Juxi Investment (i)  FR2021FE48198 KA TR
and Development Company Limited* 2ENBARFRIYMRER
(“Shenzhen Juxi Investment”), a wholly- ERRBARLA (MFRINRE
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered REDITUBEEREUHE
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose HRBMNMmEEaEMESR
of its entire 90% equity interest in Chaozhou RAE (BAMES) N2
Jiafu Packaging Materials Company Limited* 0% K ERKEERIARE
("Chaozhou Jiafu”) and shareholder’s loan of 22,365,00070 EBA AR
approximately RMB22,365,000 at a consideration 16,308,0007T ° HE E 522021
of RMB16,308,000. The disposal was completed F48278 BIARERKEHMN
on 27 April 2021, on which date the Group lost EENEFIN B ST

control of Chaozhou Jiafu.
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38.  DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. WHEMBAR @
(i)  (Continued) (iii) #)
Consideration received: BURHLIE !
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Cash received BWIRE 16,308
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which BREEFIENEEREED
control was lost: e
27 April
2021
20214
4H27H
RMB’'000
AR®T
Property, plant and equipment M~ B st 7,500
Right-of-use assets BRAREE 7,278
Other receivables Hh g IE 20
Bank balances and cash IR1THERRIRE 3
Other payables HAE =18 (12,190)
Amount due to Shenzhen Juxi Investment FERTFY IR B ERIE (22,365)
Net liabilities disposed of R E B B3R (19,754)
Gain on disposal of Chaozhou Jiafu*: HEEMEZT R
27 April
2021
2021548278
RMB’'000
AR¥T
Net liabilities disposed of R E B B3R (19,754)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan R EHEE 22,365
Non-controlling interests JEERR R 1,865
4,476
Gain on disposal & W 11,832
Total consideration BARE 16,308

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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38.

39.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(iii) (Continued)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

38.

HEMBAR (@
@iy @&

HEEENRSRAPE -

RMB’000
ARETT

Cash consideration received BUEREE 16,308
Bank balances and cash disposed of T ERTTE G RIRE 3)
16,305
& For identification purpose only i 1E# 5
RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 39. RAEFNEE

The Group maintains various retirement schemes for its
employees. The retirement scheme for employees of the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries is a mandatory central
pension scheme organised by the PRC government, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group. Contributions made are based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ salaries and charged as expenses
when the employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contribution. The employer contributions vest fully
once they are made. The Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in fund under the control of
trustees. The Company contributes 5% (2021: 5%)
of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 (2021:
HK$1,500) per month, to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, in which contribution is matched by employees.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
approximately RMB980,000 (2021: RMB902,000)
represents contributions paid and payable to these plans
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
As at 31 December 2022, contributions of approximately
RMB1,000 (2021: RMB1,500) due in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 had not been paid over to the
plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end of
the reporting period.

SERAERBRERILTEREMNRE
o AN RETENWBATAERE
B2 —TBRTEBATARS > 86 14%
RRERSTE Zet B2 EERAR
EEZEEDHER -HRNREE
HEEFMZENET  URES
RELEZE R ZRBEIERX
M- BEHH—BEL B2RE
EFffE AEEATEERNEERE
BRI BESHE ENEEESE
R—ERSTAZFNES HBAE
EEENRIFE AADHEENA
SAHBESTEIBEF A%
(202145 1 5%) EHHTF LRA
1,5005 77 (20214F @ 1,500587T) ©

RIEEANERBZHAZRBEIARE
980,0007T (20214 : AE#902,000
70) IhAREBE BRI EARAELE
EEILEFEER Z HR722022
F128318  REE2022412H31H
IEFEERBHEHRANAREK1,0005T
(20214 : AR#81,5007T) i ARBA
SHE P o ZEMBERREPBEERR
[EEESZNE
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following capital commitments:

ents

40. BRKIE

SR AEEBAUTEARKIE:

2022
RMB’'000
ARETIT
Capital expenditure contracted for but BEATHEBENETNE
not provided in the consolidated B RR AR S M RERN
financial statements in respect of: BENERMS
(i) Capital contribution to subsidiaries () EBATEE 23,635 20,635
(iy Acquisition of Properties | (Note 24) (i) UnEBMZ (B1at24) 3,700 3,700
(iii) Construction cost of properties under (i) FIZER¥)EMER
development DN 18,187 35,386
45,522 59,721

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions
and balances with related parties:

(a) During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the identified related parties which have
transaction with the Group were as follows:

Name of the Company

EERE

Beijing Lichuang Future Technology
Company Limited (”Beijing Lichuang”)
ERDEIKRKREBRAS (MERERAAEL)

Shenzhen Apple Culture Media
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Apple”)
FINTHHERACEEBRAD (FERXIE)

4. FEFRS
MREEGEEVM BRI EREEIN
AEERERNEREFNEARS M
SR
(a) HE2022F &2021%F12831H

IEEE BAREBETRZW
EABIREESINT

Relationships with the Company
HEAQEBRE

A shareholder of the Group
TEBERRE

A non-controlling interest of the Group

KERIFERE D

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41.

(a

(b)

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the balances of
related parties are as follows:

REARZ (&)

(a

(&)

PR EHAAR > B 77 BOAS BRIN
T

2022

RMB’000
ARBTT

Amount due to a non-controlling Bl ey
interest
— Shenzhen Apple (Note) —BER1E Wzt

B —RIRERRIEA
—IbRA8 (B2

Amount due to a shareholder
— Beijing Lichuang (Note)

Notes: The above balance is non-trade in nature, unsecured,

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
Compensation of key management personnel

The key management comprises all the Directors,
chief executive officer and supervisors, details of
their remuneration are disclosed in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of Directors and key executives
are determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

(b)

- (1,621)
(511) (943)
Mt MU EEBREESEE EE
R BRERERMEE
ETEERARKHM

TEEEASCSEEEESE
TEBERES  KNEZF
SIBRAR G B S5

Lo

EEREBETHRAENHMD
EEREARRRTRER
MESSETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831HILEE
42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42, TATIMBLATEHE
42.1 General information of subsidiaries 421 FRMBATMN—KER
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held RABINRE AR EE R EE
by the Company at the end of the reporting period FAENWBASNFEHIIN
are set out below: T

Zhongfang Chaozhou** PRC N/A RMB200,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property
HE A H TER  AR200,000,0007 development
NERE
Beijing Shen Shang** PRC N/A RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bl i FE TER (2021: REzER
RMB1,000,000)
AEH
10,000,0007¢
Q015 :
B 11,000,0007T)
Shenzhen Juxi Investment** PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Inactive
FHRELE HE TEA AR 1,000,007 BREH
Shenzhen Shenxi** PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
FlmLE HE TER AR 1,000,007 REER
Shenzhen Shenhe Chuangli Investment PRC N/A RMB5,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Inactive
and Development Company LalE] TEA  AR5,0000007 BEEE
Limited** (Note /i)
RIFCHTREERERAT
(i)
Shenzhen Tong He** PRC N/A RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RTmRE HE TEA AR 100000007 REER
Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Development Company ~ HE] AER  AKM1,000,0007 REER
Limited**
AP REEREERRER
BEAF

0202 ERE BEARRERMAERAT 233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

BB ARN—RER (@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN

T

(#)

Shenzhen Ju Sheng** PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
RYER FE TER  ARH1,000,0007
Shennongjia** (Note Jii & i) PRC N/A RMB20,000,000 - -
TR (Wyztiiki) H TER  ARH20,000,0007
Puning Zhongya Real Estate PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 - =
Development Company Limited** ¢ TER  ARH1,0000007
(Note ii & v)
BETPREMEREERAT
(H&tiRy)
Puning Zhongpa Real Estate PRC N/A RMB4,000,000 - =
Development Company Limited** ¢ TER  A\RH4,0000007
(Note i & iif)
BETPRENEREERAT
(Hyatikii)
Guangzhou Huipu Trading Company ~ PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 - -
Limited** (Note ii & i) FE TER  ARH1,000,0007
ENTEREEBRAT
(Hr=tiikii)
World Ease Investment Limited HK Ordinary HK$1,000 - -
EfBEERAT BE BER 1,000%7
Beijing Yufeng Chengyou Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Company Limited** F TEA AR 100,007

SREARENEERAT

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding

REZR

Property
development

UES &

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Not commence
business

BRgx

Property investment



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR R MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

42,

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Shenzhen Wanzi Hotel Apartment PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 -
Management Company Limited** ] TEA  AE%1,0000007
(Note i and fij)
MITBRBEABEEERAT
(ki)
Beijing Herun Wanwu Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER B 1000007
TRMBEYRRERAR
(Histiin)
Beijing Wanxiang Shengrun Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
TREHEEHRERAR
(Histiin)
Ningyun Runyu Technology (Beijing) ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd** (Note ii) FE TER AE1100,00075
REBTFHE O0R) BRAF
(Histiin)
Yueyu Wanrun (Beijing) Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Communication Co,, Ltd.** (Noze ji) & TEH AR 100,007
BB 0bR) )EEEERAT*
(Histin)
Jiao Yanpengda Technology (Bejjing) ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER B 100,007
PREBERE 00R) BRAF
(Histiin)

100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
Razk

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
REZR

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
REZR

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
REZR

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
REZR

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
REZR

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
RRG-

Bejing Shuying Wanyu Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR ¥100,0007
TREFRENCEEERAT
(Hyatii)
Miao Ruo Yue Xiu (Beijing) Cultural ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR ¥100,0007
BHEEE IR XLEEERAT
(Hyatii)
Beijing Ronghui Guangyi Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) P TER AE15100,00075
FRHERERRARAG
(i)
Beijing Senyu Haixiao Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) P TER AE15100,00075
FRATERRRBRAG
(Hyatii)
Jingcheng Nuoyun Technology (Beijing) PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) P TER AE1100,00075
LR iR ERAF
(Hyatii)
Chenlu Yingban (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co,, Ltd.* (Note i) P TER AR100,00070
REH IR HEBERAR
(Hytii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
Razk

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
Razk

95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
Razk

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
nERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Bejjing Jiangfeng Yucheng Technology  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
PRIRSANRERAR
(Hytii)
Beijing Xianyun Qingyan Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
TREEEENRERAT
(Hytii)
Yushu Yanxin (Beijing) Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR #100,0007
BERE O6R) )CEEBRAT*
(Hytii)
Xinyu Xiangzhong Technology (Beijing) PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
HFEEREE O5R) BRAF
(Htii)
Tianlang Yunging (Beijing) Technology  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd** (Note ii) FE TER AE1100,00075
FHAZE Ot RRERAT
(Hytii)
Beijing Jinfeng Yishuang Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co, Ltd** (Note ii) FE TER B 1100,00075
TRERRFHRERAT
(Hytii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

421

BB ARN—RER (@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN

T

(#)

Beijing Moyu Chenxi Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Ltd.** (ote ii) FE TER AE1100,00075
TRENERNRERAT
(i)
Yubo Yunxiao (Beijing) Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Ltd.** (ote i) FE TER AE15100,00075
RiBEE On) RRERAT
(Hystii)
Beijing Yunxin Xinyi Business PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ HE TER AR 100,000
TREEMCEAABRAT
(Hsii)
Bejjing Xiangche Yunxiao Information  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ HE TER AR 100,000
TREHEBERAAERAT
(i)
Chuyisitu (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR ¥100,0007
BlaEE Ot )CEEERAT*
(i)
Jiaoyan Ningyu (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR #100,0007

BEET bR XLEE
BREFAE (ki)

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%
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95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Property investment

UES &

Property investment

UES &

Property investment

UES &

Property investment

UES &

Property investment

UES T

Property investment

UES &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42, TATMBAEIFE (&

(Continued)

42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 21 EBEHEAWBATN—MRER @&
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held RABRRERRERZRERE
by the Company at the end of the reporting period FAENWBABNFEHIIM
are set out below: (Continued) T #&

Beijing Mifu Hushuo Software PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Technology Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ TEA AR 100,007 WERE
TRRTEERHRIERAT
(Hytii)
Shengmeng (Beijing) Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Ltd.** (Note ii) LalE TEH AR 100,007 NERE
28 (bR) REBRAT
(Hytii)
Beijing Zise Meigui Culture Co., Ltd.** PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
(Note ii) HE TEH AR 100,007 NERE
BREEBKHENEERAT
(Hytii)
Beijing Huanantianchuang Information  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Consulting Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ E TER AR ¥100,0007 WERE
TRESREIESAAERAT
(Hytii)
Beijing Shitong Technology Co., Ltd.** PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
(Note ii) FE TER AE1100,00075 ESES

SREER R BRAR (W)

Youlin Miaoying Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Communication (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* ] TEA AR 100,007 NERE
(Note iif)

Wk E X bEE Oin) AR AT
(Hytii)

0202FERE BREARRERMERAT 239
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
RRG-

Bejjing Huguang Shangmei Information PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Consutting Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ HE TER AR ¥100,0007

TRt EEESAAERAT
(i)

Beijing Luoji Suotu Business PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. ** FE TBA AER#100,0007
(Note iif)

FREERECEEERS
BIRAG (fytii)

Caibai (Beijing) Information Consulting PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.* (Note i) HE TER AR 100,007

i (bR ER#HERAT
(i)

Helv (Beijing) Technology Development PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note i) HE TER AE#100,0007

K (bR RERBERAG
(Hystii)

Beijing Zhengmei Kexin Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) FE TER B 1000007

FREEIERRERAT"
(Hyatii)

Yiyue Yunwei (Beijing) Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd. ** (Note i) FE TBA AR 100,007

BIRER bR BRERAT
(Htii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
NERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

421

BB ARN—RER @

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN

T

(#)

Qiuyue Xiuzhu (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
HAFEN Ot RRERAT
(Hytii)
Bejjing Yijuefangya Technology Co., ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) FE TBA AER#100,0007
FR—BFERRERAFY
(Htii)
Haitian Rongyu (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.* (Note i) HE TER AR 100,007
BRER ObR) BEERAF
(i)
Beijing Xinnuan Angyi Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i) B TEA AR #100,0007
LTEMEREHRERERAT
(Hystii)
Beijing Shutong Shucai Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ HE] TER AR ¥100,0007
TREERMNRERERAT
(Bytii)
Jiaxin Moran (Beijing) Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) FE TBA AR 100,007
E0EA (bR BRERAT
(Hytii)

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

UES &

Property investment

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

421

BB ARN—RER (@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN

T

(#)

Yingying Binglv (Bejjing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) FE TER B 1000007
BEE (bR) REBRAT
(i)
Zhiling Aotian (Beijing) Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) HE TBA AR 100,007
EEHE bR BRERAT
(Hyaii)
Beijing Haimeng Zeyou Software PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Aote i)~ HE] TER AR 100,007
TREZERRMRERRAT
(i)
Beijing Fengyu Ruofei Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note ii) HE TER AE1100,0007
FTREFERBRERAT
(i)
Bejing Zhongduo Feiyi Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Ltd.** (ote i) FE TER B 1100,00070
TRRSF-HRBERAT
(Haii)
Bejjing Qichi Ranxu Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ *E] TEH AR 100,007
TREMATRREBRERAT
(Hitii)

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%
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95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Property investment

UES &

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

UES &

Property investment



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Shengsu Yinghuai (Beijing) Cultural ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR #100,0007
ERRE (R bEE

BREF QT (ki)

Xunliu Qianying (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ TE TBA AER#100,0007
EmER 0R) BRERERAT
(Hitii)
Beijing Yiju Wanli Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) HE TER AR 100,007
FREEEENRERAR
(i)
Haoyong Kuyi (Beijing) Information ~~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Consulting Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ B TEH AR #100,0007
BAEE 0 ER3S
BRAG (i)
Miduo (Beijing) Advertising Design Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Ltd.** (ote i) HE TER AB1100,00070
R bR) BERHERAT
(Bytii)
Beijing Shende Culture Media Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) FE TBA AR 100,007
FREEUERERAT
(Hitii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
nERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
RRG-

Bejjing Wanwei Tongyuan Technology  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ TE TER AEH100,0007¢
ITRBSBNRERERAT
(i)
Beijing Mingxiangyuan Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) HE TBA AR 100,007
FRAHERRERAR
(i)
Bejjing Siyuan Information Consulting  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.* (Note i) e TER AE100,0007
FRBRERBHERAR
(i)
Bejjing Danding Technology Co., Ltd.** PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
(Note i) HE TER AE1100,0007
PRAERRERAT
(i)
Beijing Dezhi Yunsheng Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) FE TER B 1000007
FTRESZERRERAT
(Haii)
Bejjing Anran Ruoyu Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd. ** (Note i) HE TBA AR 100,007
FRZAERBRERAT
(Hitii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
NERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Liuru Weiyang (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075

RMAR (ObR) BRBERAT
(Hytii)

Anrong Shuyang (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) HE TER AEH100,0007

ZRHE bR REERAT
(Hitii)

Weiya Qiaomeng (Beijing) Technology  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.* (Note i) HE TER AR 100,007

HMELE 0 R) BREERAF
(i)

Jieyu Sisi (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd. ** (Note ii) FE TEA AR 100,007

ZRBR 0N X(EEERAR
(Hystii)

Bing Ruo Hanfeng (Beijing) Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AB1100,00070

KERR (bR BRRERAT
(Bytii)

Bejjing Mulu Shuheng Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Aote i) T'E ~EE AEH#100,00070

FRABHENCEEERAT
(Hitii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
nERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

421

BB ARN—RER (@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN

T

(#)

Yingmei Qingmei (Beijing) Technology  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
BBy Ot RRBERAT
(i)
Beijing Meiya Miaoyi Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) HE ~EE AEH#100,0007
FREEYERRERAT
(Hyaii)
Yibai Jingchen (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.* (Note i) e TER AE100,0007
KEBE 0R) BREERAF
(i)
Bihai Qingkong (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note i) HE TER AE1100,0007
BEEZ (R REBRAR
(i)
Beijing Yueye Qinghui Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Ltd.** (ote i) FE TER B 1100,00070
TRAZERNRERAR"
(Hatii)
Bejjing Yuan Zhi Ai Lian Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.* (Note ii) FE TER AEH#100,00070
FREZERBEERAT
(i)

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Xueyu Xiongfeng (Beijing) Technology  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
SIS (bR) REBERAT
(Hytii)
Tiancheng Yongge (Beijing) Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) HE TER AEH100,0007
KEHE 06 BRERAT
(Hitii)
Yunren Jimu (Beijing) Information PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ HE] TER AR 100,007
BOEA R EREBHERAR
(i)
Bejjing Baili Tianyi Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note /i) HE TER AE#100,0007
FREHNFBRRERAT
(Hytii)
Beijing Shuyi Anyun Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR #100,0007
IRBEEBNEEERAT
(Bytii)
Bejjing Yongsheng Junpeng Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) HE ~EE AEH#100,00070
FRAEHENRERAT
(Hitii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
nERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

421

BB ARN—RER (@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN

T

(#)

Bejjing Jingmo Ruchu Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ TE TER AEH100,0007¢
IRB2IIRRERERAT
(i)
Beijing Aiwu Ruohui Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) HE TBA AR 100,007
FRYEERHRERAR
(Hyaii)
Beijing Jinke Xiaoheng Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) e TER AE100,0007
FRERBENRERAR
(i)
Beijing Xiaoruo Wuchen Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note i) HE TER AE1100,0007
TRBEERENRERAT
(i)
Weiai Jingiu (Beijing) Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Ltd.** (ote i) FE TER B 1100,00070
BESH (bR) REBERAT
(Haii)
Bejjing Mochun Shijing Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd. ** (Note ii) FE] TBA AR 100,007
FREFHENLEEERAT
(Hitii)

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%
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Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Beijing Jin Rui Tai Information PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Consulting Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) ] TER AE#100,0007
TREREERFAERAT
(Hytii)
Bejjing Xing DongLi Information PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ FE TER AR 100,007
FRESHERFAERAT
(Htii)
Baishifei (Beijing) Software Co., Ltd.**  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
(Note i) HE TER AR 100,007
Bt 0N aERAT
(i)
Beijing Suan Ning Meng Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note i) HE TER AE#100,0007
TRBEERRERAF
(i)
Tengao (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.** PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
(Note i) H TER AR ¥100,0007
et ObR) REBRAT
(Bytii)
Bejjing Lianbo Sixin Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ *E] TEH AR 100,007
TrBERERRERERAT
(Hytii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
nERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
RRG-

Jieou (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.**  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
(Note ii) HE TER B 1000007

AR O B BRAR
(Hrtii)

Beijing Hongyu Tianxia Information ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Consulting Co., Ltd** (Note i)~ E TEH AER#100,0007
FTRBFXTERAAERAT
(Hystii)

Fengxiao Xuanang Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* TER AR 100,007
(Note iif)

EEHBRRER OIR) BRAT
(i)

Tengqi Ruyue (Beijing) Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note ii) HE TER B 1100,00070

BBIA U REBRAR
(i)

Bejjing Haoran Chujie Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Ltd.** (Note i) PE TER AR 100,000
BREAEERRBRAT
(Hyatii)

Nuoxiang Anya (Beijing) Business PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. ** FE TER AE100,0007
(Note iif)

EARHE bR CXEEEN
BIRAR (Hrztii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
NERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42, TATMBAEIFE (&

(Continued)

42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 21 EBEHEAWBATN—MRER @&
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held RABRRERRERZRERE
by the Company at the end of the reporting period FAENWBABNFEHIIM
are set out below: (Continued) T #&

Beijing Fengxing Yusi Culture Media ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Co., Ltd.** (Note i) ] TER AR ¥100,0007 WERE
TRETFHNGERERAT
(Hytii)
Bejjing Xian Ming Da Information PRC N/A RMB100,000 - = 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (Vote i)~ E] TER AE#100,0007 WERE
FRAREEREAERAT
(Htii)
Heng Gao Hui (Beijing) Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Ltd.** (Note i) HE TER AE100,0007 NERE
BBE 0t REERAT
(i)
Bejjing Jinxi Zhixin Technology Co., ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Ltd.** (ote ii) FE TR AR 1100,00070 NERE
TREI 2 ORRBRAT
(i)
Jinmu Qingteng (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Co., Ltd.** (Note i) FE TER AR ¥100,0007 MELE
BAER Ot RRERAT
(Bytii)
Bejjing Chengjia Zhizhen Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - = 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note ii) FE TEH AR #100,0007 NERE
FRAREE X LEEERAT
(Hitii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
RRG-

Bejjing Baixue Chenyang Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) FE TER B 1000007
FRASRBHEERAT
(i)
Beian Chuging (Beijing) Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Aote i) TE ~EE AEH#100,0007
LR 06 R) EEEERAR
(i)
Beijing Jinse Jiangyan Culture Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) HE TER AR 100,007
TRBEBIEXERAT
(i)
Beijing Xiayou Muchun Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Aote ii) & @A AEH100,0007¢
LREBHELBEERAT
(Hytii)
Gubei Qingge (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ciommunication Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) FE TER AR ¥100,0007
BIER 06 R) )EEEBRAT
(Haii)
Bejjing Weifeng Chayun Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) HE ~EE AEH#100,00070
FrEBRENRERAR
(Hitii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
NERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Beijing Bomu Mianyan Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR #100,0007
TREERELEEERAT
(Hytii)
Jingtian Xianheng (Beijing) Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ TE TBA AER#100,0007
ERZE 06 BRERERAT
(Hitii)
Zhenlian Meishe (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd. ** (Note ii) & TEA AR 100,007
BURE 0R) XCEEERAR
(i)
Bowen Zichen (Beijing) Software Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note /i) HE TER AE#100,0007
AR OIR RBRAR
(Hystii)
Beijing Wannian Changcun Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AB1100,00070
TREFERENRERAT"
(Bytii)
Beijing Yong Xu Yuan Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i)~ *E] TEH AR 100,007
FRABERRERERAR
(Hytii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
nERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
RRG-

Tong Tai Hui (Beijing) Technology Co.,  PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (ote ii) FE TER AE1100,00075
B%E Ot RRBERAT
(i)
Beijing Taifu Information Consulting ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) HE ~EE AEH#100,0007
FRABERBHERAT
(Hystii)
Beijing Jienuo Jingran Technology Co., PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Ltd.** (Note i) e TER AE100,0007
TRZERANRBRAT
(i)
Beijing Fanke Nimei Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Aote ii) & @A AEH100,0007¢
FRAMEELBEERAT
(i)
Anlong Qianyu Technology (Beijing) ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co, Ltd.** (Note i) FE TER B 1000007
ZHRTERE OtR) BRAR
(Haii)
Bejjing Changwen Zhanran Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) HE ~EE AEH#100,00070
TRERSARRBRAG
(Htii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
NERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Beijing Jingxiu Guangiang Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Co, Ltd** (Note i) FE TER AE1100,00075
TRBEAERNRERAT
(Hytii)
Bejjing Jinghua Fumeng Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Co., Ltd.** (Note /i) HE TER AEH100,0007
FREEIEHRERAT
(Htii)
Beijing Chunjuan Runci Technology ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Aote i)~ HE] TER AR 100,007
FTREEBHNRERERAT
(i)
Yuyi Fengshuo (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd. ** (Note ii) FE TEA AR 100,007
ZRERE 0R) XEEEERAR
(Hystii)
Shengyi Lanxin Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* ] TER AR ¥100,0007
(Note iif)
BREECEE iR BRAT*
(Bytii)
Yaoye Runshu (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Communication Co., Ltd. ** (Note ii) FE TBA AR 100,007
ERES 0 )CEEERAT
(Htii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
nERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)
42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHREHRREEKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
RRG-

Bejjing Shenjingranman Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Communication Co., Ltd.** (Note i) & TER AR ¥100,0007
TRBRARNCEEERAT
(i)
Beijing Mingzhe Zifeng Software PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Technology Co., Ltd. ** (Note if) ] TEH AER#100,0007
TREEHARERITERAT
(Hystii)
Beijing Yuanyi Moju Information PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ HE] TER AR 100,007
FTRRREREREAERAT
(i)
Beijing Weijian Yechu Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Development Co., Ltd.** (Note i) B TEA AR #100,0007
TrARERNRERERAT
(i)
Shaogi Lingyu (Bejjing) Information ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 - =
Consutting Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ HE] TER AR 100,000
RETY Ot EREFBRAT
(Haii)
Huizhi Lanxin (Beijing) Business PRC N/A RMB100,000 - -
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. ** FE TER AEH#100,00070
(Note iif)
BEHL Ot C2EEEN
BIRAT (Hrztii)

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
ESE]

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
NERE

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR R MM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period
are set out below: (Continued)

42,

TRBEMBABIFE (&

21 AHRRBARN—RER @@

ARBRHRERREREKLEE
FENNEB AR BN
T @

Beijing Jidu Information Consulting ~ PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd** (Note i) HE TER B 1000007
TRREERHIERAT
(Histiin)
Bejjing Baida Software Co., Ltd.** PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
(Note i) HE TER AEH100,0007
L REBEHHERL G
(Hitii)
* For identification purpose only
1/ Wholly domestic owned enterprise

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment

95% 95% 95% 95%  Property investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42, PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

42.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are limited company
which the places of operations are the same as
their places of incorporation.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period or at any time during the year.

Notes:

(i) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31
December 2022.

(ii) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31
December 2021.

(iii) The registered capital has not been fully paid up at
31 December 2022.

(iv) It was acquired of during the year ended 31
December 2021. Details are disclosed in Notes 37.

(v) It was deregistered during the year ended 31

December 2022.

42,

FRBEMBABIFE @

421

ERMBARN—RER (@

FRE LB ARHER/ERA
5] » HE S uth B SR 5F i a3 ith
#GAE[R] o

BHEM B AR BITERRRS
ARSI FERERIREARER
BV EFESS o

sk -

(i) HR#E2022612831H
IEFE MR

(i) HR#=E2021F12831H
IEEE MR o

(iif) R2022F128310 =M E
AR BEEBE

(iv) HER#ZE20214F12831
BIEFE WS o s B E M
5¥37°

(v) HER&EZE2022E12831
HIEFEFH-

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42, TATMBAEIFE (&

(Continued)

42.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that 422 BEEAFEREZNIERE
have material non-controlling interests M ATIRIEEE
The table below shows details of non-wholly- TREFIAEEEBERIEE
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material RERNIEEENB AR
non-controlling interests: 15

2022 2022 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR AEBTR AEBTT
Shennongjia PRC 40% 40% (1,770) (1,145) (1,951) (181)
BER HE
Chung Hwa Finance (Note) HK - - - M - -
RERE () B
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interest (533) (392) 1,568 2,101
BERFFZERRNENFEENEB
A
(2,303) (1,538) (383) 1,920
Note:  Chung Hwa Finance was disposed of on 2 June Mgt FEFSEER2021F682H
2021, HE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42,

(Continued)

42.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect
of the Group’s subsidiary that have material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intra-group eliminations:

Shennongjia

TRBEMBABIFE (&

22 FREEXFEREDNIFEEE
MEBARREFE (@)

BT EEBRAERIFERE
@M BRARNMBENEE
MM T - AT B BRI E
BFEERAGBHHENNE

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Non-controlling interest of
Shennongjia (Note a)

Notes:

IEREBERE

B YNSIE 2PN o

MR IFE R
(Hfata)

(a) Non-controlling interest had unpaid share capital of

RMB8,000,000.

Ho
HREA
2022
RMB’000
ARBTT
176,906 129,710
430 594
(170,214) (118,757)
9,073 11,728
(1,951) (181)
fitst :

(@ FEREZARBARSE
AR #8,000,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42, TATMBAEIFE (&

(Continued)

42.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries 422 BEEAFEREZNIERE
that have material non-controlling interests B ATIMEE @
(Continued)

Shennongjia (Continued) R (&
From
1 January
2022 to
31 December
2022
BH2022%
1818 E
20224
12H31H
RMB’000
AEETT
Revenue & = =
Expenses - (4,425) (2,863)
Loss for the period [N (4,425) (2,863)
Loss and total comprehensive RREHEE NEEEBER
expense attributable to owners THEMAZAEE
of the Company (2,655) (1,718)
Loss and total comprehensive 1R IEE R R o PR 1
expense attributable to the EE R EMAZ LR
non-controlling interests of
Shennongjia (1,770) (1,145)
Loss and total comprehensive FABIEREERSZAEE
expense for the period (4,425) (2,863)

Dividend paid to non-controlling BN FHRERIEERER
interests of Shennongjia MRS - —

Net cash outflow from operating RS EHIRB M IFEE
activities (48,276) (10,113)

Net cash outflow from investing KE TSRS R IFEE

activities - (1,485)
Net cash inflow from financing BEEENIRERAEEE

activities 48,191 12,000
Net cash (outflow) inflow B Rl RMAFEE (85) 402
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 42, TATIMBEREFE &
(Continued)
422 BEEAIEERERNIERE

42.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests MBATREFE &)
(Continued)
Chung Hwa Finance HEEE

Revenue Wi =
Expenses sz (3)
Loss for the period HREE (3)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KABHEE AELEE (2)

PEEEIFERERELEE

Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests

of Chung Hwa Finance (1)
Loss for the period HREE (3)

Other comprehensive expenses attributable to

FREEEABGEMZERX

owners of the Company (132)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable to AR EE(E S IEIERE R E(L

the non-controlling interests of HthemAx

Chung Hwa Finance (106)
Other comprehensive expenses for the period ~ HAREMEEM (238)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to KABEB ANEIEEEMZEEE

owners of the Company (134)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to EEEIREREEES

the non-controlling interests of T HEMZARLE

Chung Hwa Finance (107)
Total comprehensive expense for the period AR ERZERE (241)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE202026128310LEEE

43,

LITIGATION

On 19 August 2021, Shennongjia Jinghe Hotel
Management Co., Ltd.* ((RRRIERBIEEEBRA
@)) (“Jinghe Hotel”), an independent third party, filed an
indictment against Shennongjia to the People’s Court of
Shennongjia Forestry District (the “Court”), regarding the
occurrence of a dangerous landslide on the north side of
Jiuhu Hotel in Dajiuhu Town, Shennongjia Forestry District.
Pursuant to which, Jinghe Hotel claims Shennongjia for
losses caused by the landslide, including i) compensation of
approximately RMB4,349,000 for the inability to operate
due to the landslides from 9 June 2021 till the resumption
of operation (temporarily calculated on the basis of 40
days, RMB108,730 per day); ii) repairment of the bridge
which was damaged by the landslide and undertaking
of the responsibility for the quality and safety after the
repairment; iii) compensation for the landslide damage to
the pools, bridge guardrails, river guardrails, flower beds,
power supply and water supply pipelines, plant foundation
roads and site occupation fees within the hotel site; and iv)
the litigation fee, preservation fee and appraisal fee of this
lawsuit.

Jinghe Hotel and Shennongjia reached an agreement
on the repairment of the bridge, and the repairment
was completed before 31 December 2021. As Jinghe
Hotel and Shennongjia did not reach an agreement on
the compensation for the operation losses, Jinghe Hotel
applied to the Court for an appraisal of its operating
losses from 9 June 2021 to 19 July 2021 (“Financial
Estimation”). The court agreed the Financial Estimation to
be performed by an appraisal agent. Due to the incomplete
appraisal materials, the appraisal agent requested Jinghe
Hotel to provide additional information.

As at 31 December 2021, Shennongjia has not received
any judgment in relation to this lawsuit. Since Jinghe
Hotel has not provided information to the Court within
the prescribed period and the Court may withdraw the
case, the Directors are of the opinion that no provision for
contingent liabilities of this litigation have to be made.

43,

2022FEIRE

)

202188190 Wi E=—FH =
NIEABEEEERAT (BXHE
&) B REME ARER (TEB)
R HEREZERE NEEM
R ZEMIE A HHTE U B AE JE Al
R B RIE - RILIBERBEEK
R BRI EHERIEL
Hoh e i5)8EE20214F6898 1L B
BIWEREAMSENEINARE
434908 7T (EIR40HE#tE 51
AE®10.87387T) » EE A UMER
EALEiEERLEBEIFBIRNGE
B WA EERNEEL 2T i)
BEER LR RINIRIRA R 1B HEE R
BI7K I~ B RS SR ~ T E R N TEIE
HEMRKEE  REREKIZHGE
B RVEERZNHFAE - REE
BEHo

BARBEHEBERMBREEENR
—HER BRER20214F12831H
BISEAETE o R RIE S B B2 ¥
RS IBEANEERER —NER
BARBEERAIRIRHEE TR BE
HH2021F689HFE2021%F7819H
MR EBRETETE (TR
gt c EREE A B EITI
et o R E R A2 LS
ERIBERBERMEEEINER

72021512 831H » #EZR 5 R UL E]
ERIERZIFRZH R HPRIERA
EXARRREHARABE EPRIRMEE
i BAR A BE Rl M4 EERA
W IEN B R R TEH R ABESE
o

BEHLRERRNARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE202612831HLEEE

43,

LITIGATION (Continued)

On 22 April 2022, the Court issued a civil judgment on the
lawsuit, ruling that Shennongjia Hotel should compensate
Jinghe Hotel for the operating losses of approximately
RMB15,000, and replant the green plants in the flower bed
in the center of the bridge. The Court dismissed Jinghe
Hotel’s other lawsuit claims (collectively known as “Original
Judgment”). On 12 May 2022, Jinghe Hotel filed an
appeal to the Intermediate People's Court of Yichang City
("Intermediate Court”) for approval of the original lawsuit
claims because Jinghe Hotel was not satisfied with the
judgement of the Court.

On 5 December 2022, Intermediate Court issued a civil
judgment and upheld the Original Judgment.

43.

avah ()

§2022F4822H 5 ARt sz v s
BETREHRE SR HERE R
BIRRBIE &R I ARE5,000
7o WHBR R OB AR LEY &
1T o AR R B T IR ARE IS HANER
ENEER (B A TRAIR)) o 1R20224
5B128 0 BAREE R FR AR
FoEEEMPRRARER (TPaE
Bey) feth Eafk > BRI ERBFRHA
glzo

R2022F 12858 RAREARH AR
FHRE S TIRFREHIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG M B R R M s

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY

44,

FRBRMBIR R RHEER

2022
RMB’000
AR¥FT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTBATNKRE 151,810 249,698
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE E 31 31
151,841 249,729
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NI ES O] 87,856 88,649
Other receivables HAuhrEWzIE 3,066 16,003
Bank balances and cash IRITHE R AR 111 125
91,033 104,777
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Other payables and accruals HEA R IE M EsT & 2,969 2,921
Amount due to a subsidiary FES—REMY B A B 3R IE 56,688 56,638
Tax liabilities mEaE 4,799 4,799
64,456 64,408
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENBEEZFE 26,577 40,369
NET ASSETS BEEFE 178,418 290,098
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R #E
Share capital [N 1,469,376 1,469,376
Reserves EL] (a) (1,290,958) (1,179,278)
TOTAL EQUITY BN 178,418 290,098

ARABDNPFHERRIET KEFP
2023F3 8300 ZERIREEY > 1T
HTIIEEAREE .

The Company's statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing Ming Leng Xiao Rong

IRAEA BRI
Director Director
EE EFE

02FEHRSE BHAREERKRMNEBERATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TEHRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 44, FKATEBRRAREER @)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Mt

(a) Reserves (a L=t

At 1 January 2021 72021F181H 320,476 103,215 (1,806,376) (1,382,685)
Profit and total comprehensive EREHEREERE

income for the year Fek] = = 203,407 203,407
At 31 December 2021 722021€E12831H 320,476 103,215 (1,602,969) (1,179,278)

Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZEMAX
expense for the year 4878 - - (111,680) (111,680)

At 31 December 2022 7220225128318 320,476 103,215 (1,714,649) (1,290,958)
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4o A
)77 o = |

BA TS SR AR MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831HILEE

45.

46.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Groups' liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

45.

EREESELERRIHIR

TR AEEEREZHELER
WEs (BRERENIFREEH) 57
B-ARMETHELEARABENA
BRNAERFESHRSAERDER
MELHFFSRESNENRERE

At 1 January 2021 20211818 - 676 2,153 - 2,829
Non-cash changes FREEE
Finance cost =N - 67 - 67
Rent concession HEER - 32) - 32)
Addition of right-of-use assets FRESERE = 1,535 = 1,535
Exchange adjustments EREE - 3) = 3)
- 1,567 - - 1,567
Changes from cash flow Renags
Advance from a non-controlling interest ~ JE¥ERRE T EER = - - 1,621 1,621
Repayment to a shareholder BE—REEME = > (1,210) = (1,210)
Repayment of leases liabilities BEHEAR - (1,294) = (1,294)
- (1,294) (1,210 1,621 (883)
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 = 949 943 1,621 3,513
Non-cash changes FREEE
Finance cost T 415 63 - - 478
Settlement of other payable REEAREE
on behalf of the Group EMERTIE - - 15,989 - 15,989
Addition of right-of-use assets FRESERE = 772 = = 772
415 835 15,989 - 17,239
Changes from cash flow REmegsy
Repayment to a non-controlling interest (B FFERES - - = (1,621) (1,621)
Repayment to a shareholder EE—AREMIE - - (16,421) - (16,421)
Repayment of leases liabilities BEHEEE = (1,210) = (1,210)
Other borrowings arise EEEMER 5,000 - - - 5,000
5,000 (1,210) (16,421) (1,621) (14,252)
At 31 December 2022 1#2022%12831H 5,415 574 511 = 6,500
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 46. IFEFRERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, other payable
of approximately RMB15,989,000 have been settled by a

shareholder of the Company.

HE2022F12831HLEEE > HihpE
TR IEL A R 1815,989,00070 B F1 A
NEPRELES o

002FERE BBEAHERRKRMERAT
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Financial Summary

MBHE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FEEER
2022
RMB’000
ARETT
Revenue 6 29,427 47,022 7,008 22,023 80,091
Cost of sales HEME (26,610) (46,336) (6,666) (21,127) (64,966)
Other income HitA 1,920 2,490 3,006 1316 257
Impairment losses under expected ~ TBEFEEREEE TH
credit loss model, net of reversal  JF{ERS1E > MBI (36,900) (5,344) (10,504) (71,111) (57,416)
Impairment loss recognised WE R R R BN
in respect of property, HEEE
plant and equipment - - (36,380) - -
Impairment loss recognised HEMTERA 2 RESE
in respect of deposit paid (11,046) (7,170) - - -
Impairment losses on goodwill BEZHERE - - = = (1,320)
Finance cost MEMAE (478) (67) (31) (53) =
Exchange gain, net P R U 358 17 1,193 1,993 90 1,532
Loss from change in fair value of ~ BAABEF ABEH
financial assets at fair value HHREEAABEETN
through profit or loss 5t - = = S (30)
Loss from changes in fair value of ~ REVEA N BEELENEE
investment properties (18,200) (13,900) (428) (730) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net &M B A EHIME FEE = 12,381 15,551 1,072 46
Administrative and other operating  {TEBUR ELfhAS &%
expenses (13,954) (17,890) (11,434) (13,553) (9,536)
Share of loss of an associate EiE—EHE A BEE - - S (8,548) (85,940)
Loss profit before tax PRItAIRS BRI (75,824) (27,621) (37,882) (90,621)  (137,282)
Income tax expenses FERES - (6) (96) (90) (1,779)
Loss for the year FAEBE (75,824) (27,627) (37,978) (90,711)  (139,061)
Profit (loss) for the year from REBRIHEEEREY
discontinued operations EREF (E518) - 2,553 (10,300) (3,729) =
Non-controlling interests iy 2,303 1,538 8,597 5,391 154

Loss attributable to owners of ~ AAF R AFELEE
the Company (73,521) (23,536) (39,681) (89,049) (139,215)
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Financial Summary

MHBHE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EEMEIRRR
2022
RMB’000
AREFR
Non-current assets ERBEE 395,292 428,740 513,724 451,327 557,519
Current assets REEE 353,689 454,537 384,406 545,084 629,473
Current liabilities MEEE 175,345 229,961 213,401 188,634 (297,059)
Net current assets MEEEZFE 178,344 224,576 171,005 356,450 332,414
Total assets less current liabilities 428 ERUREI & & 573,636 653,316 684,729 80,777 889,933
Non-current liabilities FErsasE 285 447 = 264 =
Net assets BEEFE 573,351 652,869 684,729 807,513 889,933
Capital and reserves: BARR#E
Share capital [RZN 1,469,376 1469376 1469376 1,469,376 1,469,376
Reserves B (895,642)  (818,427)  (791,340)  (750,451) (604,640

Fquity attributable to owners of ~ ZNATB A AFE(EER

the Company 573,734 650,949 678,036 718,925 864,736
Non-controlling interests JEIERE M (383) 1,920 6,693 88,588 25,197
Total equity Mg 573,351 652,869 684,729 807,513 889,933
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Particulars of the Investment Property

REVEFR

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

REREME

Shop of No. 15 Guang An Road, Commercial
No. 138 He Sha Road,

Da Tan Sha Island Li Wan District,

Guangzhou City,

Guangzhou Province,

The PRC

FEEREENTHEERE EES
KB &R E&1385%

EZ2 B8 155 i &

125 office units of Commercial
Yue Condo,Greenland Ark,

Court No.10 Zhouxiu Street North,

Fangshan District,

Beijing City,

The PRC

IR FEIER™ [EES

B & =75168105%k

AEMNEETE 5 IR AR

125ERFig

11 Shop units and 60 car parking spaces Commercial
Phase 5 of Tianzizhuangyuan,

Western side of Lijiawu Village and

northern side of Jingha Road,

Yanjiao Town, Sanhe City,

Langfang City, Hebei Province,

The PRC

AR BRI AL BB LA T [GES
=R AR $R

FRHEN LA KRG ELUIE

R FHEE A HARY1 11 2 & B8 {1 K 601F B8 {iL

Medium-term lease

FRERFRAY

Medium-term lease

FRERFRAY

Long-term lease

FRERFRAY
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Glossary

ERAR

In this report (other than the consolidated financial statements),
unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions

RAERE (REHMHRERIN BXESE
Fite UTRARBEALUTRE-

shall have the following respective meanings.

“2021 Corresponding Period”

r20214FFI#]

“2022 Financial Year”
M2022F A FE
“Articles”

MAEER

“Beijing Hua Xia Ding”
HERZES R

“Beijing Lichuang Future”
HERABRIARE]

“Beijing Shen Shang”

MEREm

"Beijing Yufeng Chengyou”
bR E A2 5
“Beijing Zhong Tou”
MERAP#E

“Board”

EEg)
“Chaozhou Jinshan”
FE N L
“Company”
/NIl
"“Director(s)"”

M%)

“Domestic Share(s)”

TRE K
“Group”
MAREE]
“Hong Kong”
r&#)
"H-Share(s)"”

THA

"“Independent Third Party(ies)”

-

DEIIE =7

*  For identification purpose only

for the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831BLEFE

for the year ended 31 December 2022

#2022 12831HIEFE

The articles of association of the Company

P/NSIRIEE e iRl

Beijing Hua Xia Ding Technology Company Limited*

IREERBEBRAT

Beijing Lichuang Future Technology Company Limited*
ERDEIRRBERBRAT

Beijing Shen Shang Investment & Consulting Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

EREERELHABRAT AABZE2ERB AT

Beijing Yufeng Chengyou Technology Company Limited*
IERBEEBFRRERAT

Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited*

ERFPREABREXFRAT

the board of Directors

5xg

Chaozhou Jinshan Investment and Development Company Limited*
ANTELRERZERRAT

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited

EEARERRNBRAE

the director(s) of the Company

KRBESR

domestic share(s) with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for in RMB
ARBRATPEREEARKITHRER  UARIEE

the Company and its subsidiaries

KRB REKBRE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

FEEBFHITHE

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB1 each, all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars
FATIBREBEARBITTZIRN EHHEEBRR 2B EHIPAER LT
RUETREREE

the independent third party(ies) who is/are, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries,
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

PRIER—YREEHE  REF RN SEREE  BIUNAATREREA
T (ERRLHRA) WBIE=7

* (EHEE

02:2FERSE BHRABEERMAERAT
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Glossary

ERAR

“Listing Rules”
FEmRAL
“Model Code”
MRZESFAI)

5 PR @

MR

“RMB”

TAR)

HSEOR

M58 35 I ARG 15 il
“Share(s)”

A5
“Shareholder(s)”
Mg
“Shennongjia Hotel”
MR IRE R
“Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long”

MRS Bk
"“SHHH Development”
DRI EEIR R
“Stock Exchange”
TE§E 22 P

“Zhongfang Chaozhou”

Mo &= RN
“Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan
Industrial Park Project”

M N T XREER)

*  For identification purpose only

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

i Prag s LR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
EHETAEFETEFXZNRESTH

the People’s Republic of China

hEARHME

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEIEZEEBARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)
B REAE R (BB EGIES71E)

H-Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

HAR R W& B

holders of the Shares

aVEST=DN

Shennongjia Da Jiu Hu Hotel Company Limited
HERANPEERRAT

Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long Construction material Co. Ltd*( formally know
as Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long Investment Company Limited*)
AITmEREEEMBRAS FIRA)ITEREERKRERRAE)
Shenzhen He Hui Huang Development Company Limited*

AN EEEZERERAT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BBMERZFARAE

Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

HEINGEERERRRF ARE2ENE AT

an infrastructure construction project in Jing Nan Industrial Park, in Chaozhou
AN TERENERRTERIES

* (EHEE)
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